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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company’”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules’”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no any
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
T P

21.82% 27.73%
Tianjin TEDA Investment Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Chia Tai Land Company Public Shareholders

Holding Co., Ltd. Investment (Beijing) Limited (H Share)
(“TEDA Holding”) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Land’)

(“Chia Tai

Pharmaceutical”)
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Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited*
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100%

Tianjin TEDA

TEDA General

Tianjin Port

Dalian Teda

Tedahang Cold Tianjin

Tianjin Yuan Tianjin Teda Tianjin Teda Tianjin Tianxin
Bonded Da Xian Dai Supply Chain Chain Logistics Fengtian International Alps Logistics Alps Logistics Gangwan Automobile
Warehouse Logistics Co., Technology Co., Ltd. Logistics Freight Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. International Inspection
Co., Ltd. Ltd. Co., Ltd. (“Tedahang”) Co., Ltd. Forwarding (“Dalian TEDA (“Tianjin TEDA Automobile Services Co.,
(“Bonded (“Yuan Da (“TEDA Supply (“Fengtian Co., Ltd. Alps”) Alps”) Logistics Ltd.
Warehouse”) Logistics”) Chain”) Logistics”) (“International Co., Ltd. (“Tianxin
Freight (“Gangwan Inspection”)
Forwarding”) Automobile”)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

RESULTS 2B

A summary of the consolidated results of the Company and its AAREKEWNBARG(AER)E=
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the five accounting years ended 31 2022412 A31 B It A€ FE 24
December 2022 has been prepared in accordance with International & 24837 2 IR BIER B 75 R & X Bl 47 &L 40
Financial Reporting Standards as follows: ™

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

2022 F 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTRT ARETT ARETT

Operating income EEAON 3,301,143 3,069,814 2,880,818 2,716,799 2,613,904
(Loss)/profit before BRETSELAT(E518),

income tax gl 80,795 112,660 (54,671) 69,559 47,738
Income tax expense FRS R (21,261) (33,352) (27,444) (26,785) (20,130)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (E518), & F 59,534 79,308 (82,115) 42,774 27,608
(Loss)/profit T & F R (EER),

attributable to bzl
Non-controlling interests FE#E % ez 29,984 45,626 47,271 33,320 25,039
Owners of the Company AA&#HAE A 27,040 13,300  (132,577) 9,070 4,759
Basic (loss)/earnings per &REEA (E518),/

share (RMB) B (AR®T) 0.08 0.1 (0.37) 0.03 0.01
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

'W

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEkBE
&

A summary of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at the end of the E&E2022F 12831 LA AE
five accounting years ended 31 December 2022 has been prepared sFFEEHARZEEGBEME HIZBEBR Y5

= JJM

6

in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as ~ TREZERIHFRNT
follows:
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
2022 & 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETIT ARBFT AREFTT
Non-current assets IERBEE 1,050,851 1,066,195 860,953 790,171 744,410
Current assets mEEE 1,184,549 1,009,988 1,373,243 2,170,017 1,858,051
Total Assets BEBETE 2,235,400 2,076,183 2,234,196 2,960,188 2,602,461
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 93,436 113,890 143,756 130,146 70,404
Current liabilities mEAE 1,142,696 978,253 1,122,750 1,745,365 1,466,121
Non-controlling interests FE#EA% #E 25 125,384 137,196 134,146 118,556 108,859
Liabilities and B BR8N IR xS
non-controlling
interests 1,361,516 1,229,339 1,400,652 1,994,067 1,645,384
Total equity T AR RE 999,268 984,040 967,690 1,084,677 1,065,936
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 to all shareholders.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”), the Group’s
operating income was approximately RMB3,301,143,000 (2021:
RMB3,069,814,000), representing an increase of approximately 7.54%
as compared with the corresponding period of the previous year.
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB27,040,000 (2021: RMB13,300,000). Earnings per
share were approximately RMB0.08 (2021: RMBO0.1).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s total assets and current assets
were approximately RMB2,235,400,000 (2021: RMB2,076,183,000)
and approximately RMB1,184,549,000 (2021: RMB1,009,988,000)
respectively, representing an increase of RMB159,217,000 and
RMB174,561,000 respectively as compared with 31 December 2021.
Equity attributable to owners of the Company and net assets per share
at the end of the period were approximately RMB873,884,000 (2021:
RMB846,844,000) and approximately RMB2.47 (2021: RMB2.39)
respectively, representing an increase of 3.19% and 3.35% as
compared with 31 December 2021.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

REVIEW FOR THE YEAR

In 2022, the frequent and concentrated outbreak of the Covid-19
pandemic in China casted an unexpected impact on its economic
development. As the country carried out prevention and control of
the pandemic and pursued economic and social development in a
well-coordinated and efficient way and implemented a handful of
policies and follow-up measures to stabilize the economy, China
has generally maintained its economy stable. In 2022, China’s GDP
grew by 3% year on year. Against this background, with the support
of all shareholders and the Board, the Group adhered to the general
principle of maintaining its positive and steady growth. Guided by
“scientifically grasping the new development stage, fully implementing
the new development philosophy and actively integrating into a new
pattern of development”, the Group found its right position and
focused on key areas to pursue high-quality development, and was
committed to carrying out reform and development and strived to
achieve the annual business goals of the Group, taking solid steps for
its high-quality development.

During the reporting period, the operating results of supply chain and
logistics services for electronic components business and cold chain
logistics services increased significantly year on year, the operating
results of materials procurement and related logistics services business
recorded a significant year-on-year increase, while the operating
results of supply chain and logistics services for transportation of
finished automobiles and components business, warehousing and
other business segments decreased year on year. In addition, the
Group’s impairment loss on equity instruments measured at fair value
was significantly reduced compared with the corresponding period of
last year. The Group’s overall results for the year recorded a significant
increase over the previous year.
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Consolidating the advantages of principal business

During the Year, in the automobile logistics sector, the Group actively
responded to the adverse impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on the
automobile industry, reasonably allocated the operation capacity,
and ensured the smooth business operation to the fullest extent. In
the electronic components logistics sector, the Group overcame the
unfavorable factors brought by the sharp rise in international sea and
air transportation costs, maintained its existing customers and actively
sought for new customers, and successfully developed multimodal
transportation of domestic shipping and international railway. In terms
of cold chain logistics, the Group, as a state-owned enterprise, gave
full play to its function of ensuring people’s livelihood and supply,
effectively performed the duty of primary cold storage to disinfect
imported frozen meat freezers, and maintained a steady growth of its
principal business income and performance through conducting freight
forwarding business.

Standardizing equity and internal management

During the Year, the Group pursued the legitimate and orderly
operation of its affiliated companies, improved the assessment and
supervision system of affiliated companies, and successfully renewed
the joint venture contracts of Tianjin TEDA Alps for another ten years.
In addition, the Group proceeded to activate its idle assets and
standardize the management of productive assets, adopted special
actions to improve the high-quality operation of Bei Gang Depot and
enhanced its hardware level, and explored the cooperative leasing
model. It continuously improved the level of governance and internal
control, revised and perfected various management systems. With
the goal of “systematized management, process-oriented system and
informationalized workflow”, the Group constantly optimized the smart
operation management platform and the function modules of the NCC
system, as well as the BQ business intelligence analysis system to
enhance its efficiency of use.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

Strengthening talent cultivation and shouldering social
responsibilities

During the Year, the Group continued to push forward the reform of
the “three systems”, engaged management, skilled professionals and
marketing personnel based on the principle of party management of
cadres and talents, and signed the annual targets responsibility letter
with management personnel appointed, which sets out quantitative
indicators and reward and punishment terms. The Group further
clarified job responsibilities, strengthened performance assessment
management, advocated low-carbon green development, and
emphasized green and safe operation, and encouraged its employees
to save water and electricity and reduce resource consumption and
environmental impact.

Enhancing safety awareness to ensure safe production

The Group has always implemented the principle of “safety
first, prevention focused”, continued to strengthen the long-
term mechanism of safety management enhancement and firmly
established the concept of safe development, and formulated 4 new
safety systems and revised 22 systems during the Year. It also made
out a number of action plans for comprehensive management of safety
production, inspected production safety and rectified safety risks on a
timely basis to ensure a stable development of the Group.

PROSPECT AND VISION

In 2023, as the Covid-19 pandemic in China has smoothly entered
the regular prevention and control phase of “Category B disease (Z.48
ZE)", the domestic economy presents a positive growth, however,
the ongoing geopolitical and military conflicts and related food and
energy crisis still cast a significant impact on the world, which thereby
resulted in a complicated world situation as ever and brought certain
uncertainties to the domestic economy. The Group will strengthen
its confidence, put stability first and seek progress while maintaining
stability, fully prepare for a more severe and complex situation,
adhere to the general working principle of “bringing the Company
back on track with positive and steady growth” and the operation-
centered philosophy, and rely on regional advantages to give full play
to the importance of the logistics industry. It will find its right position,
cultivate the core competitiveness, make full use of the competitive
edge of automobile logistics and electronic components logistics, and
integrate and upgrade internal and external resources in yards, railways
and cold storage, grasp opportunities and cope with challenges, with
the aim to promote high-quality development, improve the overall
performance of the Group, and create value for shareholders.
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Improving the profitability of principal business

In terms of automobile logistics, the Group will maintain its
existing businesses, aim at marketing expansion and increment
of manufactures of various brands, and explore supply chain
management service in the warehouse of special railway freight lines.
It will also coordinate its resource advantages, make overall use of
special railway freight lines, storage yards and storage resources
and combined the existing railway and automobile logistics business,
to develop a comprehensive business plan integrating commercial
vehicles, bulk cargos and containers to improve its service ability.
Based on the existing railway loading and unloading services, the
Group will expand the third-party logistics business to the upstream
and downstream of the industry, and substantively carry out the sea-
rail combined transportation business with the “One-bill Coverage”
mechanism. The Group will provide support for Tedahang’s
transformation and development, improve the quality and efficiency,
maintain its profitability and promote the equity adjustment of
Tedahang in order to promote the long-term business growth.

Strengthening internal management and improving the level of
governance

The Group will strengthen internal management, take forward the
reform of the “three systems”, build up talent team to constantly
supplement their professionals. It will improve the salary management
system and give full play to the positive incentive effect of assessment
through the performance-based remuneration. The Group will also
strengthen the supervision over the operation and management of
affiiated companies and the internal and external audit supervision,
as well as the application of audit results. The Group will continue
to strengthen informatization construction, continuously improve the
redevelopment and upgrade of the smart operation and management
platform, and center on the Group’s fund management to realize the
centralized management of personnel and funds, in order to ensure
the Company’s capital security.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Solidifying the bottom line for safe production and creating a
stable environment

The Group will continue to improve the basic management level of safe
production and fire safety and focus on prevention to firmly prevent
and control accidents in relation to safety production. It will promote
safe production publicity and education and conduct prevention drills,
carry out targeted safety training and strengthen the construction of a
double prevention mechanism to ensure the safety of employees and
the security of the Group’s property, and create a favorable business
environment.

2023 will be a year full of opportunities and challenges. The Group will
continue to steadily advance its work, maintain a sense of time-limited
crisis and strive for aggressive progresses, grasp opportunities and
change working mode, holding a firm belief that through going into
business, doing practical work and delivering results, the Group will
work to write a new chapter in its high-quality development.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to friends from all walks of life who have long cared about

and supported the development of the Group, and all staff for their
excellent performance!

Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 23 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The principal businesses of the Group are logistics and supply chain
services for finished automobiles and components, supply chain and
logistics services for electronic components, materials procurement
and related logistics services, cold chain logistics services and other
services such as bonded warehouse, container yard, supervision,
agency and transportation services. The major customers of the Group
include: Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd. ([ 3REK(KE)
¥ii AR A A]), Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd. (LR %
¥ £ E AR A R]), Wuan Yuhua Iron and Steel Co., Ltd. (%
WEEIME AR A A1), China Commerce & Logistics Co., Ltd. and Fuijian
Zhanglong Group Co., Ltd.(fB &S BEER A R)).

During the reporting period, the operating income and segment results
of the supply chain and logistics services for finished automobiles
and components decreased as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, mainly due to the decrease in income and
segment results driven by the decrease in the business volume of
Fengtian Logistics. During the reporting period, as for the materials
procurement and related logistics services business of the Group,
the operating income increased compared to the corresponding
period of last year, and the segment results significantly increased
compared to the corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the
increase in business volume. The operating income of the bonded
warehouse, supervision and other businesses increased while the
segment results decreased as compared with the corresponding
period of last year, mainly due to the decrease in results caused by
adjustments of business model of Bonded Warehouse. The operating
income and operating profit of Tianjin TEDA Alps recorded an increase
as compared to the corresponding period of last year. The operating
income of Dalian TEDA Alps recorded a decrease as compared to the
corresponding period of last year, and the operating profit of Dalian
TEDA Alps recorded an increase as compared to the corresponding
period of last year, mainly because the growth of high value-added
business volume drove the growth of operating results. Tedahang took
full advantage of the state-owned enterprise’s function of ensuring
people’s livelihood and supply, and effectively discharged its duty as
the first-level cold storage to disinfect imported frozen meat freezers.
Through the development of freight forwarding business, it maintained
a steady growth in business income and doubled its net profit year-on-
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETWED T

Supply Chain and Logistics Services for Finished Automobiles
and Components

During the reporting period, the operating income of supply chain and
logistics services for finished automobiles and components amounted
to approximately RMB1,337,661,000, representing a decrease of
RMB44,244,000 or 3.2% as compared with the corresponding period
of last year.

Materials Procurement and Related Logistics

During the reporting period, the operating income from the materials
procurement and related logistics services amounted to approximately
RMB1,907,858,000, representing an increase of RMB270,640,000 or
16.53% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Warehouse, Supervision, Agency and Other Incomes

During the reporting period, other services such as bonded warehouse,
container yard, supervision, agency and transportation services
recorded an operating income of approximately RMB55,624,000,
representing an increase of RMB4,933,000 or 9.73% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

Supply Chain and Logistics Services for Electronic
Components (Conducted Through Investments in Joint
Ventures)

During the reporting period, the operating income from supply chain
and logistics services for electronic components business of the
Group’s joint ventures amounted to approximately RMB1,031,255,000,
representing an increase of RMB113,491,000 or 12.37% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The business recorded
an operating profit of approximately RMB69,387,000, representing
an increase of RMB24,144,000 or 53.37% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cold Chain Logistics Services (Conducted Through
Investments in Joint Ventures)

During the Reporting Period, the operating income from cold
chain logistics services of the Group’s joint ventures amounted
to approximately RMB351,575,000, representing an increase of
RMB100,327,000 or 39.93% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year. The business recorded an operating profit
of approximately RMB30,347,000, representing an increase of
RMB14,654,000 or 93.38% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating income

For the year ended 31 December 2022, operating income of the Group
was RMB3,301 million, representing an increase of RMB231 million or
7.54% as compared to RMB3,070 million for the corresponding period
of last year. The increase in operating income is mainly attributable to
an increase in operating income of materials procurement and related
logistics services as compared to the corresponding period of last
year.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of sales of the Group
was RMB3,169 million, representing an increase of RMB273 million or
9.42% as compared to RMB2,896 million in the corresponding period
of last year. For the year ended 31 December 2022, gross profit
margin of the Group was 3.99%, 1.66 percentage points lower than
the corresponding period of last year.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2022 amounted to
RMB56,457,000, representing a decrease of RMB2,738,000 or 4.63%
as compared to RMB59,195,000 in the corresponding period of last
year.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs during 2022 amounted to RMB20,702,000,
representing a decrease of RMB2,843,000 or 12.07% as compared to
RMB23,545,000 in the corresponding period of last year. The Group
will continue to improve the efficiency of capital utilisation and reduce
the overall finance costs.

EEENWED T

REYMRRE(BRRESE QFIRE
17)

REHA AEEEGERRZRED
MERGEEBEREERANDARE
851,575,000 7T * R EFREIEMARKE
100,327,000 7T * 418 /& 39.93% « B}
EEFEH AR KE30,347,0007T © & L
F [F HItE 0 A R ¥ 14,654,000 7T © 118
/$93.38% °

81§55 (O] gA

EEIA
HE2022F12A31BILEE AEH
CEREWABARKEI0NET B LEF
FHARBI0.7ETHEMARKE2.31E
JC > BIEAT7.54%  LERAENTE
RE Y ERIE X AR R IR E 75 &
WAR FFRIEAFATHE -

HERAERER

HE2022F12A31BHIEFEE - "&EH
HERAAAREES1.60ET & LF
FHIA R ¥ 28.96 B T MARK2.73
B 70 1 0E £9.42% & E 20224
12A31BLFE  AEEZEMNEXE
3.99% ' R EFREEATFE1.661EHT 92 -

THRX
RKEE20022FETHRAZAAREK
56,457,000 © & F F R H A R #
59,195,0007T B & A R # 2,738,000
7T BR18 A 4.63% °

ELE=§2%:S
REENFEMEXRARARK
20,702,000t R E F R B A R %
23,545,0007C B 2 A R ¥2,843,000
TT BRIEAR12.07% c AEBEBEERS
BoERAME  BIEEERERRE

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES WD

Taxation expenses

The taxation expenses of the Group for 2022 were RMB21,261,000,
representing a decrease of RMB12,091,000 or 36.25% as compared
to RMB33,352,000 in the corresponding period of last year.

Net change in fair value of equity investments through
comprehensive income

The net change in fair value of equity investment of the Group for 2022
was RMB-2,510,000, representing an increase of RMB17,872,000
as compared to RMB-20,382,000 in the corresponding period of last
year, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value of
Tianjin Bogang No. 9 Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (KM NIFEEEREREEERE ) and Tianjin
Ferroalloy Exchange Co., Ltd. (KEEHE X ZFABER AR of the
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income being significantly less than that in the corresponding period of
last year.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The share of results of joint ventures and associates of the Group
for 2022 was RMB54,935,000, representing an increase of
RMB21,180,000 or 62.75% as compared to RMB33,755,000 in
the corresponding period of last year, which was mainly due to the
significant growth in the operating results of Tianjin TEDA Alps and
Tedahang, as compared to the corresponding period of last year.

Profit for the year and profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the equity holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total profit for the
period amounted to RMB57,024,000, representing a decrease
of RMB1,902,000 or 3.23% as compared to RMB58,926,000
in the corresponding period of last year. Total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
RMB27,040,000, increased by RMB13,740,000 or 103.31% as
compared to RMB13,300,000 in the corresponding period of last
year. The increase in total comprehensive income attributable to
the equity holders of the Company was mainly due to a significant
increase in the investment income of the Group during the reporting
period as compared to the corresponding period of last year, and a
decrease in fair value of financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income being significantly less than that in the
corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board proposes the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.03 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (corresponding period of
2022: nil).

The proposal shall be subject to the approval at the Company’s annual
general meeting of 2022. Information about the date of the annual
general meeting and arrangements on closure of register of members
will be announced in due course.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no change in the
capital structure of the Group. The share capital of the Company
comprised only ordinary shares.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the balance of bank loans of the Group was
RMB285,175,000 (31 December 2021: RMB251,490,000).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of total liabilities to total assets of
the Group was 55% (31 December 2021: 53%). The gearing ratio (ratio
of loans (including borrowings and lease liabilities) to total equity) of the
Group was 34% (31 December 2021: 33%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment properties of
RMB183,000,000 and bank deposits of RMB113,987,000 were
pledged to the certain banks to secure loan facilities granted to the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES WD

Exchange loss or gain

All operating revenues and expenses of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi.

The Group has no significant investments outside Mainland China. The
Group, however, may be exposed to certain extent of foreign currency
exchange loss or gain mainly because Fengtian Logistics of the Group,
has business denominated in United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and
Hong Kong Dollar. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
had an exchange gain of RMB656,000 after offsetting the exchange
gains with exchange losses.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, the Group had no significant investments and did not
devise future plans for material investments or capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 1,123 employees
(including dispatched labors and employees) (31 December 2021:
1,214 employees).
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Administration TR 211 222
Finance B 32 35
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remunerations of the employees of the Group shall be determined
with reference to the market rate, and the performance, qualification
and experience of the relevant employees. Also, a discretionary
bonus based on individual performance during the year would be
distributed as a reward for the contributions made by the employees
to the Group. Other employee benefits include pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, labour injury insurance, medical insurance
and housing fund.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and experience, to the Board for determination.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R #HERERRS

ABOUT THIS ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the

” o« 4

“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group”, “we’
and “us”) are principally engaged in the provision of supply chain
services, materials procurement and related logistics services, cold
chain logistics and other services in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). As an enterprise that strives to operate its business with
the purpose to create long-term value for all, the Group remains
committed to adopting environmental, social, and economic
perspectives in strategy planning and policy execution, in constant
pursuit of harnessing technology evolution, eco-friendly measures and
responsible practices to respond to the challenges that abound in
business landscapes.

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”), which demonstrates the Group’s
approach and performance in terms of environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) and sustainable development for the year ended
31 December 2022 (“2022”). For the corporate governance section,
please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” in the Group’s
annual report 2022.

2022 was another remarkable year when multiple nations pledged for a
series of environmental protection commitments, especially the carbon
neutrality targets. In line with the calls of the central government of the
PRC, the Group swiftly responded and implemented effective policies
to integrate the concepts of ESG into its day-to-day operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reporting Boundary

Adopting the operational control approach and adhering to the
Materiality Principle, the Group includes in the Report its major
business contributing to the majority of its annual revenue or
businesses of which the Group holds more than 50% shareholding.
Believing that these major operations caused material social and
environmental impacts that concern its stakeholders, the Group
decided to disclose the following businesses operating in Tianjin, the
PRC in the Report:

e the logistics and supply chain services for finished automobiles
and components (provision of logistics services and supply
chain management, i.e. planning, storage and transportation
management for finished automobiles and components);

e the materials procurement and related logistics services (sale of
raw materials to customers being principally trading companies
and provision of related services of transportation, management,
storage, warehouse supervision and management); and

e the cold chain logistics business.
For the electronic components logistics service business of the Group,

its ESG performance was no longer included in the reporting boundary
in 2022 due to the shareholding changes.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE - HERERES

Reporting Principles

In strict compliance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group has ensured that the
Report is in alignment with the following reporting principles:

Materiality:

By gathering the feedback from various stakeholder groups about
their concerns, interests and expectations in terms of the Group’s
sustainable development, material ESG issues of the Group are
identified and endorsed by it for future strategy development. For
details of the materiality assessment, please refer to the section named
“Stakeholder Engagement”.

Quantitative:

The reporting principle of quantitative was applied and demonstrated
through the disclosure of measurable key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) under the following sections. To ensure that readers can grasp
a better understanding of the Group’s sustainability performance,
detailed disclosure in measurable format can be found in several
performance tables. The standards, methods, assumptions, tools,
and conversion factors used for measuring the KPIs in the Report are
explained in the corresponding context, where applicable.

Balance:

Upholding the good practice of transparent disclosure, the Group
conforms to the principle of balance when preparing the Report
S0 as to describe and indicate to the readers both the outstanding
achievements and room for improvement in terms of the Group’s
sustainability performance in 2022, with an aim to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately influence
the decision or judgment of the Report reader.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Consistency:

To facilitate meaningful self and lateral comparison, the Group has
adopted consistent methodologies for data collation and reporting
framework over the years. If there is any change in the reporting
scope and calculation method, which may affect the comparison with
previous reports, the Group will explain the corresponding data. For
the changes in the reporting scope of 2022 compared to the reporting
scope for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“2021”), please refer to
the section named “Reporting Boundary” above.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS
Governance Structure

The Group has set up an independent robust governance structure to
guarantee that the ESG governance is consistent with our business
strategy and integrated ESG management into our business operation
and decision-making. Bearing ultimate responsibility for all ESG-related
issues, policies and the reporting of the Group, the board of directors
(the “Board”) takes the lead and oversees the execution of the Group’s
sustainability strategy in a top-to-bottom manner. The Board selects
qualified members with appropriate skills, experience, knowledge
and perspectives required in light of the relevant ESG issues. In order
to better manage the Group’s ESG performance, related issues and
potential risks, the Board shall hold meeting at least once a year
to review and identify the materiality, risks and opportunities of the
Group’s ESG issues, and review their performance and progress
against ESG-related targets. In addition to regular inspection and
evaluation of the implementation of the Group’s environmental and
social responsibility system, the Board is also responsible for ensuring
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems,
as well as approving disclosures in the Report.
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The Group has established an ESG Working Group (the “Working
Group”) responsible for implementing specific ESG issues. The
Working Group is composed of the management from subdivisions
with expertise. All members, with a clear labor division, are responsible
for the execution, monitoring and control of the ESG-related work of
each of the business unit. The Working Group cooperates with an
independent third party to collect and analyze ESG data, monitor and
evaluate each department’s ESG performance, keep track of and
review the progress made against each department’s ESG-related
targets, ensure compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations,
and assist in conducting materiality assessment and preparing the
Report. The Working Group is required to hold a meeting at least once
a year to assess the effectiveness of existing policies and procedures
and develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance
of ESG policies. It is also required to report its findings, decisions and
recommendations to the Board at least once a year.

Management Approach and Strategy

Risk management is an essential part in ESG issues, especially for
those risks related to climate change and environmental regulations
established by the government. Committed to integrating its ESG
management approach into enterprise risk management system,
the Group has carefully studied and implemented the measures and
emergency plans built by local governments, aiming to better identify
and address any potential, unknown or actual risks.
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To identify and better understand the Group’s ESG-related risks, as
well as the latest update on ESG laws and regulations that may have
significant impact on the Group’s business, the Board maintains stable
connection with the authorities, engages external experts and holds
regular communication with internal advisory groups to ensure that
important information is shared and passed around the organization.

Meanwhile, when setting up and deciding the long-term development
strategy for its business, the Group is particularly concerned
and prioritized considerations including the government support,
requirements and restrictions on the logistic industry, market
environment for its main business segment, and most importantly,
the environmental impacts caused during the logistics operations.
In addition, the Group also integrates the concerns and interests
of stakeholders reflected in the result of its materiality assessment,
when creating, reviewing and modifying its strategy to ensure a
comprehensive and balanced business plan that is inclusive of
opinions from different perspectives.

Goals and Targets

To steadily advance various tasks and stay in line with the overall
planning of the regional and national units, the Group formulates
long-term plans attentively in undertaking its corporate social
responsibilities.

Recognizing that energy consumption, including the fossil fuels
consumed for vehicle transportation and electricity consumed for
warehouse storage, is one of the most significant environmental
impacts of the logistic industry, the Group is dedicated to control its
energy consumption per thousand square meter, while reducing the
dependence of business operation on resources consumption.
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The Group sets internal ESG KPIs to reduce its negative environmental
impacts to the greatest extent. In particular, KPIs include the electricity
consumption per thousand square meter and the fuel consumption for
vehicles transportation per thousand square meter etc. These KPIs are
reviewed and monitored by the Board through the supervision and the
regular report of the Management, while they are also disclosed in the
annual ESG report of the Group to let its stakeholders scrutinize the
performance and progress of the Group.

Message from the Board

Dear valued stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Group, | am pleased to present
the Report to demonstrate the Group’s improving sustainable
development performance to date.

Building smart industries

Since the beginning of the pandemic, the global supply chain has been
interrupted by the quarantine and lock-down measures in different
countries and regions. In order to maintain stable communications
with suppliers, the Group actively improves its communication with
suppliers by signing memorandums, using digital tools and other
means. Facing operational challenges, we are inspired to double
our efforts to cater and maintain our service reliability. In addition to
the exploration of alternative logistics solutions including the sea-rail
combined transportation, we have also been enhancing our support
to our subsidiaries in developing new businesses and upgrading to
intelligent transformation.

AEBREARRERERE - LB REANHES
BMIER  USARERDHRENAEE
FE - AEME  BREVESEEST
FhHAREERE T FIKEHER AL
HEE - RTRREMEEHESTSAR
EENEEETRREETEEMEE -
BRENMNAKRENFEERE  HE8MER
BEPEE  AERHEFELKENR
BNGER e

et

EX- o h

&
=]
BB BRI

B

RAANEBRRAEEESRE  MAREARH
T RAAKEESBIERARHEERT
EATERRTTRRER o

BREZEX

BRBEBREAR  2HRHEEBERZESM
H B Bl S B SR A S T P T o IR BRAEE
BREAR  AREBARHEEEEA
REBFTAEZL - B RHEmE
B o mHZEENmAKE - BMAEMES
1 BFGERN A R R AT ARG AT SN
BREMmYRER E(BEBE) NRR
S - BAPIIRANA ST 15 B 8 2 )T S A5 HO B
o MERCERTR -

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Offering green business

Taking a further step-up on decarbonization, we have linked our
development targets in seeking sustainability with the ambitious
national carbon neutrality goal, as we are doing our best in getting
a low-carbon fleet as fast as possible and capitalizing on the
opportunities of the transition to a low-carbon economy. By actively
exploring the opportunities to adopt renewable fuels, we hope to
continuously improve our energy consumption rate and reduce
our carbon emissions so as to minimize subsequent environmental
impacts. For more efficient assessment of environmental performance
and review of the effectiveness of policies, we have set quantitative
environmental targets and regularly evaluate their progress to specify
phased improvement measures.

Creating sustainable future

In the post-pandemic era, the ripple effect of the pandemic is still
impacting every corner of the world. As we see opportunities and
challenges coexist in the rapid recovery of the PRC and the world,
we are steadfast in facing the challenges and we will seize the
opportunities to exploring greener solutions to logistics chains and
furthering its collaboration with its customers and suppliers in enabling
an open, inclusive and sustainable business together.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
sincere gratitude to all stakeholders, staff members and business
partners for their dedication and unlimited support to the Group in its
ongoing transition towards sustainable development.

Yang Weihong
Chairman & Executive Director

Tianjin, the PRC, 23 March 2023
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that promoting stakeholder engagement and
being responsive to their concerns is important for long-term success
of the Group. As such, regular, open and constructive dialogues with
its key stakeholders through communication channels listed below are
conducted to understand their expectations, aiming to advance the
sustainable development of the Group.

Stakeholders Expectations and Communication Channels

EAnE=E

AEERE  RERNESEY B IRERH
ENMERERELOE  HAKERGRE
HXWEREE - Filt - AKEEB T
KPR HERRETHEETIERNE
TR M A2 AR M RO ¥ 55 I B AR 2505 1
2 UEFAEENATHEER -

ROEHERBAERE

Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Communication Channels

BHE HERETH BERE

Government and ° Compliance with laws o Supervision on the compliance
regulatory authorities and regulations with local laws and regulations

° Fulfilment of tax obligations

BRREEER o EBSRAEER

o BITHAMER
Shareholders ° Return on investments

° Business ethics

° Information disclosure
[ & o IREMW

. mEEe
. EHEE

Employees ° Compensation and benefits
o Occupational health and safety
(“OHS”)
° Training and development
opportunities

(=] o FHEREA
o BEERER
(fH&%fi}i/\ﬁEJ )

o FIIREREE

° Fulfilment of statutory reporting
requirements

o  EEBETHMIIERERNE

s BITEEBWMBRTE

° Regular reports and
announcements

° General meetings

° Corporate website

s THHRERASF

e BEAE®

LIS E S

° Performance appraisals

° Regular meetings and trainings
° Emails and notice boards

° Team building activities

. EGHE

o EMEBRE
¢ BB EFR
. EHRRED
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Stakeholders
B6oE

Expectations and Concerns
HMEREEE

Communication Channels

BERE

Customers

5F

Suppliers

HER

General public

>
A

Production and service quality
assurance

Protection of customers’ privacy
and rights

HERBRBEERS
RER P ILE KAEF

Fair and open procurement
Mutual beneficial cooperation
Long-term business relationship

N R AFRRE
BERIEE
RHIRBRHIE

Involvement in communities
Business ethics
Environmental protection
awareness

S H RIEE

BERBEE

RIGERESR

Customers’ satisfaction surveys
Customer service hotline
and emails

EFPmEERE
BRI 2GR N B

Open tender for key suppliers
Contracts and agreements
Suppliers’ satisfaction
assessment

Telephone discussions
Face-to-face meetings and
onsite visits

PNk e
AR
(R R B T
TEEH

EHEEZERBEER

Public welfare activities
Corporate website
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Materiality Assessment

The Group conducts regular materiality assessment, to identify its
stakeholders’ main concerns and material interests for response
and reporting. The Group believes that the goal and direction of
sustainable development should be long-term and continuous, while
the implementation of relevant policies should be sustained over time
to ensure their effectiveness. As such, the Board decided to continue
its efforts on addressing the risks and opportunities under the material
topics that were reflected in its materiality assessment, so as to lead
the Group to move towards sustainable development in a consistently
effective manner.

To ensure the accuracy and objectivity of evaluation, the Group
engaged an independent third party in conducting an online materiality
assessment survey. Taking a stepwise approach, a list of ESG issues
were first identified through taking reference of domestic and foreign
reporting guidelines as well as the market concerns of sustainable
development. Selected internal and external key stakeholders were
then invited to provide inputs for evaluation and formulation of the
materiality matrix as below, which was submitted to the Board for
subsequent review.
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Environmental protection

Employment and

labour practices

Operation management

Social responsibility

RERE ERERYE TEH EEERE HEER
1. Air and greenhouse gas 5. Employee remuneration 10. Procurement 17, Community
(“GHG”) emissions and benefits practices investment
1. KRRGZMAAEZERE 5 (ESFHMERF 10. RERIE 17, HEREE
(DRERE D EHEMN
2. Waste treatment 6.  Diversity of 11.  Supplier risk
employees management
2. EBEVRRE 6. BI%nik 1. HEERRER
3. Resources consumption 7.  OHS 12.  Service quality
3. ERHA 7. BEREERSR 12. RKEE
4, Climate-related risks 8.  Employee 13. Safety of goods
management development
and training
4. RIERERER 8. [EEEERKE 13. &Y%d
9. Preventing child and 14. Protection of
forced labour customers’ privacy
9. WLEREIX 14, BELEBRE
1% T
15.  Anti-corruption policies
and whistle-blowing
procedure
15, RESBERBRRIE
16. Critical incident risk
responsiveness
16. ESERELE
According to the outcome, the Group identified four ESG issues of the 1RIE# R A&EE ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%i% 7 IR
most significance, shown as follows: ®otgkEgn - D RIBRSIAT -
12. Service quality 12. RBE=E
13. Safety of goods 13. BEYW%2
16. Critical incident risk responsiveness 16. EERREL A
11. Supplier risk management 1. HEFRRERE
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The review outcomes continue to inform the evolution of the Group’s
ESG commitments, strategies and targets, as well as the prioritization
of its assets allocation so as to align with stakeholders’ expectations.

Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Supporting the United Nations SDGs, the Group believes that
businesses play an important role in contributing to this global agenda
for sustainable development. To this end, the Group conducts an
evaluation on its stakeholders’ opinions on sustainability and aligns its
business and sustainability priorities with the SDGs, so as to identify
SDGs which are of greatest relevance to the Group where it can best
contribute to. According to the results, the Group identifies SDGs 3, 9
and 13 as relevant to its overall sustainability agenda and areas where
it can positively contribute to.

Goal 3: Good Health and Well-Being

To promote the well-being for all, especially for all employees in
this post-pandemic era, the Group attaches great importance in
the daily safeguarding of OHS during operations. In addition to the
emergency plan for epidemic prevention formulated according to
the Joint Prevention and Control Mechanism of the State Council
and the provisions of the local governments, the Group disinfects all
workplaces and goods, and requires employees to keep good hygiene
and undergo regular testing. By strictly implementing the policies, the
Group ensures that the business runs as smoothly as possible.
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Goal 9: Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure

The Group is committed to improving energy efficiency and reducing
GHG emissions by optimizing transportation plans, changing
transportation methods, and improving transportation technology.
Moreover, in order to create new value, the Group has upgraded its
old assets one after another to enhance the hardware level of the
industrial park and promote high quality development.

Goal 13: Climate Action

The Group closely follows the PRC’s 30-60 dual-carbon goal, and
comprehensively examines physical and transformation risks brought
by climate change. Through the formulation of the “Emergency
Management Measures” ( ([EEEE#)E) ), the Group has
strengthened the training of management and drivers to improve their
ability to deal with relevant risks and ensure the safety of the Group’s
personnel and property.

Stakeholders Feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, we welcome stakeholders’
feedback, especially on topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and performance.
Readers are also welcomed to share their views with the Group at
investor@tbtl.cn.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that green operation is essential for the
longevity of business and crucial for creating long-term value
for the community in which it operates. This section mainly
discloses the Group’s policies, practices and quantitative data on
emissions, use of resources, environment and natural resources,
and climate change in 2022. The Group has formulated
“Environmental Policy” ( (3R3%IKE) ) to achieve our goals in
reducing emissions and conserving resources.

Environmental Targets

In order to ensure that we can effectively implement a sustainable
business model, the Group has set a number of environmental
targets based on its development direction and strategic
guidelines, and closely monitors and regularly reviews progress
of the targets. Taking 2021 as the base year, in 2022, the Group
has achieved the targets in the table below. Relevant data and
year-on-year comparisons are presented in subsequent sections.
In order to manage environmental targets more efficiently and
review their progress regularly, with 2022 as the base year, the
Group plans to set new targets and will achieve the new targets
in the table by the year ending 31 December 2027 (“2027"):

Aspects Targets
[E T B

RIROI 81

AEBERE SELEHEERS
RAEEMEE - TEREEHEE
FrEdREAERMEENER - K
AMERWBEAREE 2022 F AR
B BERER - RERRXAER
AR RIRB(EOBER - BHIREL
g - AREDHIECRERRE) -
B IRRAPIE R D BE R &7 40 B R
FHEAER -

RIERE

BRERBMENE BT FE
MHEERN - AEBE D REBHEE
& 75 A FNBLBE 75 #17] 3 % (B3R 3% B
B BUEERTHESEENE
BRI o LA2021 FEEEF - B
2022F - AEBEEBHUTRFE
= - FAEASEMALL L RERNERE
EfYH - AERRERIRIEEZ
MEHBBEEER  ANEBEFEE
NHHBEIZ  LA2022 FARESE
NE E2027F 128318 IE F &
([2027F]) - BREKXFPHFERF -

Progress New Targets
EE AR

Air emissions
to below 0.03 kg/’000m? for sulphur oxides
(“S0Q,"), 23.3 kg/'000m? for nitrogen oxides

(“NO,") and 1.7 kg/’000m? for particulate matter

(“PM”).

SR B ERISRMPFREE D R EEER0.03 T 5%

S TERAREIm((Heyw])  23.3F %,

FERRARAMMTREAD D R17FR/F
FroRRERY) (T[RRI ) -

The emissions intensity of air pollutants reduces

Completed The emissions of air

pollutants per thousand
square meter will be
maintained or reduced.

1 4 PR AR T 5 oK
ERGRYPRE

GHG emissions  The GHG emissions intensity reduces to below

16.5 tonnes CO,e (“tCO,e")/’'000m?

BEREIEN BERBINEEREEER 16.5W — A LR
BEE(M_S(REE]),/ TFIK-
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Aspects Targets Progress New Targets
=] B E£R #FEZE
Non-hazardous  The discharge intensity of non-hazardous Completed  Since the wastewater
wastewater wastewater reduces to below 140.0 m3/’000m? discharge is estimated
based on water
consumption, the
performance at this
level will be followed up
according to the water
consumption target.
BEREK BEFKERBEREZRN 1400 5%/ F BEX MR EERKBE I E AREKE
FFHK e HEFE - BgEEKE
BRRENEERKIR -
Non-hazardous  The discharge intensity of non-hazardous solid ~ Completed The total non-hazardous
waste waste reduces to below 0.6 tonnes/’000m? waste discharge per
thousand square meter
will be maintained or
reduced.
BEREZED BEEEBEEVHREERERER 06, T CEX AR EEFETFHK
FHH, o WEERMBHE o
Diesel The diesel consumption intensity reduces to Completed The total energy
below 19.4 MWh/’000m?. consumption per
thousand square meter
will be maintained or
reduced.
g5 Ll EREEREEEN19.4 KR FEH B R EEET AR
K BEREIERERE -
Gasoline The gasoline consumption intensity reduces to Completed
below 2.8 MWh/' 000m?.
Y FHERTERERSEKR2.8KEN TEHK BEK
Natural gas The natural gas consumption intensity reduces ~ Completed
to below 0.6 MWh/’000m?.
KRR AARERZERESEN0.6KEE/TFH BEK
7
Electricity The electricity consumption intensity reduces to  Completed
below 17.5 MWh/’000m?.
S HEEREREEEMN17.5KEETFFEHK [
Steam The steam consumption intensity reduces to Completed
below 2.0 MWh/’000m?.
xR FOUHRTERESENR2.0KERE, TEFK BEK
Water The water consumption intensity reduces to Completed The total water
below 144.6 m3%’000m?. consumption per
thousand square meter
will be maintained or
reduced.
K FAKETERRKEEN144.6 5K FTEHK BREK AR EEET AR

FEKARE -
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Emissions

In 2022, the Group was in compliance with all applicable legal
and regulatory requirements regarding environmental protection,
and there was no violation of any laws and regulations that
are significant to the Group and related to air emissions, GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including but not limited
to “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China”( {F#E AR KEABEIRIFREE) ), “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”( (R ZE AR EFBE K R)520768%) ), “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution”( { R ZE AR LB AKFEHIAE) ), “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes”( & A R HME &
BRREYDS AIRIBFHIAYA) ) and “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Conserving Energy”( {#E A R EFIBIET4I8ETRE) ).
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The Group’s emissions are summarized in Table 1 below.

Table 1 The Group’s Emissions by Category
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REBNFREHN TR °

T AREIZBREIDNNE

2022 2021
202F 20215
Amount Intensity'  Amount  Intensity
g8 BE! EE nE

Category of

emissions HHER Unit By (Unit/"000 m?) (Unt/000 m

(Bfi/FE5K) (B /FEAX)

Air emissions? BRHER S0, adh kg T 21 0.03 206 0.03

NO, k@] kg Fr 17,8832 20 141599 23.3
PM Br kg 7 1,292.9 1.7 10473 1.7
GHGemissions®  BEREHH®  Scope SE1 (BRAN {C0p W-HlixEE
(Direct emissions) 3,783.4 49 34644 57
Scope 2 (Energy HE2 (ERREEN) 100 W-ElHEE
indlrect emissions) 1,215,6 93 64718 10.7
Scope 3 (Other HE 3 (KRR 100, W&l
indirect emissions) 117.0 0.2 89.6 0.1
Total (Scope 1,2 &3) (&R 2R9) tCOe B-&hEg 11,1160 143 10,025.8 16.5
Non-hazardous EERAK Wastewater Bk m UhK
wastewater* 65,789.0 845 849216 140.0
Non-hazardous BEEEYS General housshold —REENR tonnes i
waste® waste 4134 05 385.3 06

Hazardous waste ~ AEEEY Solic waste BEEEN tonnes I 66 85x10° 08 14x10°

Notes: BfRE -

1. In 2022, the total floor area of the Group was approximately 1. R2022%F  AEEBEMEBEEEEE
778,847.4 m2 (2021: approximately 606,792.3 m?). This data is #) A778,847.4F 77 K (2021 4F ¢
used to calculate intensity data. #1606,792.3 77 K) o HLEIR AR

FTERERIE -
2. The calculation method of air emissions refers to “How to 2. BERVMEETE A RE AT

Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

AR IR - HRREA
i — MR = ¢ RERRAENIEIE
1) -
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GHG emission data are presented in CO,e, with reference
to (including but not limited to) the “GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard” issued by the World
Resources Institute and World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, the “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix
2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the
Stock Exchange, the global warming potential value stated in
the “Fifth Assessment Report” and the “2006 Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories” issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change, the “Notice on the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse
Gas Emissions Reporting by Power Generation Industry for 2023-
2025" ( (BARMH72023-2025F ¥R EREBH MR EE IR A
TERIBAN) ) and “Tianjin Carbon Emission Accounting Guide
for Other Industries (Trial)” ( (REMEMITERPERIZE SR (3
77) ) ) issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC
in 2023 and the carbon emission calculator of the International
Civil Aviation Organization.

Most of the wastewater generated by the Group is discharged
into the municipal sewage system. Wastewater discharges from
each segment are assumed to be equal to consumption, except
for segments which are able to obtain complete wastewater
discharges records.

General household waste refers to municipal solid waste. The
discharge did not include medical waste and household waste
in the lockdown area in 2022, which were centrally processed
by designated institutions. Affected by the pandemic situation
in the PRC, the Group changed its recycling behavior and only
recycled approximately 0.01 tonnes of waste paper in 2022 (the
total amount of waste recycled in 2021 was approximately 10.0
tonnes).
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Air and GHG Emissions

The exhaust gas generated by the Group included SO,, NO,
and PM, mainly from the fuel consumption of vehicles used for
transportation purposes and the fuel consumption of forklifts
in workplaces. In 2022, the Group’s total air emissions slightly
increased compared to 2021. These changes were due to the
increase in vehicle transportation demand and loading and
unloading operations, as well as the increase in idling and cooling
of trucks, resulting in an increase in fuel consumption.

The Group’s GHG emissions mainly came from the diesel and
gasoline consumption of automobiles and forklifts, natural gas
consumption for heating (Scope 1), purchased electricity and
steam consumption (Scope 2), waste paper landfills and business
air travel (Scope 3). In 2022, this Report newly disclosed the
energy indirect emissions generated by purchased steam. To
improve accuracy, this Report also excluded other indirect
discharges related to the treatment of fresh water and sewage.
Affected by these issues, the total amount of GHG of the Group
increased by about 10.9% compared with 2021. In response
to the country’s goal of achieving carbon neutrality in 2060 and
in order to achieve internal environmental targets, the Group is
dedicated to monitoring and controlling its direct emissions from
vehicle use for transportation through key approaches as follows:

e  Optimization: Avoid unnecessary transportation by utilizing
appropriate logistical planning, arranging transportation
time schedule, maximizing loading rates and transportation
efficiency.

R HERERES

JER B E RN
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e  Shifts: Adopt more environmentally smart transportation
modes and develop new transportation combinations in
support of the reformation of emission reduction standards
and fuel efficiency standards.

e |mprovement: Improve and develop innovative technologies
for transportation such as more efficient alternative energy
sources and upgraded modern fleet.

Further, drivers are encouraged and required to maintain good
driving habits, including turning off idling engines when stopping
and not rushing to brake and accelerate, so as to reduce fuel
loss, thereby lowering air emissions. Drivers are also required
to ensure all vehicles are in good conditions in order to improve
energy efficiency and reduce fuel consumption. Other measures
to save electricity and heat energy will be further explained in the
next subsection “Use of Resources”.

In order to reduce GHG emissions from business travel, the
Group advised its employees to reduce unnecessary business air
travel and work together through online communication software
as much as possible.

Understanding that refrigerants used in cold storage such
as CFCs and HCFCs impose threat to ozone depletion and
global warming, the Group adopts liquid ammonia as an
alternative refrigerant and makes certain the proper preservation
of refrigerant in storage tanks, compressors, evaporative
condensers and other refrigeration equipment, and purposely
separates the refrigerating station from other zones, so as to
reduce the hazard caused by refrigerant leakage.
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Wastewater and Solid Waste

The wastewater discharged by the Group mainly included
household sewage generated from daily operations, and no large
amount of hazardous wastewater was discharged. Due to the
change in the disclosure scope of the Report, the wastewater
discharge in 2022 decreased by approximately 22.5% compared
with 2021.

To better manage its wastewater and prevent the contamination
of natural water bodies from its potential leakage, the Group
installs professional containers for grease separation and storage.
Meanwhile, a professional agency that is approved by the local
environmental protection bureau is appointed for examining
and supporting sewage treatment on an annual basis, thus
minimizing the Group’s environmental impact. The Group has
also taken effective measures to reduce water consumption
in daily operations, the details are further explained in the next
subsection “Use of Resources”.

The solid waste generated by the Group was mainly general
household waste and a small amount of hazardous solid waste
generated from daily operations. Since the Group optimized the
waste statistics system in 2022, the discharge of non-hazardous
waste and hazardous waste in 2022 both increased compared to
2021.
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The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group was collected
and disposed of by a professional third party after classification.
Meanwhile, the hazardous waste arose from operation was
properly handled according to the Group’s internal procedure,
and qualified third parties were assigned for collection and
disposal. In realizing its targets, the Group embraces the concept
of “3R Principle — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” and actively
instils the recycling principle into its daily operations.

Noise

In 2022, the noise of the business activities of the Group were
mainly from the operations of machinery in the warehouse
operating zone, vehicle transportation and loading and unloading
practices, as well as other engineering construction sources.

Geared toward lowering its noise impacts, the Group establishes
internal policies and assigns dedicated personnel to carry out
daily inspections of the equipment, in order to spot and repair
any irregularities timely. Meanwhile, the Group also installs noise
barriers and explosion-proof doors as well as windows between
the refrigerating station and the control room in accordance with
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise” ( { % A & F1
BIIRIERES 05785 ) ) and other relevant national regulations.
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Use of Resources

In order to effectively manage resource consumption, the Group
has established and monitored reasonable KPIs to regulate
procurement behavior and resource consumption, so as to
continuously improve the efficiency of resource use.

In 2022, the primary resources consumed by the Group were
diesel, gasoline, natural gas, electricity, steam, water, packaging
materials and paper. The Group’s usage of different resources is
presented in Table 2.

Table 2 The Group’s Total Use of Resources by Category

R HERERES

BIRfEHA

SBMERERBERE  AEBEEB
B E M ESR A IR BE B A IR
RERBIANRERBER  EMA
e B RERME -

20224 - REBEFMERENEESR
BARYEH Al RAR &
EARK - BEMBREAR K2
FIHAEBTRERNERE -

R2.ASEZBERZ N EREA

2

2022 2021
20226 20215

Amount Intensity Amount Intensity
#E BE g5 nE
Use of Resources BRGEA Unit By (Unit/'000 m?) (Unit/'000 m?)
(Bf/FFHR) (Bfr/FERK)

Direct energy Diesel ERRRERES K8 MWh KR
consumption ¢ 14,259.4 18.3 11,7556 19.4
Gasoline Rl MWh JKEE 828.3 14 1,726.6 28

Natural AR MWh KR
gas 235.5 0.3 322.2 05

Indirect energy Electricity — MiZsFEE EN MWh KEE
consumption 11,839.8 15.2 10,607.8 17.5
Steam’ BA7 MWh KEE 1,340.8 1.7 1,237.2 2.0

Total energy HRERAE MWh KRB
consumption 28,503.8 36.6 25,649.4 42.3
Water X m? N 67,870.0 87.1 87,743.0 144.6
Packaging Byplastic ~ B### 2B tonnes W 0.03 3.9x10° 10.5 1.7x10?
materials By paper Fige] tonnes W 0.03 3.9x10° S S
By wood K tonnes i = - 120.0 0.2
Paper it kg TR 20,433.6 26.2 5,158.0 8.5
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Notes:

To ensure consistency, starting from 2022, direct energy
consumption data has been uniformly converted into MWh based
on the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International
Energy Agency, and the corresponding 2021 data was
recalculated. The breakdown of energy consumption in 2022 and
2021 is as follows:

° Diesel: approximately 1,332,253.6 L (2022), approximately
1,098,323.1 L (2021);

e  (Gasoline: approximately 85,466.9 L (2022), approximately
178,157.3 L (2021);

° Natural gas: approximately 22,520.0 m?®(2022),
approximately 30,805.0 m®(2021).

In order to record the total consumption and intensity of steam
accurately, since 2022, the data of steam consumption has been
converted into MWh in accordance with the “General Guideline
of the Greenhouse Gas Emissions Accounting and Reporting
for Enterprises — Power Generating Equipment” and the “Energy
Statistics Manual” published by the International Energy Agency,
and the corresponding figures of 2021 have been recalculated.
The breakdown of steam consumption in 2022 and 2021 is as
follows:

. Steam: approximately 1,708 tonnes (2022), approximately
1,576 tonnes (2021).
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Direct energy

The Group mainly uses gasoline and diesel for vehicle
transportation and loading and unloading practices, while
natural gas is used for heating in daily operations. The diesel
consumption of the Group in 2022 recorded a slightly increase
as compared with 2021, which was due to the increase in the
demand for vehicle transportation and loading and unloading
practices and increased idling and cooling of trucks. Due to
changes in the disclosure scope of the Group, the gasoline and
natural gas consumption decreased as compared to 2021. To
better monitor and control its energy consumption performance,
the Group will put more focus on the sustainable solutions
by upgrading its vehicle fleet in terms of energy efficiency
improvement and grasping any opportunities for the use of
renewable energy sources and the wide application of electric
vehicles.

Electricity

The Group’s consumption of electricity mainly comes from
the daily operation of warehouses. In 2022, the electricity
consumption of the Group was slightly increased compared
to 2021. Geared toward lowering the electricity consumption
and bettering the performance in decarbonization, the Group
improved the rules and regulations and formulated specific
measures for energy saving and consumption reduction for
equipment in office zone, and requires all of its subsidiaries to
stringently comply with the Group’s energy saving policy. The
relevant measures including but not limited to:

e Fully utilize the natural light whenever applicable;

e Switch off all idling electricity appliances including lights and
air conditioners;
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Control and adjust the operation time of refrigerating
facilities in warehouse;

Maintain and replace the equipment regularly to improve the
performance of equipment;

Replace power-intensive lightings by energy efficient LED
lights;

Encourage employees to adopt natural ventilation or
ventilation fans for areas instead of air-conditioning when
applicable; and

Actively introduce new technology for energy saving, explore
the feasibility on the use of renewable energy in operations.

Steam

The steam consumption of the Group is mainly used for indoor
heating in winter. In 2022, The steam consumption of Group has
slightly increased as compared to 2021, which was due to the
gradual increase in operating volume in the winter of 2022, thus
increasing the demand of heat supply. In order to reduce steam
consumption, the Group has implemented relevant measures as

follows:

e  Clean heating radiator to increase its heat efficiency; and

e Repair heating pipes to save energy and reduce consumption.
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Water

The Group’s main sources of water consumption are the
daily operation, living and epidemic prevention. Based on the
geographical location of the Group’s operation scope, the Group
did not experienced any difficulty in obtaining suitable water
source in 2022. Due to the changes in the scope of disclosure,
the consumption of water in 2022 was decreased as compared
to 2021. The Group emphasizes on the improvement of water
conservation and utilization efficiency. Following its internal
policies, the Group provides water awareness training to its
employees and accesses the conservation performance among
employees regularly. The Group also posted signs in prominent
places to disseminate water saving concept throughout the
organization.

Packaging materials

In 2022, the amount of packaging materials used by the Group
recorded a significant decrease, with only a small amount of
plastic bags and cartons being used. Such changes were due
to the logistics service business of electronic components which
used to be the major consumer of packaging materials has been
excluded from the scope of disclosure. While the consumption of
packaging materials is inevitable to its logistic business activities,
the Group takes the responsibility for being conscious about the
use of packaging materials. As such, the Group will continue
to research and apply alternative packaging materials made of
recyclable content, striving to minimize its environmental footprint
to the largest extent.
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Paper

Paper was mostly used in the Group for its administrative work.
In 2022, the amount of paper consumed by the Group increased
significantly as compared to 2021. This was due to that the
Group has optimized the data collection system to count the
paper consumption of all segments. To keep up its effort in
driving down the consumption of paper and other paper-made
products, the Group continues to implement a series of effective
internal measures to regulate its employees’ practices and
business operations, including but not limited to:

e  Set double-side printing as the default mode of the printers;

e  Collect single-sided paper for reuse and recycling; and

e |mprove the utilization rate of platforms such as corporate
mailboxes, and collaborative workspace applications.

The Environment and Natural Resources

As a leading logistics group that moves goods across countries
and provides a wide range of logistics solutions and services,
the Group deeply understands its impact on the environment.
Throughout the organization, employees are encouraged to
follow the Group’s sustainability strategies and reminded to
achieve its environmental targets. The Group believes that
behavioural change starts with knowledge, and thus it equips
its employees who play a key role in daily business actions with
internal programmes to advance their environmental awareness
and encourage them to make continuous changes. The Group is
accredited with 1ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
certification.
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According to the analysis of its business practices, the relatively
significant environmental impacts of the Group were mainly the
air and GHG emissions arose from the consumption of fossil
fuels and electricity during operations in 2022. In light of these,
the Group is determined to control its procurement process
of vehicles and refrigerators to ensure that the priority can be
given to the products with better environmental performance.
Meanwhile, the Group has also been active in exploring the
possibility of tapping into the application of renewable energy and
acquiring vehicles fuelled by cleaner new energy instead of fossil
fuels.

The Group resolutely puts an end to extravagance and waste,
and strictly implements the “Work Plan for Anti-Food Waste
and Food Conservation in Teda Holding System” ( (=L
BREFRERREEBREAMIBIESZE) ). The Group
makes full use of the official website and other publicity media
to disseminate public service advertisements, and vigorously
advocates the concept of cherishing food. The Group has also
established an implementation mechanism for anti-food waste
and food conservation, using scientific and technological means
to strengthen supervision and inspection, and makes prompt
reminders when problems are found.

Climate Change

As the impact of climate change gradually emerges, it has
become an urgent need and common expectation of all countries
to reduce carbon emissions. In support of the national carbon
goal and in response to the gradually increasing demand from
investors and the wider society, the Group has formulated the
“Climate Change Policy” ( (RIEE{LEK) ), and made a view of
different climate scenarios and transition pathways, and identified
several physical and transition risks related to its business that
may cause significant impact according to the international
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD”).
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Physical risks

The increase in frequency of extreme weather events such as
storms, flooding, heat and cold wave, etc., may significantly
affect the transport conditions no matter on ground, air or water,
and subsequently the Group’s supply chain and operation
safety. In response to the above risks, the Group has formulated
the “Emergency Management Measures” ( {JEZEIEHE) ),
organized the formulation of emergency response plans, and
provided its management and drivers comprehensive training
regularly on how to cope with emergencies and protect its
personal and property safety. The Group also maintains close
communications with customers to ensure flexible and resilient
transport solutions when Group’s supply chain is affected.

Transition risks

Meanwhile, regulations and laws on climate change are also
becoming more stringent. The PRC government has made
commitment to achieve carbon emission peak by 2030 and
carbon neutral by 2060. The Group may be subject to the
mandatory disclosure of its full scope of carbon emissions. In
addition, the enactment of carbon pricing or carbon tax may
also lead to the raise in price of raw materials or the replacement
of more expensive alternatives. As these transition risks are
potentially going to cause increasing operating cost and lower
revenue, the Group is aware of the significance and urgency to
pay particular attention decarbonizing its operations and to grasp
the opportunity to master some new low-carbon technologies
which can greatly enhance its competitive advantage and
industry leading position.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to building a strong relationship with
various stakeholders, and incorporating sustainable practices
into our value chain. This section primarily discloses the Group’s
policy, practices and quantitative data regarding employment
and labour practices, operating practices as well as community
investment in 2022.

Employment and Labour Practices

As a responsible business enterprise, the Group is committed
to the empowerment and care for all, especially its employees.
The Group believes that it has the responsibility to support
and enhance the well-being of its employees and bring about
positive shared value to them. To this end, the Group has been
endeavouring to create a sound working environment, in which
the OHS of employees, diversity and inclusion in the workplace,
as well as the overall well-being of all its workers are respected
and promoted.

Employment

The Group views talents as its most valuable assets and the
key driving factor in ensuring the success and sustainable
development of the Group. In 2022, the Group has 1,265
employees within the reporting scope (2021:1,400 employees).
The Group’s number of employees reduced slightly due to the
changes in the scope of disclosures. More details can be found
in Table 3 in “APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE”.
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The Group’s human resources department is responsible for
reviewing and updating relevant policies regularly in accordance
with the latest laws and regulations. In 2022, the Group abided
by the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC that were
material to the Group’s business, including but not limited to
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (R A R
ME & EHE) ), “Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ((FEARENMHLEEERE) ), “Employment
Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (R A Rt
MEFEREE) ) and “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ( (P EE AR KB GRIRIE) ).

Recruitment and promotion

The Group has stated the labour and personnel system in its
Employee Handbook ( & TF ) ), which specifies the detailed
recruitment procedures and promotion requirements of the
Group. To attract talents who are in sync with the core culture
of the Group, the Group selects applicants through a rigorous
selection process, including written examination of professional
skills, comprehensive ability tests and supervisor interviews.

Besides, the Group has plans and budgets to conduct
performance appraisals. Recognizing the employees who have
demonstrated consistently strong performance and became the
role models, the Group takes proactive initiatives to offer them
management positions. Concerning the career growth of junior
employees, the Group provides a clear career development path,
offering promotion and pay raise for the outstanding employees
who have served the Group for over three years.
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Compensation and dismissal

According to the Group’s “salary management system”, the salary
composition is divided into monthly basic salary, monthly bonus
and performance bonus. “Annual salary system” is implemented
for the senior management, in which salary standards are
approved by the Board. Meanwhile, a “job performance-based
salary system” is implemented for middle-management and
general employees, of which salaries are based on employees’
performances and determined by the general manager. To
motivate, reward, and recognize the existing employees who
have made significant contributions to the Group, compensation
reviews and salary adjustments are conducted regularly with
reference to the overall market levels, inflation rate, profitability of
the Group and employee’s past performance.

Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract is strictly
based on reasonable and lawful grounds according to the
“labour and personnel system” of the Group, and relevant laws
and regulations. The Group prohibits any kinds of unlawful or
unreasonable dismissals. In 2022, the Group has a loss of 76
employees in total within the reporting scope, the employee
turnover rate is approximately 6.01% (2021: a loss of 212
employees in total, the employee turnover rate is approximately
15.14%). More details about the employee turnover rate can be
found in Table 4 in “APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE”.

Working hours and rest periods

Reasonable working hours and rest periods are arranged for the
employees of the Group in accordance with the “Regulations
of the State Council on the Hours of Work of Employees” (
TR T TERREARE) ). The Group details policies
in relation to business trips, leave, compensation leave and
overtime working through “Attendance Management Measures
(Revised)"( (EHEREPE (18F]) ) ). Overtime working is
not encouraged by the Group, yet if employees need to work
overtime to finish their tasks, corresponding compensation such
as overtime pay or extra leave will be made. According to the
“Detailed Implementation Rules of Leave” ( (IREREMAHAN) ),
in addition to basic paid annual leave and statutory holidays
stipulated by the local governments, employees are also entitled
to additional leave benefits such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and compassionate leave.
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Equal-opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is dedicated
to developing a diverse and inclusive workforce of engaged
employees. The “guidance on professional conducts” in the
Group’s “Employee Handbook” ( { & TF1ft) ) promotes anti-
discrimination, diversity and equal opportunity in all human
resources and employment decisions. Equal opportunity
policies are formulated in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. The human resources department is responsible
for managing the relevant internal policies and monitoring the
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, as well as
addressing any incidences that arise.

The Group has zero tolerance for any form of discrimination
which can hinder the Group’s development by damaging its
diverse teams and inclusive cultures. Training and promotion
opportunities, dismissals and retirement policies are determined
irrespective of employees’ gender, race, age, disability, family
status, marital status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs,
nationality or any other non-job-related factors in all business
units. Employees are encouraged to voice out and report any
discrimination or harassment during work.

Benefits and welfare

The Group provides its employees with mandatory social
insurance to support their quality of life in accordance with the
relevant national laws and regulations. To enable its people to
thrive in the workplace, the Group also strives to strengthen
the sense of belonging of its employees by providing them
with pension insurance, unemployment insurance, labour injury
insurance, medical insurance, housing fund, housing subsidies,
annual physical examination and special holidays subsidies.

In 2022, the Group distributed festive gifts to employees at
important festivals such as the Spring Festival and the Mid-
autumn Festival, and organized activities such as writing Fu
characters and sending Spring couplets.
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Health and Safety

As a logistic business enterprise, keeping its employees safe is
the highest priority and an ethical responsibility for the Group.
In 2022, the Group was in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to providing a safe working environment
and protecting the employees from occupational hazards that
have a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited
to “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”
((REARAMBL2LEEEL) ), “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”
((PEARAMBEBZEBPIEA) ), “Regulations of Tianjin
Municipality on Work Safety” ( {RZEM L2 AEEKH) ), “Interim
Provisions on the Investigation and Control of Safety Accidents
(SAWS Order No. 16)" (( X2 EEEMEBHEREE TR
E) (#F1655%)), “Guideline of China Occupational Safety and
Health Management System” ( { (b EZ 2 A EZE(LERE
#) ) and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance” ( { 15
TRERIEB) ).

The Group formulates a comprehensive mechanism and stringent
safety and labour practice standards, namely “occupational
health management system” in “Employee Handbook” ( { &
TF) ), to minimize the risk of accidents at workplace and
enhance employees’ health and safety awareness. We review
relevant policies and the necessity of health and safety practices
regularly to ensure continuous improvements of our health
and safety standards. A 24-hour emergency hotline and the
“Emergency Response Plan” ( (Z=# E{FEZTEZ) ), which
covers a wide range of incidents and calamities, are also set up
to ensure the coordination among all functional departments in
case of any emergencies.

Focusing on embedding a zero harm culture through proactive
leadership, establishes its internal health and safety management
committee to protect the occupational safety of employees.
The safety management committee formed by the managers
of various departments is responsible for the prevention and
control of occupational diseases, managing work-related health
issues, organizing safety training courses and reporting to the
directors of the Group regularly on occupational safety related
issues. Meanwhile, the Group has obtained certification of ISO
45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System,
which showcases the Group’s achievements in the aspects of
occupational health and management.
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To ensure the safety of workers during daily operations, the
Group has established “Rules for the Screening and Elimination
of Hidden Risks of Accidents”( { Fil[E BHEREINE) ),
clarifying the forms, cycles, contents and standards that need to
be in accordance with the screening of hidden risks. The Group
has also established a series of standard operating procedures
to provide guidance for safe operation in the business of logistics
and warehousing services. For instance, water tanks, storage
batteries, engine oil, fuel oil and tires of the vehicles are checked
in advance every day to ensure that all vehicles are absolutely
safe. Regular inspections and maintenance of vehicles for
transportation are carried out on a weekly, monthly and quarterly
basis. Through daily morning assemblies, the Group assesses
its employees’ physiological and mental state. In the meantime,
to ensure the safe use of working trolleys and improve operation
efficiency, clean paths are kept at both ends of the goods racks
to maintain smooth passage between the working area and the
storage area.

Aiming to achieve an accident-free workplace, the Group has
established “Safety Production System Management Measures”
((EREEHEEERIE) ), and it is committed to continuing
to upskill the managers to integrate critical control measures in
business operations. The Group also conducts safety trainings for
employees at least once a year through “Management Measures
on Safety Education and Training” ( { Z & E EZIIEIRIE) ),
which are suitable for their positions, and organizes reviews on
accident cases to enhance the safety awareness of employees
and prevent accidents from happening. In the past three years
including 2022, the Group recorded zero work-related fatalities.
In 2022, the Group recorded 4 work-related injury cases with 4
employees injured, causing 397 workdays lost (2021: 5 work-
related injury cases with 5 employees injured, causing 287
workdays lost).
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Responding to the pandemic

In 2022, the Group promoted regular epidemic prevention and
control, sought to support its employees through the crisis and
ensure everyone’s health, safety and wellbeing are taken care
of. In response to the requirements of the local authority, the
Group implements a series of prevention measures to safeguard
the safety of employees while maintaining the stable business
continuity of the Group.

e (Conduct risk assessments in advance and formulate
contingency plans for epidemic prevention;

e Uphold the principle of social distancing, control the flow of
people and prevent the gathering of employees;

e  Sanitize the workplace on a regular basis;

e Enact body temperature screening and show health code
before the entrance of all workplaces;

e Require disinfected certificates for all goods before
acceptance;

e Require all employees and customers to wear masks
properly at all times during contact;

e Be equipped with sufficient masks, gloves, disinfectants and
other necessary prevention and control materials; and

e Require all delivery-related personnel to conduct nucleic
acids tests regularly.
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As business resume in the post-pandemic era, the Group enacts
a series of policies to ensure the smooth running of business
while safeguarding the health of its employees and clients. In
particular, on the premise of adhering to the requirements of
epidemic prevention and control, the Group provides supporting
services for customers on a duty-shift system. Meanwhile,
the Group keeps on its efforts on the promotion of epidemic
prevention and control awareness as well as minimizes
unnecessary face-to-face meetings through the uptake of digital
communication means.

Development and Training

Facilitating its employees to thrive, the Group sees training as
a strategic investment which benefits the mutual growth of
employees as well as the Group itself. To this end, the Group
has established “Recruitment and Employment Management
Measures (Trial)"( (IFFIEEHIEE (F1T) ) ), which details training
contents and forms, and provides guidance for each department
to conduct training activities effectively. The human resources
department is the originator of the training, other departments
are responsible for assisting the human resources department to
implement the training programme.

The Group’s training system is divided into pre-job training,
skill training, special training and external training. Normally, a
complete induction training (introducing the corporate culture,
organizational structure and knowledge related to OHS) is
provided to the new hires, while non-scheduled profession-
oriented courses are offered to the experienced employees
according to corporate and individual needs. To further enhance
the professional skills of its employees and meet the Group’s
development goal, employees are highly motivated to attend
external training courses and take professional qualification
examinations. The training results will be included in the training
file of each employee as important evidence for employee
performance assessment, formal employment, promotion etc.
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In 2022, a total of 216 employees of the Group received 4,305
hours of training (2021: 865 employees, 14,427 hours of
training), including but not limited to courses of induction training,
promotion training, quality control training, health and safety
training and systems management training. Affected by the
pandemic, the Group reduces the number of gatherings, resulting
in a reduction in the number of trained employees and training
hours in 2022. More details regarding the employees receiving
training can be found in Table 5 in “APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE
TABLE”.

Labour Standards

The Group has zero tolerance to the illegal employment of child
labour, underage workers and forced labour. In 2022, the Group
was in compliance with applicable laws and regulations in relation
to the prevention of child and forced labour that have a significant
impact on the Group, including but not limited to “Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China” ( (FREARKEFELHNE) )
and “Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” ( {221t
FAREZEIHRE) ).

According to its internal policies, the human resources
department is responsible for requiring all job applicants to
provide valid identity documents to ensure that they are lawfully
employable prior to confirmation of any employment. The
human resources department is also responsible for maintaining
and reviewing the employee records. To avoid any violation of
the labour standards and protect employees’ legal rights and
interests, the Group’s employees strictly regulate practices in
relation to working hours and rest periods. More details can be
found in the section headed “Employment — Working hours and
rest periods” above. Once the Group identifies any case which
violates the relevant labour laws, regulations or standards, the
relevant employment contract will be terminated at once and the
relevant employees responsible for the management of human
resources will be disciplined accordingly.
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Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

As a responsible logistic business enterprise, the Group
collaborates with a wide range of suppliers and purchases
products including vehicles and its parts, as well as raw materials
for steel production and frozen meat. The Group recognizes that
its procurement decisions can cause significant environmental
and social impacts, therefore it strives to uphold its high
standards of business conduct along its supply chain. The Group
mainly maintains stable, secure and effective partnership with
suppliers by strictly aligning them with the Group’s strict “Supplier
Conduct Code” ( (#fERTTAZER) ). This code provides clear
guidance about the Group’s commitments and expectations on
sustainability, including the respect for human rights especially
for their employees and the compliance with local environmental
protection laws and regulations.

The Group has established “Procurement Management
Measures”( (EREEEIZ##%) ), in which the designated personnel
take responsibility for procurement, and its principles, ways and
procedures are standardized to ensure the normal supply of
materials and services. The Group’s general office selects based
on the result of the Preliminary Investigation Report of each
candidate’s suppliers prepared by the Operation Department,
listing the potential partners’ basic business information, licences,
operational and financial performances, as well as the involved
noncompliance or legal cases. Besides, the Group has a qualified
supplier list that will be reviewed annually against four main
aspects, namely regulatory compliance, employee rights, health
and safety and environmental protection, to ensure all suppliers’
performances meet the Group’s standards. In promotion of green
and sustainable procurement practices, the Group prioritizes
goods with origins that are conforming to the international
production safety standards during procurement, while putting
the collaboration with suppliers with green and eco-friendly
awareness in the first place during suppliers selection.
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To manage the potential environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, the Group implements a differentiated management
strategy for its suppliers to identify their latent risks and ensure
they operate in accordance with the “Supplier Code Conduct”
( (HFERTTAXER]) ). In particular, a detailed list of risk and
prevention and control measures are constructed in managing
the potential significant risks of the cold chain logistic business
from three perspectives: procurement, storage and sales. In the
meantime, audits and evaluations are conducted by the Group’s
legal department jointly with the finance department to ensure
no illegal activities are involved in the partnership. Information
of suppliers who provide products or services to the Group is
reviewed regularly to monitor the effectiveness of the supplier
code conduct.

The Group maintained a stable business relationship with all its
suppliers. The Group’s number of suppliers reduced in 2022
due to the changes in the scope of disclosures. There are
118 suppliers in the PRC (2021: 251 suppliers in the PRC, 16
suppliers in Hong Kong) in total, to which the aforementioned
suppliers” management policies are applied.

To keep up the stable communication with its suppliers, the
Group signs the memorandum with its suppliers and actively
communicates with them through digital means such as phone
calls, emails, instant messages and video conference especially
during the times of pandemic. Meanwhile, regular on-site visits
are also conducted by the operation department for more
efficient communication and review of performance from time to
time.
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Product Responsibility

As a national 5A-level integrated service logistics company, the
Group has been invariably committed to providing its customers
with people-oriented, tailor-made and professional services.
The Group has formulated relevant policies, kept reviewing its
services and making corresponding improvements from the ESG
perspectives, which allows the Group to refine its operations on a
continuous basis and serve its customers politely and compliantly
in compliance with the strict regulations in various national
jurisdictions.
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Certificate of National Standards Assessment GB/T 19680-2013
GB/T 19680-2013 B {Z T R &

Adhering to the reporting principle of materiality, policies and
approaches regarding product recalls, advertising and labelling,
which are not material to the Group given its business nature,
are not disclosed in this section. In 2022, the Group was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
health and safety, advertising, intellectual property, labelling
and privacy matters of its products and services that are
material to the Group, including but not limited to “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” ((FEARAFBIEEEEZREZE) ) and
“Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {fFZE AR
HABEEIE) ).
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Quality of Service

In order to enhance the safety and high quality of its logistics
and warehouse services during operations and aftersales, all
logistics and warehousing work before the official delivery to end
customers must be operated by designated supporting service
providers approved by the management. The Group upholds
the concept of precautionary principle during its daily operations,
with the potential risks prejudged beforehand, whole process
supervision during projects and the active review afterwards as
its main responsibility concepts. The Group has obtained the
certification of ISO9001 Quality Management System. The Group
mainly provides services and does not manufacture goods. In
2022, the Group did not have any recalls due to safety and health
related matters (2021: no recalls).

In order to maintain stable service quality even during the
disturbance of the pandemic, the Group actively explores multiple
logistics solutions such as railway, road and searail combined
transportation etc. to preserve the continuous supply of goods.
Meanwhile, the Group also expands the diversity of its supplier-
client network and explores a new supply chain model with the
adaptation of digital storage technologies in response to the fast-
changing market demand.

Transportation and Safety of Storage

To track the location of vehicles and goods in real time, the
Group has built the monitoring system and cargo tracking
system, which enables the Group to have timely access to the
status of cargo transportation. To ensure the safety of goods
during transportation, dash cams are set up to inspect and
record the condition of the transporting vehicles, while devices
are adopted to prevent accidents such as the dropout of head
and trailer as well as forgetting to close the flying wing.
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To ensure the safety and strengthen the security of goods,
an all-day security inspection system is established within the
warehouse area, while special inspections are carried out on
a quarterly basis. More than 42 sets of cameras and ancillary
equipment were installed and renewed to ensure that all areas
in the general bonded warehouse of the Group are under
surveillance. To ensure the safety of goods in the warehouse,
written documents such as packing list and inspection report
of the goods are required and strictly regulated by the Group.
Unpacking inspections are performed as well to identify and
manage any incoming goods with hazardous substances.

Complaints

Dedicating to its customer service optimization, the Group values
customer feedback and formulates a series of customer service
management systems and maintains continuous dialogues with
its customers. Once any substantiated complaint is received,
specific departments of the Group are responsible for dealing
with the case and responding to the customer with clear plans for
product return, exchange or compensation in a timely manner. In
2022, the Group did not receive any substantial complaints about
the service quality (2021: no complaints), and the customer
satisfaction remained at a high level according to the results of
customer surveys.

Privacy Matters

It is crucial for the Group to safeguard the security of its business
data and the privacy of its customers to prevent any potential
losses. Striving to protect all sensitive data, the Group abides
by the relevant laws and regulations such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” ( (FEARKEMBEEEEERIREE) ). The
information management department formulates and monitors
the implementation of the strict policies to safeguard clients’
privacy and the internal information of the Group. A network data
centre is established to ensure the cyber security of the Group,
while risk management and technical incident recovery plans
are developed to protect personal data and mitigate losses in
case of any accidents. Meanwhile, a confidentially agreement is
normally signed with relevant parties for business that ensures
no disclosure of any sensitive data to the third-party without
authorization.
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Intellectual Property Rights

In order to prevent infringement, the Group has established the
“Software Legalization Responsibility System” ( (&4 IERR{L T 1E
ETHIEZ) ). Employees shall sign the “Letter of Commitment to
Use the Legitimate Software” ( ({8 F IEMRENFHFEE ) ) for using
the software, strictly abide by the relevant regulations regarding
the software legalization, and shall not install or uninstall the
software on the computer without permission. The corresponding
punishment shall be given according to the circumstances if an
employee is found to be using pirated software.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that the continued success of a business is
built on the stakeholders’ trust and confidence. To conduct its
business with the highest standards of ethics and integrity, the
Group strictly adheres to the local laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering which have a
material impact on the Group, including but not limited to “Anti-
Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {FZEAR
HAMBERBHE) ), “Anti-money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ( {(FE ARKMBEREEIX) ), “Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery” ( B IErRg %
BRERIT AMETIRE) ), “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( {FEAREFMBERTEEHF
&) ), “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” (Cap. 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance” (Cap. 615 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

In 2022, the Group had no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees
(2021: no cases).
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The Group strictly regulates its business processes and employee
behaviour based on the code of conduct as clearly listed in its
“Employee Handbook” ( { & TF1f) ). The Business Department
is responsible for conducting risk prevention measures including
monthly self-inspection, legal and financial control of all business
units involved in lawsuits and the use of funds to prevent any
suspicious deals or transactions.

Meanwhile, the Group sets up a “Whistleblowing System” ( (£
RHIEZ ) ) and assigns specific discipline employees for the
investigation and handling of suspected activities. Employees can
report directly to their supervisors or the discipline employees,
who will then investigate and verify the related evidence
and report to the Group’s discipline department and the
management. Where any crime is substantiated by the Group,
a report will be submitted promptly to relevant regulators or law
enforcement authorities when the management considers it
necessary. To monitor the effectiveness of the whistleblowing
policy, all complaints are reviewed regularly to identify any pattern
of alleged improprieties that need to be addressed.

To raise their awareness on business ethics from time to time,
the Group organizes training activities at least once a year for its
employees and directors, and arranges them to learn and refresh
their memories on the national anti-corruption policies and the
Group’s internal code of conduct. In 2022, 40 employees of
the Group received a total of approximately 69 hours of anti-
corruption training, including but not limited to conferences on
integrity building and watching anti-corruption warnings and
records on videos.
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Community
Community Investment

As a good corporate citizen, the Group still focuses on its
support of the local communities as this is an important part of its
social license to operate. The Group has formulated the “Social
Welfare Management Policy” ( (8 AmEEETEHKE) ) to
focus on the poverty alleviation of the local population and the
building of capacity of local communities. As such, the Group’s
support came in the form of creating local job opportunities and
prioritizing local suppliers in 2022. During the National Day in
2022, employees of the Group provided volunteer services for
pandemic prevention in their communities, including nucleic acid
testing through code scanning, order maintenance and bar code
pasting, with a total of 3.5 volunteering hours per employee. The
Group would strictly follow the anti-pandemic measures imposed
by the local and national government regarding the maintenance
of social distance within community activities.

In 2022, the Group has been committed to fulfilling its social
responsibilities, and won the Social Responsibility Award of
“Extensive Mobilization of Social Resources for High-Quality
Promotion of Assistance and Collaboration between Eastern
and Western Regions” issued by the Tianjin Economic and
Technological Development Area Committee of the Communist
Party of China and Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area Administrative Commission. Keeping its
original intention and mission in mind, the Group is committed
to carrying out more charitable activities which align with its
philosophy in the coming year.
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APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE Bfi g% — AL

Table 3. Number of Employees within the Reporting Scope by Age X3. R ME&HE RNIZFRLAR ~ EH -
Group, Gender, Position Type, Employment Type, Geographical B - EFHEAE - wEEHHEES AHS

Locations®
Number of employees Age group
EEAY ERAR
Aged Aged
Aged between between Aged
30 or below 31and 40 41 and 50 51 or above Total
30EANUT NEZ405 HFEZE505 51 mEA L By
Gender 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
37 2022%F 20211 20256  2021F  202%F 20210F  202F 2021F  202F 2021%
Male S 9% 86 370 448 382 383 138 132 986 1,049
Female g3 33 40 174 217 69 83 3 1 279 351
Total g 129 126 544 665 451 466 141 143 1,265 1,400
Number of employees Position
EEAY B
Director

General and senior

employee Management management Total

-RET EEAR ESRAREEAR &gy
Gender 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
37 202F 20215 202F 20215 2022F 2021 2022F 2021
Mele B 800 766 152 237 34 46 986 1,049
Female Tt 216 240 58 86 5 25 279 351
Total By 1,016 1,006 210 323 39 7 1,265 1,400
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Number of employees Employment type
EEAY ERER
Full time Part time/Dispatched Out-sourced Total
2R R/ TE M ay
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 2021 20225 20215 2022F 20215 2022F 2021
Total &% 1,017 1,083 20 11 158 206 1,265 1,400
Number of employees Geographical location
EEAY e
PRC Japan Total
HE A& &y
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20215 2022 20215 202F 20215
Total & 1,258 1,393 7 1,265 1,400
Note: =

8. The employment data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s 8.
human resources department based on the employment contracts
entered into between the Group and its employees. The data covered
employees engaged in a direct employment relationship with the
Group according to relevant local laws and workers whose work and/
or workplace was controlled by the Group. The methodology adopted
for reporting on employment data set out above was based on “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Table 4. Employee Turnover Rate within the Reporting Scope by Age & 4. R & & B NIRF a4 A - 115 &

Group, Gender and Geographical Locations? @S D HEB AR
Employee turnover data Age group
EERXHE ERAR
Aged Aged Aged Aged
30 or between between 51or
below 31and 40 41 and 50 above Total
HEIAT NEZ405 HFEZ505 51 mEA L By
Gender 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
{33 202F 20215  202F 2021F  2022% 2021 202F  2021F  202% 2021 %
Numberof ~ Male S 9 54 28 75 11 34 13 11 61 174
employees  Female L¢3 4 12 4 22 6 3 1 1 15 38
A Total By 13 66 32 97 17 37 14 12 76 212
Employee ~ Male L 9.38 62.79 1.57 16.74 2.88 8.88 9.42 8.33 6.19 16.59
tumover rate  Female q:: 12.12 30.00 2.30 10.14 870 3.61 33.33 9.09 5.38 10.83
(%) Total By
R (%) 1008 5238 588 1459 3.71 7.94 9.93 8.39 601 1514
Employee turnover data Locations
EERXEE HE
PRC Others Total
HE Hitr By
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 F 2021 % 2022 2021 F 2022 2021
Total number of employees BAZ 73 210 3 2 76 212
Total employee turnover rate (%) #&75% % (%) 5.80 15.08 42.86 28.57 6.01 15.14
Note: Mz: -

9.  The methodology adopted for reporting on turnover data set out above 9.  Lili¥iE B TR AREIBRAFTIRAR T ETE

was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report —Appendix 3: Reporting B PTEE MR EIR R - 8 &k
Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange. EVRRE -8R = - L SRR IURIZIE
wIg3!) -
. Employee turnover rate = number of employees in the category ] EBERRAE=2FZERRE
leaving employment during the year -~ number of employees in TAH-FERZERNEE AHK
the category as at year-end X 100%. xX100% °

70 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



Table 5. Training Hours Received by the Employees within the

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERES

Reporting Scope by Gender and Position Type'©

RENBELE NZ MR MBALE D&
(bR e

Employment
Training data type
EHlIEE ERER
Director
General and senior
employee Management management Total
-RET EBAR ESRAREEAR ay
Gender 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
i3] 202 2021 20225 2021 2022% 2021 2022% 2021
Employees Male Es 103 442 20 210 14 34 137 686
trained Female it 66 115 11 40 2 24 79 179
EAIAZ Total Fet oy 169 557 31 250 16 58 216 865
Breakdown Mele S 47.68 51.10 9.26 24.28 6.48 3.93 63.42 79.31
of employess Female g 30.56 13.29 5.09 4,62 0.93 2.78 36.58 20.69
trained (%) Total &Y
Xl S BRMA%) 78.24 64.39 14.35 28.90 741 6.71 17.08 61.79
g Mle St 2369.00  2,923.00 30200  1,774.00 12550  1,651.00 2,796.50  6,348.00
Total training hours
- Female q:: 1,14250  1,908.00 343.00  5221.00 23.00 950.00  1,508.50  8,079.00
Total By 351150  4,831.00 64500  6,995.00 14850  2,601.00  4,305.00 14,427.00
Average Mle S 2.96 3.82 1.99 749 3.69 35.89 2.84 6.05
training hours Female Tk 5.29 7.95 5.91 60.71 4.60 38.00 5.41 23.02
THEIRE  Total By 346 4.80 3.07 21.66 3.81 36.63 3.40 10.31
Note: BfsE -
10. The methodology adopted for reporting employee training data set out 10, Lill¥eE 8 TIEIEURFTIRAMN AT E

above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3:
Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

o Breakdown of employees trained = number of employees trained
in the category during the year + total number of employees
trained during the year X 100% (where the total is the percentage
of employees trained = total number of employees trained =+ total
number of employees as at year-end X 100%).

o Average training hours = total number of training hours of
employee in the category during the year = number of employees
as at year-end in the category.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEEBRS

The Company believes that stringent corporate governance practices
can enhance credibility and transparency and are in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company has established a
complete set of code on corporate governance practices —“Handbook
of Corporate Governance Practices” pursuant to the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed below, the Company
has complied with all the requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the reporting year, save for the deviation of Code
Provisions C.1.6 and C.2.1.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by the Directors
of the Group, which was formulated in accordance with Rules 5.48 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of setting out its own
required standards for assessment of the conduct of the Directors
in dealings in the securities of the Group. Upon enquiries made to
each Director by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the code of dealing in securities by the Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board of the Company comprises 9 Directors which includes 1
executive Director, 4 non-executive Directors and 4 independent non-
executive Directors, among which, Yang Weihong is the chairman and
executive Director; Li Jian, Jo Shibin, Zhou Zhiyuan and Zhang Yan
are non-executive Directors; Cheng Xinsheng, He Yongjun, Japhet
Sebastian Law and Peng Zuowen are independent non-executive
Directors, details of the members of the Board are set out under the
section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”.
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The Board of the Company is responsible for general meetings, and
to exercise the functions granted by the general meetings and the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). The major
responsibilities of the Board include formulating the business plans
and investment advices of the Company, convening general meetings
and signing resolutions proposed at the general meetings, formulating
and reviewing the corporate governance policies and practices of
the Company, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors and “Handbook of Corporate Governance Practices”,
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report” of the Company. The
interests of shareholders and the Company is the primary concern for
every member of the Board. Directors should always comply with the
relevant laws and regulations in a dedicated manner. The management
of the Company is responsible to the Board, to exercise the board
resolutions and report to the chairman and the Board in respect of
the operation of the Company in a timely manner. The management
timely provides the updated information to the member of the Board
every month by delivery of monthly business report and statements,
which set out, among other things, the performance, financial position,
prospects and easily understandable assessment of the Company.

All the independent non-executive Directors appointed by the
Company have extensive experience in finance or enterprise
management and other professional areas. Acting in a careful and
detailed manner, independent Directors also need to safeguard
the interests of the Company and the shareholders by providing
independent advice relating to connected transactions and material
issues of the Company and providing professional recommendations
for the long-term and stable development of the Company’s business.
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The Directors are subject to a term of office of 3 years and shall be
eligible for re-election upon expiry of the term in accordance with the
Articles. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors could maintain a reasonable
balance with the executive Directors of the Board, so as to safeguard
the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors perform their
responsibilities of developing the Company’s policies by providing
constructive opinions.

During the reporting year, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules. As of the end of the reporting year, the Board of the Company
comprises 4 independent non-executive Directors, among which
Cheng Xinsheng has the competent professional qualification in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.05(2). The independent
non-executive Directors appointed by the Company represent at least
one-third of the Board members.

The Board considers that the following features or mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that the Board is provided with independent views
and opinions:

1. The Company has only one executive Director and the other eight
Directors are non-executive Directors who are independent of
each other and of senior management and have no relationship
with each other.

2. The independent non-executive Directors are required to review
their independence on an annual basis.

3.  None of the Directors is beneficially interested in the share capital
of any member of the Group or has any right to subscribe or
nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of
the Group.

4.  All Directors may seek advice from the Company’s Legal
Department and also from an independent adviser at the
Company’s expense.

After reassessment of the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors by the Company in January 2023, the Company
considered that each of the independent non-executive Directors has
complied with all independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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There is no financial, business, family or material relationship among
the Board members.

A training was provided for each new Director of the Company after
his/her appointment, to ensure he/she would understand the operation
and business of the Group and be fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations as a Director. The Group provides briefings and
seminars to all Directors, so as to enhance his/her awareness of
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the relevant GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory EREERTE @ UWREBXEBERNSH
requirements as well as the latest developments in the business of the E8 c RAMEFEAN » EEUALUT AR
Group. During the reporting year, the Directors complied with Code  &5F 7 PRI A.6.5 :
Provision A.6.5 in the following ways:
Reading Materials Seminar
Director B= MEER HE
Executive Director HITESE
Yang Weihong 1B RTAL \ \
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Li Jian g v \
Peng Bo £ v v
(resigned on 15 September 2022) (ER2022F9H15H
BHE)
Jo Shibin HEH v v
Zhou Zhiyuan Bt v V
(appointed on 15 September 2022) (R 202249 A 15 H
BZT)
Zhang Yan SR v v
(appointed on 15 September 2022) (202249 A 154
BZF)
Zheng Yuying B2 v v
(resigned on 15 September 2022) (BER2022F9H 15 H
BFIT)
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Cheng Xinsheng REa v v
He Yongjun MBE \ V
(appointed on 16 June 2022) (R2022F6 416 H
EZ(F)
Japhet Sebastian Law B 4E v v
Peng Zuowen TAEX v v
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The Board held twelve Board meetings in 2022 to discuss and decide
on material strategies, material operating issues, financial issues and
other matters as required in the Articles. The Company has kept the
detailed minutes of the relevant meetings.

The attendance of the Board members during the year is set out as

L2
=

TTRGH A

EEEN2022FEARBITTI2RES
I RTURE AR AR E AR - &
AEEETE B EERARERFHAE
MEMEE - ARBIERFHEBSHTE

B -

EXZeRERAFEHESZNLEN

follows: ™
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee  Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE ¥MWZEEE REZES
Directors EE Ezeen g3 e ez BERAE
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
SRLRYA EHASEETHA (LRE)
Executive Director HTES
Yang Weihong 1B 12/12(100%) N/A N/A 2/2(100%) 2/2(100%)
TEA TER
Non-executive Directors YTES
Li Jian T 12/12(100%) N/A N/A N/A 2/2(100%)
NEH NEH TER

Peng Bo Moe! 2k 6/9 (67%) 5/5 (100%) N/A N/A 1/2(50%)
(resigned on 15 (BR2022F i A
September 2022) 9A 15 AET)

Jo Shibinete2 s g 9/12(75%) N/A N/A N/A 1/2(50%)

NEH NiEH NEH

Zheng Yuying HF&E 9/9(100%) N/A N/A N/A 2/2(100%)
(resigned on 15 (BR2022F i i i
September 2022) 9 A 15 HEH)

Zhou Zhiyuanhees B &g 2/3(67%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(@ppointed on 15 September  (R2022F9 5158 TER NER TER NER
2022) BfF)

Zhang Yanhoe# SR A 1/3(33%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 15 September  (R2022F9 /15 H TER TER ik TER
2022) BfF)
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee  Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ERZEEE FMWERE REZES
Directors E= Ezgea g3 E g3 REKXE
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
SHELRHA EHASEETHA (LREE)
Independent BYEHTES
Non-executive Director
Cheng Xinsheng i 12/12(100%) 5/5 (100%) 3/3 (100%) N/A 2/2(100%)
N
He Yongjun WEE 7/7(100%) 1/1(100%) N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 16 June 2022)  (R2022%6 A 16 A T A A
E)
Japhet Sebastian Law iy g 12/12(100%) 5/5 (100%) 3/3 (100%) 2/2(100%) 2/2(100%)
Peng Zuowen NS A S 11/12(92%) N/A 3/3 (100%) 2/2(100%) 2/2(100%)
TER
Note: 5T

1.

Ms. Peng Bo appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend two Board
meetings and one general meeting, as well as Mr. Zheng Yuying to
attend one Board meeting. These four attendances were not included
in Ms. Peng Bo’s attendance. Ms. Peng Bo did not attend the general
meeting in person due to her personal reasons, which is not in
compliance with Code Provision C.1.6.

Mr. Jo Shibin appointed Mr. Li Jian to attend three Board meetings and
one general meeting. These four attendances were not included in Mr.
Jo Shibin’s attendance. Mr. Jo Shibin did not attend the general meeting
in person due to his personal reasons, which is not in compliance with
Code Provision C.1.6.

Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan appointed Prof. Cheng Xinsheng to attend one Board
meeting. This one attendance was not included in Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan’s
attendance.

Mr. Zhang Yan appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend one Board
meeting as well as Prof. Cheng Xinsheng to attend one Board
meeting. These two attendances were not included in Mr. Zhang Yan’s
attendance.
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5. Mr. Peng Zuowen appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend one Board
meeting. This one attendance was not included in Mr. Peng Zuowen’s
attendance.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the Code Provision C.2.1, the roles of the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

Having considered the need of the Company’s business development,
the Board is still of the opinion that the combination of the roles
of Chairman and president (the “General Manager”) (which is
equivalent to the position of chief executive) can effectively formulate
and implement the strategies of the Group, and make appropriate
decisions which are in the interest of the shareholders as a whole.
From 11 May 2018 to the date of this report, the roles of Chairman
and General Manager were assumed by Mr. Yang Weihong. Mr. Yang
Weihong has extensive experience in enterprise management and has
been directors of various companies responsible for the management
issues. In the future, the Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the corporate governance structure of the Group in the light of
its business development needs, identify suitable candidates and
separate the positions of Chairman and General Manager in due
course.

At the fourth meeting of the fourth session of the Board of the
Company held on 20 March 2018, Mr. Yang Weihong was appointed
as the General Manager of the Company, details of which were set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 20 March 2018.

At the 2019 annual general meeting convened on 19 June 2020, Mr.
Yang Weihong was re-elected as an executive Director of the fifth
session of the Board of the Company and Mr. Yang Weihong was
elected as the Chairman at the first meeting of the fifth session of the
Board of the Company convened on the same day.
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TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

The terms of office of the Directors of the Company (including
independent non-executive Directors) are three years. All current
Directors will hold office until the expiry of the fifth session of the
Board. The Directors shall retire upon expiry of their terms of office and
shall be eligible for re-election.

THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company has specific terms of reference in place,
with the authorities and responsibilities of each committee clearly
defined which have been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

(1

Audit committee

The Company has set up an audit committee pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
“Guidelines for the Establishment of Audit Committees” prepared
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid down in
writing under the requirements of Rule 5.29 of the GEM Listing
Rules. After Ms. Peng Bo resigned from the positions of non-
executive Director of the Company and the member of the audit
committee on 15 September 2022, Mr. He Yongjun (independent
Director) was appointed as the member of the audit committee
on the same day. The audit committee currently comprises Prof.
Cheng Xinsheng (chairman), Mr. He Yongjun and Prof. Japhet
Sebastian Law (all being independent non-executive Directors),
among which Prof. Cheng Xinsheng has the relevant professional
qualification and financial experience. The members of the audit
committee convene meetings regularly with the management
and external auditors and review the internal audit report and
the quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group. The audit
committee reviewed the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and recommended approval to the
Board. In 2022, the audit committee held a total of five meetings
to review the financial information and the risk management
and internal control system etc. of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the audit committee.
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Remuneration committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules and its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid
down in writing under the requirements of Rule 5.35 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee currently comprises
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (chairman), Prof. Cheng Xinsheng
and Mr. Peng Zuowen (all being independent non-executive
Directors). The remuneration committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy, reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages (which include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment) of
individual executive Directors and senior management. In 2022,
the remuneration committee held three meetings to review the
remuneration of Directors, supervisors and senior management
of the Company, and recommend to the Board that the amount
should be determined in accordance with the withdrawal method
of annual performance-based bonus of the Company. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied with
the requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect
of the remuneration committee.

(2)
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Nomination committee

The Company has also set up a nomination committee which
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified as a director
or member and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and succession of Directors. The
nomination committee currently comprises three members,
with Mr. Yang Weihong (Chairman) being the chairman and
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law and Mr. Peng Zuowen being the
members. Mr. Yang Weihong is the executive Director of the
Company, and the other members of the nomination committee
are independent non-executive Directors of the Company. In
2022, the nomination committee held two meetings to review
the structure of the Board of the Company for the year 2022
and execute the provisions on the nomination of the Directors
under the Articles and the policies, procedures and criteria of the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”.
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The Company appointed 3 new directors in 2022, namely Mr. He
Yongjun, Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan and Mr. Zhang Yan. The nomination
committee’s involvement process and its considerations are as
follow:

1. The nomination committee learned from industry research
that Mr. He Yongjun has extensive experience in project
investment, financial and industrial interactive development,
and believed that Mr. He Yongjun’s skills and knowledge
can complement the professional background of the
composition of the Board in these areas. This could bring
a new perspective to the business development of the
Company and enhance the diversity of the Board. After
the enquiry on independence, Mr. He Yongjun could also
declare and confirm his independence in accordance with
the provisions on the independence of independent non-
executive directors set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Therefore, the nomination committee considers
that Mr. He Yongjun has the experience, skills, knowledge,
morality, integrity and independence required as an
independent non-executive Director and proposes to
appoint Mr. He Yongjun as the independent non-executive
Director of the fifth session of the Board of the Company.
Further, the addition of Mr. He Yongjun will increase the
proportion of independent non-executive Directors on the
Board, increase the number of Directors under the age of
50, and increase the proportion of Directors with a term of
0-3 years, which is in line with the board diversity policy of
the Company.
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Ms. Peng Bo and Mr. Zheng Yuying both resigned as
non-executive directors of the Company on September
15, 2022. According to the recommendation of TEDA
Holdings, the controlling shareholder of the Company, Mr.
Zhou Zhiyuan and Mr. Zhang Yan were recommended as
candidates of non-executive Directors of the Company.
The nomination committee has considered the unique
experience and backgrounds of Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan and
Mr. Zhang Yan in areas of asset management, financial
and corporation management in accordance with the
Company’s business needs, and considers that both
the candidates are qualified to serve as non-executive
Directors of the Company. Although the appointment of
Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan and Mr. Zhang Yan will cause the Board
of the Company to fail to meet the requirements of gender
diversity in the short term, there will be no material impact
on the Company considering comprehensively other
aspects of the Board. On 15 March 2023, the nomination
committee has nominated a female Director to the Board to
meet its gender diversity requirements.
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The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 26 March 2019, which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as a Director. The nomination committee
shall consider the following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

1. Character and integrity;

2. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

3. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board;

4., Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

5. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the
Company and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

6. Other views that are appropriate to the Company’s business
or as suggested by the Board.
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The procedure of nomination by the nomination committee is
summarised as follows:

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an
additional Director, the nomination committee identifies or
selects candidates as recommended to it, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out above;

3. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the nomination committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable);

4.  The nomination committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

5. The Board deliberates and decides on the appointment
based upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee.
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The procedure of re-appointment of Director at general meeting
is summarised as follows:

1. In accordance with the Articles, every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and shall be eligible for re-election at the shareholders’
general meeting;

2.  The nomination committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director. The nomination committee shall also review the
expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
Director, who offered himself/herself for re-appointment at
the shareholders’ general meeting, to determine whether
such Director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above; and

3. Based on the review made by nomination committee, the
Board shall make recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for reappointment at the shareholders’
general meeting of the Company, and provide the
available biographical information of the retiring Director
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules to enable
shareholders to make the informed decision on the re-
appointment of such candidates at shareholders’ general
meeting of the Company.

According to the Articles, shareholders who individually or in
aggregate holding 5% or more of the total number of voting
shares issued by the Company may make a written proposal to
the shareholders’ general meeting to nominate the candidates for
the Board, but the number of the candidates shall comply with
the Articles and shall not exceed the number of candidates to be
selected.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practice.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company considers diversity at the Board level
as an important element to maintain a competitive advantage. In
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Board adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 10 May
2019. The Company’s Board Diversity Policy will have significant
benefits in enhancing the performance of the Company. Under the
Board Diversity Policy, selection to the Board will be based on a
range of diversity areas, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All appointments to the Board will be made on the basis
of merit and the benefits of diversity on the Board will be objectively
taken into account when considering candidates. The following chart
shows the profile of diversity on the Board as at 31 December 2022:

Female
7t
(0.0%)

<50 0-3
(65.5%)

O -4~ N W d» 00O N © ©

Gender Position Age group Term of
450 B FHRER directors
(Years)
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(65.5%)
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As at 15 September 2022, there is one female member on the
Board of the Company. After the resignment of Ms. Peng Bo on 15
September 2022, all the members on the Board of the Company
are male members, therefore the Company fails to comply with the
requirements set out in the Rule 17.104 of the GEM Listing Rules.
As recommended by a shareholder of the Company, the Board
has identified a female director candidate, and her appointment will
become effective upon the approval at the annual general meeting.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s workforce
generally follows a diversity philosophy that includes gender diversity.
The gender composition of the Group’s workforce is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report. As at the date of
this report, over 20% of the Group’s employees are female and
one of the three senior management of the Company is a female.
As the Company already has a higher proportion of females in the
same industry, the Company plans to maintain the same level of
female representation over the next three years or increase female
representation where appropriate.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and senior management since May 2022.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2022, the supervisory committee comprised 6
members, of whom three are shareholder representative supervisors
and 3 are employee representative supervisors. The responsibility of
the supervisory committee is to monitor the Board and its members
and senior management so as to protect the interests of the
shareholders. In 2022, the supervisory committee had monitored
the financial position and the legal compliance of the operations of
the Company and has conducted due diligence review of the senior
management by convening meetings of supervisory committee and
attending Board meetings and general meetings. It has duly performed
its duties in a detailed and prudent manner.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and the assets of the Group. The internal
control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient
management which in turn minimizes the risks to which the Group is
exposed. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

The Group recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term development of the Group’s business. Management
is responsible for the establishment, implementation, review and
assessment of the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. After taking into full
account of the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules
relating to risk management and internal control, the management
continued to improve its existing control and risk management
framework. All employees are committed to implementing the risk
management framework into the daily operation.

The Company has established a dedicated internal audit department
and engaged an external professional agency to assist the audit
committee and the Board in determining the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on an annual and ongoing
basis. In 2022, the Company further standardized the audit work
process. In accordance with the annual audit plan, the Company
carried out relevant audits on the Company, Yuan Da Logistics and
Bonded Warehouse, its wholly-owned subsidiaries. At the same time,
the Company carried out the internal audit on Tianjin TEDA Alps for the
first time. For the problems found in the audit process, the Company
established a account book with problems, put forward audit
suggestions to the units with problems, supervised the implementation
of audit rectification, and ensured that rectification is in place.

In 2022, the Board highly emphasized on internal control and
risk management, the Company improved and consolidated
the achievements of the risk system development based on the
development of the “risk management and control quality project”
system established in last year. During the reporting period, it strives to
achieve the objective of monitoring risks, implementing standards, and
supervising processes so as to prevent potential risks in the business
of the Company and its subsidiaries in an all-round manner.
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Objectives of risk management and internal control

The objectives of establishing the risk management and internal
control framework of the Group are to identify, assess and manage the
risk of the Group and achieve the Group’s strategic objectives within
the acceptable safety standards. The Group has further promoted
digitalisation of its internal control management while improving
its systems. The “smart operational management platform” for the
integration of business and finance developed by the Company will
automatically consolidate business information and match it with
financial data to avoid isolation of business and financial information;
deliver real-time monitoring of capital through funding plans and
cash management; enable coordination and verification, grading
and preparation, screening and conclusion, monitoring and early
warning through budget management; improve corporate capital
control through deeper integration of capital planning and budget
management. The establishment of the smart operational management
platform, with “uniform financial accounting, uniform capital control,
uniform business and financial integration, and uniform digital
resources”, will facilitate in-depth integration of business and finance,
enhance the timeliness and accuracy of business data acquisition,
and deliver smart reform in the management of the Company. The
smart operational management platform, together with the Company’s
OA system, will establish and reinforce the logical relationship of the
internal authorization system so as to control and mitigate risks.

Meanwhile, a three-line risk management approach has been adopted
to identify, analyze, assess, mitigate and handle risks.

The first line of defence is that our department staff/frontline employees
must understand that their roles and responsibilities to identify, assess
and monitor risks associated with transactions.

The second line of defence is the Group’s management that provides
independent oversight of the risk management activities of the first line
of defence. It ensures that risks are within the Group’s risk capacity
and that the control of the first line of defence is effective.

As the final line of defence, the audit committee of the Company, with
the advices and opinions from the external professional party (such
as the external auditor) on one hand and annual review by the audit
department on the other hand, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective internally and externally.
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Procedures and internal control for handling and dissemination
of inside information

The Company has adopted the GEM Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) to handle and disseminate inside information. The Company
ensured compliance in respect of the handling and dissemination of
inside information by adopting a series of measures including enhancing
identification and confidentiality awareness of inside information,
prohibiting unauthorized use of inside information and giving notice of
lock-up period and securities dealing restrictions to the Directors and
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
has made announcements on inside information in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations.

In light of the above, the Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting:

The shareholder(s) (either independently or jointly) holding 3% or more
of the Company’s voting shares shall be entitled to propose temporary
proposal(s) 10 days before the convening of the shareholders’ meeting
and in writing to the Company. The Company shall notify other
shareholders within 2 days upon receipt of such proposal(s), and
include in the agenda for the meeting the matters in the proposal(s)
that fall within the scope of functions and rights of the shareholders’
general meeting and with a clear topic of discussion and a specific
matter to be resolved.
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Shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

(1)

two or more shareholders holding a total of 10% or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be
held may sign one or more written requests of identical form and
substance requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes
and stating the subject of the meeting. The Board shall convene
the extraordinary general meeting or the meeting of shareholders
of different classes as soon as possible after having received
the above-mentioned written request. The shareholding referred
to above shall be calculated as of the day on which the written
request is made.

if the Board fails to issue a notice of such a meeting within thirty
days after having received the above-mentioned written request,
the shareholders who made such request may themselves
convene the meeting within four months after the Board received
the request. The procedures according to which they convene
such meeting shall, to the extent possible, be identical to the
procedures according to which general meetings are to be
convened by the Board.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the following person whose contact details
are as follows:

Name: Yang Xueyan

Address: Third Floor Office Building, No. 39, Bohai Road, Tianjin

Economic and Technological Development Zone

Tel: 022-59858128

Fax: 022-59858100
Postal Code: 300457
E-mail: investor@tbtl.com.cn

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend

Policy”). The Company endeavours to maintain sufficient operating
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capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and to provide
stable and sustainable returns to its shareholders.
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In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the performance, working
capital, cash position of the Group and other factors that the Directors
deem relevant at the time.

The declaration and payment of dividends of the Company are also
subject to restrictions of the “PRC Company Law” and the Articles
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will also
constantly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the discretion to
update, revise, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.
The Dividend Policy will not in any way constitute a legally binding
commitment of the Group in relation to its future dividends and/or will
not in any way render the Company obligated to declare dividends at
any time or from time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to encouraging and maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with shareholders through the dynamic implementation of a
shareholder’s communication policy through various channels. The
Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity
for the Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. All
Directors make their best efforts to attend the Annual General Meeting
in order to answer questions from the Company’s shareholders.
In accordance with the disclosure requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company makes timely, accurate and complete
disclosure of any discloseable and material matters in newspapers
and websites designated by the relevant regulatory authorities to
protect the shareholders’ right to information and participation. The
Company also has a dedicated department responsible for investor
relations, the contact details of which are set out in the section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights” above. The Company attaches great
importance to communication with investors and has hosted individual
shareholders at various shareholder meetings and answered their
telephone enquiries on a number of occasions to enhance investors’
understanding of and confidence in the Company.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the above channels of
communication between the Company and its shareholders on an
annual basis. The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Company’s activities in communicating with
shareholders and investors during the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period by the management, and issuing
appropriate announcements in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules for disclosure of all information necessary for the shareholders to
assess the financial performance and other matters of the Company.

The Company has appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the international auditor of the Company for the year 2022. Fees
for audit and non-audit service provided to the Group by the above-
mentioned auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
RMB1,106,000 and RMBO (there was no non-audit service provided)
respectively.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation
of the financial statements which can truthfully and fairly reflect
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to
the International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the “Companies Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

The statements made by the independent auditors of the Company
on their responsibilities for the financial statements are set out in the
independent auditors’ report in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo”) as
company secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the
reporting period, he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training, and will continue to perform and discharge the
duties of a company secretary under the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Lo is
not an employee of the Group, and Ms. Wu Yanmin, the Vice General
Manager of the Company, is the person whom Mr. Lo contacts for the
purpose of Code Provision C.6.1.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, the Company proposed to amend the
Articles and such two amendments were set out in the circulars of the
Company dated 16 May 2022 and 30 June 2022 respectively. Such
amendments to the Articles were approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meeting held on 16 June 2022 and 18 July 2022 respectively.

The new Articles is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meeting of the Company has the highest authority. A total
of 2 general meetings were held in 2022. The Company convened an
annual general meeting on 16 June 2022 to consider and approve the
resolutions relating to Directors’ Report for 2021 and Report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2021. The Chairman of the Board and the
members of each committee attended the annual general meeting held
in 2022, so as to answer questions raised by shareholders. In addition,
chairman of the audit committee has attended the annual general
meeting held in 2022 to answer questions in relation to connected
transactions raised by shareholders. The Company highly values the
functions of the general meeting as it is considered to be a direct and
effective communication channel between the Board and investors
of the Company, and thus encourages all shareholders to attend the
general meetings. The Articles have laid out provisions in respect of
the rights of the shareholders including the rights to attend, to receive
notices of, and to vote at general meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
logistics services in China, mainly including supply chain solutions and
materials procurement and related logistics services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the Year and a
discussion on the Company’s future business development are
provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this
annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Company may be facing can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. Also, the financial risk factors
and capital risk management of the Company can be found in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Company’s
performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the section headed “Financial Review”
of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers are contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Company is contained in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The financial highlights of the reporting period are set out on page 5
to 6 of this annual report. Discussion and analysis of the results and
financial position of the Group are set out on pages 7 to 19 of this
annual report. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is set out on page 136 to 137 of this annual
report.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of financial position of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) are set out on pages 138 to
139 of this annual report.

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB29,550,000 and RMB27,040,000, respectively.
The Board proposes the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.03 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2022 (corresponding period of
2021: nil).

RETAINED EARNINGS

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the reporting period and details of the distributable reserves of
the Company as at 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
IFRSs.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS

Details of the statutory reserve funds are set out in Note 21(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of movements in properties of the Group in the Company
during the reporting period are set out in Note 14 to Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out on page 259
to 262 of this report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

There was no material contract between the Group and the controlling
shareholder or its subsidiaries during the Year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary including the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial Summary” of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the Year, the Company did not made investment for
establishment of other new company, nor did it increase or withdraw
any capital to or from its invested subsidiaries or associates.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had no
capitalised interest (2021: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the reporting period, there was no change in the Company’s
share capital. Details are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles
which requires the Company to offer new shares in proportion to
existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and supervisors in office during the Year and up to the

date of this report are as follows:

EBERES

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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RAFEARBEAREIPETEER

EEEN

Date of
appointment

BZENBEH

Executive Director
Yang Weihong (Chairrman)

Non-executive Directors
Li Jian
Peng Bo
(Resigned on 15 September 2022)

Jo Shibin
Zheng Yuying
(Resigned on 15 September 2022)

Zhou Zhiyuan
Zhang Yan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheng Xinsheng

He Yongjun

Japhet Sebastian Law

Peng Zuowen

Supervisors
Wang Guanghua
Yan Jun

Yang Zhengliang
Huang Fei

Lan Lingyan
Wang Linlin
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19 June 2020

19 June 2020
19 June 2020
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15 September 2022
15 September 2022

19 June 2020
16 June 2022
19 June 2020
19 June 2020

11 May 2021
19 June 2020

11 August 2021

19 June 2020
19 June 2020
19 June 2020

R 2020F6 A19H

R 202046 A19H
R 20206 A19H
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R®20214F5 A 11 H
M 2020% 6 A 19 H
RK2021F8A11H
202046 A 19 H
R 2020%F 6 A19H
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and confirmed that
all the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
independent persons.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for contracts amongst companies of the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director or a supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with the Director or the supervisor has or had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company at any time during the Year.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR, SUPERVISOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND CHANGE IN INFORMATION

Ms. Peng Bo and Mr. Zheng Yuying have resigned as non-executive
Directors and other relevant positions of the Company due to personal
work arrangements on 15 September 2022. On the same day, the
Board approved the appointments of Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan and Mr. Zhang
Yan as non-executive Directors of the fifth session of the Board of the
Company. Details are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 September 2022. As at the date of this report, the Company
is not aware of any change in the information of director, supervisor or
chief executive required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of
the GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group abides by the local laws, regulations and guidelines
issued by the government authorities and puts great emphasis on
environmental protection during the course of operation. The Group
made efforts to improve logistics efficiency, optimized transportation
routes and transportation modes, promoted railway and waterway
transportation due to less discharge of pollutants, and strictly adhered
to the principle of recycle and resource conservation, especially the
recycling of packaging materials.
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Our main stakeholders include the customers, suppliers and
employees. We enhance communication with its stakeholders through
day-to-day interactions, and thereby enabling it to understand and
satisfy their respective needs. We place great importance on the
feedbacks of its customers, and improves the quality of its services
and maintenance work based on these advices. We also recognize the
importance of its relationship with the suppliers and the employees.
We have established a trust relationship with its brand suppliers. It also
provides various trainings and benefits for its employees to develop
their potentials, and moves quickly to solve any potential work issues
for them. Further details on the environmental policy and performance
are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
which forms a part of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and senior management since May 2022 in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising out
of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As at the date of this report, no equity-linked agreements of the
Company were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 9
to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

The remuneration offered to the Directors, supervisors and senior
management shall be determined based on, among other things,
individual experience, responsibility and time devoted to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company had any interest and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were (a) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and supervisors are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As of 31 December 2022, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives held any beneficial interests in the equity interests of any
member of the Group, or had any right (whether legally enforceable
or not) to subscribe for or to nominate others to subscribe for any
securities in any member of the Group, or had any interest, directly or
indirectly, in any assets acquired or leased or proposed to be acquired
since 1 January 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS HOLDING FEMRFRRINN2 Sz {7 b il kAR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND fhiB8igmRiBilAL
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, supervisors and chief executives EARAGIESE EENESTHABMR

of the Company, as at 31 December 2022, the following persons had
interests or short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or had, directly or indirectly, been interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meeting of the Company; or which were
required to be recorded in the register specified in Section 336 of the
SFO pursuant to such Section:

Long position in shares of the Company

Mo R2022F 12 A1 BATALTEEAR
BEZLHFRPEGROAEXVEE2RID
B2 AESARA N BIEEZ AR RN &
BEARMD 2 EmAR - KEESEEE
EWNEE—BEARARETRERE L&
TN ZEAERRAEES% KA E
2R HIREE S K HAE &M 336 &
\@ﬁmauﬁ L2 B S gk

El 5

ARARG I E

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to

Number and shareholding the Company’s

class of shares in the same total issued

Name Capacity (Note 1) class of shares share capital

RARAF]

RGO &8 RER AR —3E BB 17 BRITRAIEH

8B 51 (ffzE1) FRESLEILE FREHSABIL

Tianjin TEDA Investment Beneficial owner 150,420,051 (L) 58.74% 42.45%
Holding Co., Ltd. Domestic shares
REFEREEREARRA BHEFAA 150,420,051 % (L) W& f%

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,303,789 (L) 30.19% 21.82%
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Domestic shares
EARERE (LR BRAF BEFAA 77,303,789 % (L) W& %

Chia Tai Land Company Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
Limited Domestic shares
FREMABRAT EmfrA A 28,344,960 f% (L) &%

Tianjin Port Development Beneficial owner 20,000,000 (L) 20.36% 5.64%
Holdings Limited H shares
REBERZEBRERA EmfrA A 20,000,000 A% (L) H %

Hongkong Topway Trading Beneficial owner 10,000,000 (L) 10.18% 2.82%
Co., Limited H shares

ERENBESERAR

ERnFEEA

10,000,000 A% (L) H A%

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&
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BARRIESE  FETHABRESA
A R2022F12H31H EXREHA
PRATF - ERREERE (L) BRAFR
HEBALTRESRIEGHIZEXVEIE

So far as is known to the Directors, chief executives and supervisors
of the Company, as at 31 December 2022, the deemed interests of
Chia Tai Land Company Limited, Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. and their associates under Part XV of the SFO were

as follows: THERIERRNT
Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding to
Number and shareholding the Company’s
class of shares in the same total issued
Name Capacity (Note 1) class of shares share capital
RADQH
ROHE R AE— 85I R4 B RITRAEH
£ 515 HRl(MizE1) HREHNEIE FRESHLEIL
Chia Tai Land Company Limited  Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
Domestic shares
EREHHRRA BanEBA 28,344,960 % (L) WERR
Fortune (Shanghai) Limited Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
controlled by a Domestic shares
substantial shareholder
ER(EB)ARAF FERRMZITEE RS 28,344,960 0% (L) NERR
Charoen Pokphand Group Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
(BVI) Holdings Limited controlled by a Domestic shares
substantial shareholder
ERSE BV EZERBRRA TERFAZIEEE#TD 28,344,960 1% (L) WERR
CPG Overseas Company Limited Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
controlled by a Domestic shares
substantial shareholder
CPG Overseas Company Limited £ B EASTIELAE#EZ 28,344,960 i% (L) WE R
Charoen Pokphand Group Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%

Co., Ltd.

NEEEARAR]

controlled by a
substantial shareholder
FERROZ I LEE

Domestic shares

28,344,960 % (L) N & %
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Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding to
Number and shareholding the Company’s
class of shares in the same total issued
Name Capacity (Note 1) class of shares share capital
b N
RBEE R RE— BRI 5 ERITRAEH
£B 51 FRl(fEE1) FRESAIEIE BRESINEIE
Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,303,789 (L) 30.19% 21.82%
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Domestic shares
EREERE (L) BRAT] BmEAA 77,303,789 % (L) W& %
Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited  Interest of corporation 77,303,789 (L) 30.19% 21.82%

controlled by a
substantial shareholder

PR HEER AR IERROZ LB R

Domestic shares

77,303,789 % (L) NER%

Note:

1. The letter “L” denotes the shareholders’ long position in the share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, so far as is known to the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company, as at 31 December
2022, no other persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
or supervisors of the Company) had interests or short positions which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or had, directly or indirectly,
been interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company and/or any subsidiary of the Company; or
which were required to be recorded in the register specified in Section
336 of the SFO pursuant to such Section.
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SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS INCENTIVE SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has no arrangement for
such scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, the percentages of income of the Group
from sales of goods and provision of services to major customers to
the turnover of the Group are as follows:

Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd.
Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd.

Wu’an Yuhua Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.
China Commerce & Logistics Co., Ltd.
Fujian Zhanglong Group Co., Ltd.

Five largest customers in total

During the reporting period, the percentages of expenses of the Group
arising from the purchase of goods and services from major suppliers
to the cost of sales of the Group are as follows:

Hubei CATA Logistics Co., Ltd.
Tangshan Fengnan Dongyu Commercial Trade Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Lihe Industry and Trade Co., Ltd.
Anhui Shoukuang Dachang Metal Material Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Hongnuo Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Five largest suppliers in total

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers or
customers.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates has
interest in business that competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group or has any other conflicts of interests with the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into continuing connected transactions with
the following entities which are regarded as connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules as of 31 December 2022.

1. Toyota Tsusho Corporation, which holds approximately 36.2%
interest in Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Fengtian
Logistics”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company.
Under the GEM Listing Rules, Toyota Tsusho Corporation is a
connected person of the Company.

2. Tedahang is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
On 5 January 2017, Chia Tai Logistics Limited (“Chia Tai
Logistics”) held 40% of the equity interest in Tedahang and
became a shareholder of Tedahang. Therefore, the registered
capital of Tedahang is owned as to 60% by the Company and
40% by Chia Tai Logistics. Therefore, Tedahang is a connected
subsidiary of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Details in relation to the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2022 are as
follows:

Continuing connected transactions

On 6 November 2019, Fengtian Logistics entered into a logistics
service agreement (the “Logistics Service Agreement”) with Toyota
Tsusho Corporation, which would expire on 31 December 2022. Such
Logistics Service Agreement has been renewed by Fengtian Logistics
and Toyota Tsusho Corporation on 22 December 2022, pursuant
to which Fengtian Logistics agreed to provide logistics services and
supply chain solutions for automobiles and car components to Toyota
Tsusho Corporation, for a term of three years from 1 January 2023
to 31 December 2025. The Logistics Service Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder were in compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and were
exempted from the circular, independent financial advice and the
shareholders’ approval requirements. For details, please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2022.

On 27 December 2019, the Company and Tedahang entered into
the business cooperation framework agreement (the “Meat Sales
and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Tedahang would
sell various frozen meat and provide related storage, logistics and
logistics supporting services to the Company, for a term of three
years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The continuing
connected transactions are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27 December
2019 and the Company’s circular dated 3 June 2020.
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ANNUAL CAP AND ACTUAL FIGURE OF NON-EXEMPTED

BRANNSIIEBERHEMAERZAN

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF THE FE LFBRREERFE
COMPANY
Annual Cap Actual Figure
for 2022 for 2022
2022F 2022 FER
FELR BAEERR
RMB’000 RMB’000
Description of transaction RS AR¥T T AR®ETTT
Logistics Service Agreement ) AR 74 155 2% 12,120 11,053
Meat Sales and Purchase Agreement HNmE B 176,000 —
(Note) (F#7)
Note: Mt

There were no transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2022 as
the Company has suspended, in order to control risks, the purchase of frozen
meat from Tedahang in 2022 due to the higher volatility of prices of oversea
frozen meat as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic. The Company will carry out
business in due course according to market conditions.

The independent non-executive Directors, Cheng Xinsheng, He
Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law and Peng Zuowen, have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they
have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no more favourable to
the connected person than those available to the independent
third parties or on terms no less favourable to the Company than
terms available from independent third parties (as appropriate);
and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements with terms which are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders as a
whole.

In addition, the Group has duly complied with the requirements under
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on pages 108 to 111 of the annual report in accordance with
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of
the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements (if any)
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group were involved in litigation or
arbitration of material importance and litigation or claim of material
importance pending or threatened against the Company and its
subsidiaries. Details are as follows:

(@)

In the case of contractual disputes that Guofu (Shanghai) Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (“Guofu Shanghai”) suing Guoben (Xiamen)
Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (“Guoben Xiamen”), the
Company and Guoben Holdings Co., Ltd., which was heard
on 4 February 2021, the Company received the judgment
from the Shanghai Financial Court on 26 September 2021 (the
“Judgment”). The Company has lodged an appeal against the
Judgment to the Shanghai Financial Court on 8 October 2021.
On 18 January 2022, the Shanghai High People’s Court accepted
the appeal case. Due to the pandemic situation, the case was
heard in the second instance on 27 July 2022. On 13 September
2022, the Shanghai High People’s Court made a final judgment
and upheld the original judgment that Guoben Xiamen shall pay
Guofu Shanghai the repurchase fee of RMB56.55 million and
the corresponding premium repurchase amount within ten days
from the effective date of the judgment. The premium repurchase
amount is calculated based on RMB56.55 million at an annual
interest rate of 10% (from 2 July 2019 to actual settlement date).
The Company will bear 50% of the above-mentioned part of debt
that Guoben Xiamen is unable to pay off, with a limit of RMB60
million. The Company has the right to ask reimbursement from
Guoben Xiamen upon its settlement. On 29 November 2022, the
case has entered the enforcement process. On 7 February 2023,
the Company received an enforcement notice from the Shanghai
Financial Court, requesting the Company to fulfill the obligation
of compensation of RMB38,632,171.20 for the part of Guoben
Xiamen’s debt that could not be paid off, and to bear the cost
of execution in amount of RMB123,950.00. The Company
has fulfilled its obligations under the judgment on 28 February
20283. The Company has lodged an application to the Shanghai
Financial Court on 10 March 2023 to claim compensation from
Guoben Xiamen. Depending on the subsequent situation, other
measures to claim for its rights may be taken by the Company
against the principal.
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(b) The Company filed a case in the Tianjin Binhai New Area Court
on 18 February 2022, suing Tedahang, for repayment of the
Company’s guaranteed loan of approximately RMB170 million.
People’s Court of Binhai New District, Tianjin issued a civil
judgment on preservation on 22 February 2022, and seized
the real estate under the name of Tedahang to provide property
preservation for the Company. The case was heard on 18 March
2022 and 20 July 2022. On 26 August 2022, the People’s Court
of Binhai New District, Tianjin made a first instance judgment,
supporting the Company’s claim of full amount. The judgment is
currently in effect.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, or redeemed or sold or
cancelled any listed securities of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has, up to the date of this
report, maintained the public float required by the GEM Listing Rules
and approved by the Stock Exchange.
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TRUST DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries placed any trust deposits with any financial institutions
within or outside the PRC.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER CHAPTER 17 OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would give rise
to a disclosure requirement under Rules 17.15 to 17.21 and 17.43 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Yang Weihong
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 23 March 2023
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholders:

Pursuant to the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the articles of association of the Company and the relevant regulations
regarding Hong Kong listed companies, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”), under its fiduciary duty,
has taken up a responsible role to work reasonably and cautiously
with integrity and diligence to protect the interests of the Company, its
shareholders and staff.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee duly reviewed the
operational and development plans of the Company, the supervisors
made their best endeavours to attend each Board meeting and
general meeting held in 2022 and provided reasonable opinions and
recommendations to the Board. It also constantly monitored the
Company’s financial status and administered the code of practices
of the Directors, the General Manager and other senior management.
The Supervisory Committee has made stringent and effective
supervision on whether any material and concrete decision made by
the management of the Company is in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company,
and whether it is in the interests of its shareholders.

Through its efforts made on supervision and inspections during 2022,
the Supervisory Committee considered that the members of the
Board, the General Manager and other senior management of the
Company, during the course of business operation and management,
all strictly observed their fiduciary duties, to act diligently and to
exercise their authority faithfully under the premise of safeguarding the
best interests of the Company. They carried out duties in accordance
with the requirements set out in the articles of association of the
Company. During the reporting period, the Company carried out
operations according to the law with a standardised management
style, and its operating results were objective and true. The Company
had an integral, reasonable and effective internal control system,
and its operation decision-making process was legal. The continuing
connected transactions of the Company have been carried out on
fair and reasonable terms that are in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole, and no violation to the interests of the
shareholders and the Company has been found.
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The Supervisory Committee has exercised supervision over the
execution of the resolutions of the general meeting and considers
that the Board is capable of executing the resolutions of the general
meeting diligently.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance and
the operating results achieved by the Company in 2022, and has full
confidence in the future development of the Company.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee of the Company will
continue to perform its duties pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations by adhering to the fiduciary duties and strengthening its
supervisory work so as to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Company and the shareholders, fuffil its responsibility in an honest and
diligent manner and hence achieve good performance in every aspect.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Guanghua
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 23 March 2023
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Weihong (#584L), aged 54, was appointed as the General
Manager of the Company on 20 March 2018 and was appointed
as the executive Director and Chairman of the Company on 11 May
2018. He graduated from the Department of Computing Mathematics
and lts Application Software of the Faculty of Mathematics of Nankai
University in July 1990 with a science bachelor degree, and graduated
with a master’s degree in public management from Renmin University
of China in 2005 and graduated from the School of Law of Nankai
University with a master’s degree in law (civil law and business law)
in 2008. He served as a staff at the planning department of Tianjin
Dynamic Factory (KEB) H#ERETEIEE) from July 1990 to October
1992, a clerk at Tianjin Talent Exchange and Service Center (K2
A Z ARG L) from October 1992 to June 1995, and worked at
the Labor Personnel Bureau of Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area from June 1995 to June 2002, where he held
various positions including a clerk at the Employment Agency (8%
¥4, deputy director of the General Office (presiding), head
of the Labor Protection Supervision Department (%5 Eh{R#& B2 R,
head of the Special Equipment Inspection and Management Station
(fE R BB ), head of the Social Security Division (1t & 1%
BER}, etc. From 2002 to March 2018, he worked for Tianjin TEDA
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and held various positions including
deputy manager of the Human Resources Department (presiding),
the manager, director of the General Office and the head of the
Party Committee office, etc. During the period, he also served as the
director and a member of the appraisal and remuneration committee
of the board of directors of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co.,
Ltd.. He served as the director of Tianjin Teda Football Club Co., Ltd.
(Ri2ZRiE R IMB LB R A A]). Currently, he serves as the Secretary
of the Party General Branch, Chairman and General Manager of
the Company and the chairman of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co.,
Ltd., Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd., Tianjin Teda Alps
Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian Alps Teda Logistics Co., Ltd. (all being
subsidiaries of the Group).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jian (Z{#), aged 43, joined the Company in May 2019. He
graduated from Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 2001
with a bachelor’s degree in management engineering. He served as
the Accounting Manager of the Enterprise Management Department
of Beijing Capital Agribusiness Group, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
of the Finance Department of Hulunbeier Sanyuan Dairy Co., Ltd.,
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Finance Department of Beijing
Taiyang Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd., the Senior Manager of the
Finance Department of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Group and the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of CPTP Capital. He is currently the Deputy
General Manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Jo Shibin (#&&#), aged 59, joined the Company in June
2020. He graduated from the Department of Hydraulic Engineering
in Tsinghua University in July 1984, with a bachelor’s degree in
hydropower engineering and construction. He was admitted to the
Graduate School of Engineering of Nagoya University, Japan, majoring
in urban transportation planning, in October 1985 and obtained an
engineering doctorate in urban transportation planning in March 1991.
He established JCD Co., Ltd., in Tokyo in July 1993. He joined CT
Bright Corporate Godo Kaisha (Japan) (B ARIEE KRBTSRI E4) in
January 2017 and currently serves as the Chief Operating Officer and
concurrently serves as the president of JCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CP Group in Japan.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan (E& &), aged 35, joined the Company in
September 2022, a Senior Accountant and a Certified Public
Accountant (“CPA”). He graduated from Xiamen University with a
bachelor’s degree in management in 2008, majoring in accounting,
and obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Nankai University in 2015, majoring in business administration. He
was employed by the Shenzhen branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers
and the Xiamen branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (EZEKE(H8)ABRAF]), and was a member of the legal affairs
and internal audit department and asset management department of
Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd., deputy general manager
of Tianjin TEDA Assets Operation Management Co., Ltd. (KEZFEE
EBEEE AR AR]), secretary of the party branch of Tianjin Guotai
Exhibition Co., Ltd. (KEEZERABR A F]). He is now the head of
asset management department of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding
Co., Ltd. as well as secretary of the second party branch of asset
management department.

Mr. Zhang Yan (3R %), aged 45, joined the Company in September
2022. He is a doctor of management and a senior economist. He
is a specially-invited expert of Sichuan, an expert of the “Thousand
Talents Plan” (F A&FZl), and holds the certificate of Financial Risk
Manager. In 2000, he graduated from the School of Business
Administration, Northeastern University, majoring in management
science and engineering, with a bachelor’s degree in management. In
2003, he graduated from the Chinese Academy of Sciences, majoring
in management science and engineering, with a master’s degree in
management; In 2010, he graduated from the Chinese Academy of
Sciences, majoring in management science and engineering, with a
doctorate in management. He worked for the head office of Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, and successively served as a staff
member, deputy chief staff member, and chief staff member of the
credit evaluation department, senior manager of the industry policy
center of the credit management department, deputy director of the
policy division and the system division of the credit and investment
management department, and head of the preparatory team for
inter-bank management of the credit and investment management
department. He has served as the deputy secretary general of the
Zigong Municipal People’s Government of Sichuan Province (temporary
post), assistant general manager of Sichuan Development (Holding)
Co., Ltd.* (W)I1Z & (1=%) AR EEAF]) and general manager of
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its financial business department (concurrently), director of Sichuan
Financial Holding Group Co., Ltd. (P0)I| & Bi#Eix £ B AR A 7)),
senior vice president of Macrolink Group (¥TZH# £ ), president of its
financial division (concurrently), and chairman of the Macrolink Holding
Group Financial Limited Liability Company (B2 A% & B B A
7)) (concurrently). He is currently the deputy secretary of the Party
Committee and general manager of Tianjin Teda International (Group)
Holding Company Limited (2 1 2= 3 B PR 122 A% (5= ) B BR A 7).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Cheng Xinsheng (2#74), aged 60, joined the Company
in June 2014. He is a Doctor and Postdoc of Management. From
2004 to 2005, he was the visiting scholar of University of Alberta in
Canada and the professional editor of Nankai Business Review and
was honored with the awards of outstanding result in social science
for several times. In 1994, he became a fellow member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was in charge of four
research projects in management funded by National Natural Science
Foundation and four projects funded by the Foundation of the Ministry
of Education. He also participated in over ten key topic projects
funded by National Natural Science Foundation, National Philosophy
and Social Science Foundation and the Humanities and Social
Sciences Foundation of the Ministry of Education. He has published
five books and over 50 articles and has a translated work. He was an
independent director of Offshore Oil Engineering Co., Ltd (Stock Code:
600583, Shanghai Stock Exchange). He is currently a Professor and
doctoral supervisor of Accounting Department of Business School of
Nankai University. He is also an independent director of CSSC (Handan)
Pairui Special Gas Co., Ltd. (s (%) RInFFEREBRNDER
A7]) and Hua Xia Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600015, Shanghai
Stock Exchange), an independent supervisor of China Qilfield Services
Limited (Stock Code: 601808, Shanghai Stock Exchange), and a
member of the Chinese Academy of Management.
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Mr. He Yongjun ({1& &), aged 44, joined the Company in June
2022. He graduated in Technical Economics and Management from
Tianjin University (X2 A &) with a master’s degree and a doctorate
degree. He served as the deputy general manager of Tianjin Haitai
Advantage Venture Capital Management Company Limited* (K&
FEZRIEIEEEBMRAR). He is currently the chairman of Tianjin
Ruiyi Jinrong Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited*
(REREEZMOEETIEZABR AT, the general manager of Tianjin
Beiyang Haitang Venture Capital Management Company Limited* (K
EALF B RAIEREEIE AR A7), the partner of Beiyang Haitang
Fund* (b7 F8%E %), the general manager of Tianjin University
Science Park* (K:ZAXEZEHFE) (Nankai Park, Jinnan Park), the
director of Tianjin Science and Technology and Finance Center* (X
ERIF S FH L), and the chairman and the executive director of the
Tianjin Zhongzheng Logistics Company Limited* (K& EWiRAB
R /2 7). He is also an independent director of Tianjin Rianlon New
Materials Company Limited*(REF| L&+ EHR (D BR A 7)) (stock
code: 300596, Shenzhen Stock Exchange ChiNext) and Tianjin King-
meter Technology Company Limited* (KZ& KEFR G BR A F)
(stock code: 872249, National Equities Exchange and Quotations).
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Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (% 3 #F), aged 71, joined the Company
in August 2012. He obtained his Doctorate degree of Philosophy
in mechanical/industrial engineering from the University of Texas at
Austin in 1976. He was a professor of the Department of Decision
Sciences and Managerial Economics of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 1986 to 2012. Mr. Law was the Associate Dean
and subsequently the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration
of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993 to 2002. Prior to
returning to Hong Kong, he was the director of Operations Research
at the Cullen College of Engineering and director of Graduate Studies
in Industrial Engineering at the University of Houston, and was also
involved with the U.S. Space Program in his career with McDonnell
Douglas and Ford Aerospace in the United States. He was the
consultant of various corporations in Hong Kong and overseas.
He is also active in public services, having served as a member of
the Provisional Regional Council of The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and various other committees,
and is also active on the boards of profit, non-profit and charitable
organisations in Hong Kong and overseas. From July 2010 to July
2013, he was an independent non-executive director of Cypress
Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00875). From August
2013 to July 2016, he was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai La Chapelle Fashion Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 06116, Hong
Kong Stock Exchange). From June 2008 to June 2020, he was an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Capital International
Airport Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 00694, Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Port Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03382) (a company
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00078), Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 00639) and Binhai Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 02886) and Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 08271), and an independent supervisor of Beijing
Capital International Airport Company Limited (Stock Code: 00694), all
being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Peng Zuowen (Z1EX), aged 45, joined the Company in
November 2018, graduated in Information Management from Beijing
Forestry University (At AR Z K E2) in July 2000. He had worked as
the Deputy Director of the Information Center of China Flower and
Gardening News ( (FREITEFF ) {587 1Y), a newspaper affiiated to
the Economic Daily Newspaper Group (&% B iR 2 5 ®). He is now
the General Manager of Zhongke Dianji (Beijing) Technology Company
Limited (FFRI2hE b ) ABR A A)), the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Product Officer of Guoxin Youe Data Company Limited (12
BHERABMR AR, the Secretary of Big Data Applications Specialty
Association of China Software Industry Association, the Specially-
employed Expert of Beijing Forestry University Big Data Application
Engineering Laboratory and the Guest Professor of Internet Public
Sentiment of Communication University of China (4 B {8 1% K248
wEIBEE ). He was the author of “Big Data Analysis by Industry”
( CREBUEDTTEKREEMN) ) and the business definer of “big data”. He
is dedicated to three key areas including the management and the
practical application of big data in various industries, the research
and practice and application of big data empowerment in urban
industrial development, and the construction and operation of smart
cities by new-generation information technologies. As a result of his
contribution to the aforesaid three key areas, he was interviewed in the
CCTV program “Beyond” (CCTV &) # EB) and awarded with the
title “China Outstanding Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2017”.

SUPERVISORS

Shareholder Representative Supervisors

Mr. Wang Guanghua (£ %), aged 38, joined the Company in May
2021 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
He is an accountant. He graduated from Jilin College of Construction
and Engineering with a bachelor’s degree in business administration
in 2007 and graduated from Jilin University with a master’s degree
in accounting in 2009. He has worked in Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. as a staff member of the Audit Department, a staff
member of the Office Secretary Section, a staff member of the Board
Office, a Deputy Director of the Board Office and a Director of the
Board Office. He is currently the Director of the Audit Centre of TEDA
Holding, as well as a Supervisor of Tianjin TEDA City Comprehensive
Development Investment Co., Ltd. (KERERTIRSFABIREESE
BIRAT]) and Tianjin TEDA Green Group Company Limited.
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Mr. Yan Jun (B ), aged 48, joined the Company in June 2020. He
graduated from Jilin University of Finance and Economics (formerly
Changchun Tax College), with a bachelor’s degree in economics, and
is an international Certified Internal Auditor (“CIA”). He once served as
the head of the audit department of Ninetowns Internet Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (NASDAQ: Nine), the head of the audit department of
CAR Inc. and the senior audit director of Lashou Network Technology
Co., Ltd. L FPLEFMABER A R]) etc. He currently serves as
the deputy general manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang Zhengliang (% R), aged 42, joined the Company in
August 2021. He is a Master’s degree holder, a senior accountant
and an internationally registered internal auditor (CIA), a member of
Certified Public Accountants of Australia, an accounting consultor of
Tianjin and a mentor-mentee of Master of Professional Accounting of
Tianjin University. He was a section officer, section head and middle
rank of Tianjin Steel Pipe Group Company Limited, the audit director
of Beijing Naiwei Technology Company Limited, the deputy director
of the investment department and the deputy general manager of the
investment development department of Tianjin Port (Group) Company
Limited. He is currently an executive director and vice general
manager of Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (stock code:
03382, Hong Kong Stock Exchange), a shareholder, and the chief
representative of Tianjin Representative Office.
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Staff Representative Supervisors

Mr. Huang Fei (EZ), aged 36, joined the Company in April 2019
and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in June
2020. He graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
in 2009 majoring in accounting (international accounting) with a
bachelor’s degree in management. He is an assistant accountant and
human resources professional (second-level). He was a staff member
of the human resources department and the organization department
of the Party Committee of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co.,
Ltd. from 2009 to 2019. He was also assigned to work in Tianjin Teda
Urban Rail Investment and Development Co., Ltd.* (RKEZEH T
BB EERABR AR from 2015 to 2018. Mr. Huang served as
a supervisor of Shanghai FSG (Tianjin) Human Resources Co., Ltd.*
(B8R (RKIB)A N EIRBR AT and the assistant of the asset
management department of the Company. He currently serves as the
Secretary of the Integrated Party Branch, the League branch secretary
and deputy head of audit department of the Company, a director
of Tianjin Yuan Da Xian Dai Logistics Co., Ltd. and TEDA General
Bonded Warehouse Co., Ltd. and a supervisor of Tianjin TEDA Supply
Chain Technology Co., Ltd., all being subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Lan Lingyan (B§¥#E), aged 41, joined the Company in August
2006 and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in
June 2020. She graduated from Sichuan University in 2006 majoring
in engineering and technology with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
She served as an administrative secretary, business manager of the
Party and mass work department, deputy secretary of the corporate
joint Party branch of the Company. She is currently the discipline
officer of the Company’s labor union and the head of the department
of Party-masses work.
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Ms. Wang Linlin (E£¥#f), aged 39, joined the Company in February
2010 and became a staff representative supervisor in June 2017.
She graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
in 2007 with a bachelor’s degree (major in law); she also obtained
a bachelor’s degree (major in psychology) from the Central China
Normal University. Ms. Wang passed the National Judicial Exams of
the People’s Republic of China in 2009. She served as a specialist of
the risk management department, legal supervisor of the President’s
Office and the legal supervisor of the legal and risk control department
of the Company. She currently serves as the legal supervisor of the
general office of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Weihong (#4L), aged 54, the executive Director and
General Manager of the Company. He holds the overall operation
of the Company. He is also in charge of the Party building, internal
audit and the work of the Board, as well as the operation, legal
affairs, risk management, information system and safety production
of the Company. His biography is set out in the sub-section headed
“Executive Director” above.

Mr. Tang Zhizhong (BE&®), aged 53, graduated from the
Department of Industrial Business Management of Tianjin University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics
in 1991 and obtained the master’s degree in international shipping
and transport logistics from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2005. From 1991 to 1994, he served with Tianjin Municipal Bureau of
Labor and Social Security as a clerk. From 1994 to 2002, he was the
associate chief officer, chief officer, chief and vice investigator of the
Work Committee of Tianjin Development Zone and Free Trade Zone
of the Communist Party of China successively. From 2002 to 2005,
he was a vice investigator of the Administrative Committee of Tianjin
Development Zone. From 2005 to 2012, he served as head of the
business management department, assistant to the general manager
and executive deputy general manager of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics
Co., Ltd.. In May 2012, he joined the Company as the general
manager of the comprehensive management department. From 2015
to 2017, he served as the Vice General Manager of the Company
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and the general manager of the comprehensive management
department. He is currently the Party branch committee member and
Vice General Manager of the Company, and the head of investment
and development department of the Company. He is also in charge
of the development planning, policy study, asset management, equity
management and emergency processing of the Company, and he
assists the General Manager in managing safety production work. He
is also the director of Tianjin TEDA Alps Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian
TEDA Alps Logistics Co., Ltd. (both are the subsidiaries of the Group).

Ms. Wu Yanmin (R&i8)), aged 49, an intermediate accountant,
certified public accountant, certified tax agent, registered land valuer,
registered real estate valuer, and registered asset appraiser. She
graduated from Nanjing Forestry University with a major in accounting
in June 1994; graduated from Shandong Economics University with
a Bachelor’s degree in accounting in July 2001; and graduated from
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics with a Master’s degree in
accounting in June 2011. She was a cashier, accountant and financial
officer of Shandong Jining Pharmaceutical Corporation (LR & E=m
B E /1 A]), a senior audit manager of the Tianjin Branch of China
Audit Certified Public Accountants LLP; she served as the financial
supervisor, the deputy financial manager, and the financial manager
of Tianjin Tifen Industrial Park Investment (Group) Co., Ltd and served
as the chief financial officer of Ringpai National Chain Veterinary
Hospital Management Co., Ltd. She joined the Company in July 2018
as the financial general manager of the Company. From May 2019 to
November 2020, she has served as the Chief Financial Officer and the
head of finance department of the Company. In November 2020, the
title of her role was changed to Vice General Manager. She is currently
the Vice General Manager of the Company and the head of finance
department of the Company. She is also in charge of financial and
performance assessment, and she assists the Chairman in managing
internal audit and the General Manager in managing information
construction.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B M B BAT R

31/F Gloucester Tower
The Landmark
11 Pedder Street

HLB) B # &t & ¥ 5 s o a
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANJIN BINHAI TEDA LOGISTICS (GROUP) CORPORATION
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin Binhai
Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
136 to 287, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sections of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B

IR

E2ITH 119
EHES
HEERTITKRES31E

BREERBZENAEERGERLIA
HERR

(RPEARRFEZMALAERLF])

=z
=68
e

TIZEENE T 7SN E 136 £287 H K
EEEREVREEROGERRRUAT
BHEEAR D REWBAR(SH &S
EHE M BEmEK - R BER2022
F12A31 BMAEHMBERAREB ZZ
HIEFENEHBSREMEZEBARL
EHEREHRREHBESTRER UK
EHMBEREWNF(RIEEEZSTBORM

2)-

BMRB ZEEHUBREERIEBER
RetEZE (AR et EAEE
2 |) 28 B B R B 7S S 2 AN (T B B B
BELEA D EEMFR SRR ESER
2022F 12 AT AWM A HB BRI &
HRBEZRILFENGHMBRERS
PR ERE - WEBREBCAAEHIHH
BREATERER -

ERER

BPEREFEGFEAS ([FESFHAED
NgRMNFBESEN(EBER
A ) ETER - RFINZFERMEAT
METERPINRE A ZBEILE B
HUBBRRAEAENEE ] —HE—TH
o REBEFR S EEEE(BES
sHERERSTRD(TSTAL)  BABLRE
S8 WERETRIETRMANEBEEE
BIE - HfIEE - RAIAESHEZRE
R REE AR MNEFTERLREHRE

7 o

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BET R &

RSB SR

BRREFAFRERERMANEXRHE - &
BRHAREHUBRENBARAEE
MEIR - ZFINBAEGHYBHREUER
BEE)RBMHERERREEZSSEHE
MAERZETREBELER -

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables

Refer to note 5 and note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net
trade, bills and other receivables of approximately
RMB776,927,000 (2021: approximately
RMB676,670,000) and aggregated provision for
impairment of RMB304,202,000 (2021: approximately
RMB298,427,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 180 days (2021: 30 to
180 days). Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses (“ECL”). Receivables with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. ECL are also estimated by
grouping the remaining trade, bills and other receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its business
and its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the trade, bills and other receivables. The ECL
rates are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
trade, bills and other receivables.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade, bills and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to independent professional

valuer’'s ECL assessment on trade, bills and other

receivables included:

e Understanding the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

e  (Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade, bills and other receivables as at 31
December 2022 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

* Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade, bills and other receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence,
understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records of
and other correspondence with the customers;
and

e Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade, bills
and other receivables and determine the impairment
provision to be supportable by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BET R &
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B BT &

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BET R &

ERRIBEEEEEANETERT TIEHN —
Mo BRERERAG T ERERTS
RRREERREREEE o AT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai lp
Practising Certificate Number: PO7849

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EfEEREAMEZERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= 20224 12 531 Hi1FF/Z

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBTRT ARETR
Revenue WA 6 3,301,143 3,069,814
Cost of sales HE KA (3,169,394) (2,896,417)
Gross profit EF 131,749 173,397
Administrative expenses TBRAX (56,457) (59,195)
Other gain and loss - net EH oz K B8 — 558 7 20,077 25,274
(Loss)/gain on change in fair values of WEMERAABEEEN
investment properties (E518),Wa 15 (4,400) 9,511
Impairment loss of trade, bills and EHRKFIA - BKRER
other receivables, net Ko ELAth & WO IR B
B8 EE 4 1biii (5,775) (46,537)
Litigation settlement FAME S 39 (38,632) —
Operating profit 3] 46,562 102,450
Finance costs B &R A 10 (20,702) (23,545)
Share of profit of investments accounted for FA#EZEARRN
using the equity method FEAEIRE R 11b 54,935 33,755
Profit before income tax BR P 158 A1 A 8 80,795 112,660
Income tax expenses FIEBiAx 12 (21,261) (33,352)
Profit for the year FERF 59,534 79,308
Other comprehensive loss Hit2HEEE
ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently H& & & HE A
to profit or loss: B#ErIER -
Equity instruments at fair value through other %@ H i 2 EW AR A
comprehensive income EEMRMERTA (2,510) (20,382
Total comprehensive income for the year £ E 2 HE W A £ %8 57,024 58,926

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

BHEBERAEMEEBAR

2022 2021
2022 2021 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BsE AR TR ARETRT
Profit for the year attributable to: T 5% 75 B FERF -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ =N 29,550 33,682
Non-controling interest IR R A 29,984 45,626
59,534 79,308
Total comprehensive income TH&FELEEE
attributable to: WA #a%E
Owners of the company ZA/NSIEZ DN 27,040 13,300
Non-controling interest IR R A 29,984 45,626
57,024 58,926
Earnings per share (RMB cents) FRAEFARES)
— Basic and diluted —HEARRE#E 13 8 10
Dividends fi% & 29 10,629 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

BERT P B R H B B RER A — &P
ﬁ_j\ o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION

B ORI R R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # %= 20224 12 531 Hi1FF/Z

As at 31 December

MW12H831H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o= AR¥Tr AR%®TT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 14 219,024 241,496
Investment properties REME 15 408,500 412,900
Amount due from joint venture EUE & HER 18 121,000 147,737
Investments accounted for using the HAEZ= /ﬁ)\ﬁﬁé’ﬁxé
equity method 11b 268,000 227,225
Equity instruments at fair value through FREMEEWAE
other comprehensive income NABETRD
T HE 11c 34,327 36,837
1,050,851 1,066,195
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 6 9
Trade, bills and other receivables B P WA
FEWE B K&
H fib U FRIE 18 655,927 528,933
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITFER 19 113,987 123,289
Cash and cash equivalents HeMASEEY 19 414,629 357,757
1,184,549 1,009,988
Total assets WEE 2,235,400 2,076,183
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners ARAREEAEILER
of the Company
Share capital [N 20 354,312 354,312
Other reserves Ef G 21 100,756 98,224
Retained earnings REB AT 22 418,816 394,308
873,884 846,844
Non-controlling interests eI R 125,384 137,196
Total equity RS 999,268 984,040

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION
ORI K
For the year ended 31 December 2022 &%= 2022 4 12 4 31 HiFF/Z

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt ARBTRE ARETET

LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred income PIEIA 26 4,191 4,402
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 33,348 52,491
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 28 55,897 56,997
93,436 113,890
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 RHEMERFIE 23 568,758 591,981
Contract liabilities E48E 24 264,964 106,937
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHAaE 2,150 6,798
Borrowings B 25 285,175 251,490
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 21,649 21,047
1,142,696 978,253
Total liabilities wmesE 1,236,132 1,092,143
Total equity and liabilities HEZKREE 2,235,400 2,076,183
Net current assets RBEEFE 41,853 31,735
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERABAERSE 1,092,704 1,097,930

These consolidated financial statements were approved and ZEAHMERRCKEHES S 2023
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023 and 3 A23 B#t E kg% - WA T

were signed on its behalf by: ATREKEE :
Yang Weihong Zhou Zhiyuan
Director Director
EF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B& B i sH i Ak ;2 S & BT 15 SRR A — 3P
financial statements. e

N
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOEZEE X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &%= 20224 12 A 31 HiF F/&

Attributable to owners of the Company

LNGIE 2PN L
Other Non-
Share reserves  Retained controlling Total
capital  (Note 21) earnings  Sub-total interests equity
Hitff
BRE  (K&E21) REEA Bt FEREZ BER

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETR

Balance 1 January 2021 72202141 A1 BHK)

®i 354,312 113,380 365,852 833,544 134,146 967,690
Profit for the year FEHF S - 33,682 33,682 45,626 79,308
Other comprehensive loss ~ FE £ 2 EEE

for the year - (20,382) - (20,382) - (20,382)
Total comprehensive FE2EER)/

(loss)/income for the year Y A\ 4258 - (20,382) 33,682 13,300 45,626 58,926
Transfer to other reserves  EEZHiFE - 5,226 (5,226) - - -
Dividends paid to B RFEE R R

non-controlling interests R AIAR 8 - - - - (42,576) (42,576)

Balance at 31 December 7202112 A31H K
2021 and 1 January 2022 2022%F1 51 HH

iR 354,312 98,224 394,308 846,844 137,196 984,040
Profit for the year FERF - - 29,550 29,550 29,984 59,534
Other comprehensive loss ~ FE E 2 EE=

for the year - (2,510) - (2,510) - (2,510)
Total comprehensive FEEEE(EE)/

(loss)/income for the year Yt A#2%8 - (2,510) 29,550 27,040 29,984 57,024
Transfer to other reserves  ERZH i - 5,042 (5,042) - - -
Dividends paid to ERIEERERRT

non-controlling interests KIS, - - - - (41,796) (41,796)

Balance at 31 December #2022F 128318/
2022 o373 354,312 100,756 418,816 873,884 125,384 999,268

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEKIFI I B Z S & H P EHRER A — B
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHEAETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #({Z 20224 12 31 AHIF F&F

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARBTRT ARETR

Cash flows generated from RETEMB

operating activities HERE
Cash generated from operations ZEMERE 31 107,191 138,241
Interest received B U F B 15,662 16,637
Interest paid ERFLE (20,702) (23,545)
Income tax paid BERER (27,009) (35,804)
Net cash generated from operating activities #& 4 EEFT1SIR & F 58 75,142 95,529
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEESRE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EBERRITFITORLD 9,302 6,271
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E ¥ - ME &R E (14,756) (15,808)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERZE

plant and equipment FriS 5878 442 976
Dividends income from equity instruments 28 #EBEM 2 EIRA

at fair value through other BRAABEYROER

comprehensive income TEMRKREKA 512 577
Dividends received from investments FAEREARNKRE

accounted for using the equity method Z B R B 15,765 32,711
Net cash generated from investing activites &R &/EE TSI 4 F58 11,265 24,727
Cash flows from financing activities METHRESRE
Proceeds from borrowings & RE PTG RIA 344,585 251,490
Repayments of borrowings EEMEK (310,900) (349,500)
Repayments of lease liabilities MEaBZEENE (21,424) (70,417)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 [A) FE#2 B A 25 R 1~

H A% B (41,796) (42,576)

Net cash used in financing activities RERBMAASFE (29,535) (211,003)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRREEEY

cash equivalents #win, (R ) B 56,872 (90,747)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1EMNRER

HeEED 357,757 448,504

Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BNBEER

at 31 December HEEEY 414,629 357,757

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B& M M st K72 & & BT I R R A9 — 30
financial statements. 73 °
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in provision of logistics and
supply chain solutions services and trading and related logistics
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was established as an investment holding
company in the PRC by its promoters, Tianjin Teda Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (RKIEREREZER AR A F) (“TEDA Holding”)
and Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area
State Asset Operation Company (KEL B R MTHEERAEE
EE#LZ N TF]) (“TEDA Asset Company”) as a joint stock limited
company on 26 June 2006. Both TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset
Company are controlled by Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area Administrative Commission (“TEDA
Administrative Commission”).

Pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s overseas listed
foreign shares (“H shares”) on the Growth Enterprises Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the
Group in June 2006. The Company’s H shares were listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 30 April 2008.

On 18 November 2011, TEDA Holding entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Land Company Limited (“Chia
Tai Company”), while TEDA Asset Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company”).
Accordingly, TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset Company agreed
to transfer 28,344,960 (8% of ordinary shares) and 77,303,789
(21.82% of ordinary shares) domestic shares of the Company
to Chia Tai Company and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company
respectively. In 2012, the two aforementioned domestic share
transfers were approved by the relevant state-owned assets
supervision and administration authorities of the PRC. The
registration procedures of the related transfers have been
completed on 7 June 2013.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors of the Company consider
TEDA Holding as the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The address of the registered office are principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 23 March 2023.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
For the propose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decision made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income and
investment properties that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

REEE )
(b) FHEEX

BB ERER TH LAJE SE R AN £
ERY - EEBEMEEBA
BARBEIGENES TAR
REMERNREREMRORD
REEFEFBER TXES
K&K °

JE e AR —ARIZ AR ERE 7B M
R e TREN R L EER

St

E_o

ARBEATHBLEERITE
HEREBERRSGTHEEER
WEHHEZEEETHNE
B THRZEREETEEER
AESRERS —EEER AR
o AR EERABENANE
BF AEELFEAHEE
BEESABMARKTERE E£%
EeHMBHRRPAETER
SRBEERRNARBESE
S EEE T - HRERME®RS
HAF2RBEANURGD A
EMARRS - BEME®RS
EAF16RBEANNEER S
KEQNALEEBEUELIEA S
BENTE(WMEB SR
FoRTFEFHAUER FEL
B2t 2R E 36K EERE
) AEE)BRIN



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Group’s principal operations
are conducted in the PRC. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.

(d) Application of Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

REBRE 7)
(d) FERZERT BB 8E %R

(BRI B E 2R )

TG 3 A R A 1S 5T B
B8 e A

RAFE  AEBRUE I
BHREHKEAERABREE SR
HRIBEEGEMI B 2022 F 1
A1 Bk z&RnzFEHHE
o | A R K AE BT 2 BIBR B 7

SEES R

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

R TSRS SRR 3% (1B FTA) BAERM IR

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
2021

% B 75 3 5 X B 58 16 5 (I RT ) 202146 A 30 H& Covid-19/8@HEEER

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before

Intended Use
B & RIS 1658 (5T A)

WE - BE K& E— R EEREA 2 PSR

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
BPR & 5T 2RI 5 37 5% (BT A°) BEMEEH - BITERZKA

Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

B B B 1 i A B (1B R T AR) BIRR B 15 5 %2R 2018 £ 2 2020 F 2 F /& MUt

The application of the amendments to IFRS Standards
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. IREREm)
(d) Application of Amendments to International Financial (d) FERRKEITEMEKREZER

Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued) (TEIRRE R EER D) (&)

E B8 5 K R FTET BB
BB BRI RIEET AR

REE W EITATEAIA T B
18 18 R AR #T AT SRR

New and amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 17 (including the June
2020 and December 2021
Amendments to IFRS 17)

BFR B F5 e S A RIEE 17 5%
(3520204 6 A & 2021 & 12 A ¥R
MG EERIFE 7 HRAERT)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

B 5 Bt 75 e 5 2RI 3 10 5% K
BIPR & 5T 4RI 5 28 5% (85T 4%)

Amendments to IFRS 16

B FR B 5 R 5 2 B 28 16 9% (I RT A)

Amendments to IAS 1

R ERIE 1 SRUBRTA)

Amendments to IAS 1

R ERIE 1R (BETA)

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice Statement 2

R e ERIE 1R R RS
BEfmEE 2% (BT A)

Amendments to IAS 8

BUR & 52 81 2 8 5% (&3] 4°)

Amendments to IAS 12

]

]

FR gt ERIE 1258 (EFTA)

BIBR A 5 s S 22 R

Insurance Contracts ’

R

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?
REEREBENRNEERAREEENEITE?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback®

ERMHAL HERE:®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current®
BESBERREBIERES

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?®
e ERB B E

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

EHBRERE

Definition of Accounting Estimates!

Gt ZER"

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction'

HE-QRHELNEERBERBZRTENRE'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.

(d) Application of Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but

not yet effective (Continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by
Group entities.

® has power over the investee;

® is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e  potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

®* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or joint venture may be
impaired. When an objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Group’s senior management that
makes strategic decisions.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur, which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(d)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated at in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. The depreciation rate per annum is as

follows:

Buildings

Machinery

Furniture and office equipment
Motor vehicles

Jf N
B i

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment
less any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time
the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed

and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(e)

(f

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment property (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUSs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
“other gain and loss — net”.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

* the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking or

® it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest incorme

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the other
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other gain and loss — net” line
item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the other
gain and loss — net line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9 (including trade, bills and other receivables, amount
due from joint venture, pledged banks deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

EASEHBERIRSE ()

(hy E€MIAE)
EHEEE)
ERMEEMEE)

FEPEREEERESEH
TEAMBEHRERHAME AL
MENEHELZBREES
Bk -12EAEREES
B(M2EARREEER]E
AR SR 128 A R AT 8
BEMENEHEBZFEY
BHEEBERD - FEIR
EAKBEESLERERER
#ET AREBEEFAFENE
% * *ﬂﬁiﬁ/mﬂj(/ﬂ,b/\&iiiﬁi
HAE A AR S0 A R 0 DA B R 2R
HNRE”\J%,E/EIH’EHj HE o

AREE - EREWE F iR
REREHEREERE -

MAEEMTAMmMS @ A&H
BESER1I2EAABRREES
BZoBArEBEREE KRIF
B )16 R R 5B R A RIS
me AIASERRFENEY
EEEE - TR EERT
BHREMEEERDREE N
IRRERIARPT B B K 2 Al BE
PSR 2 KIEIE AN o

1= B/ B A W58 00

EHEE nEREEERR

EAAMRIEINE - AEESL
BRBRERCHTAELED
Z B\ B Y1 4a B R B B
TEZEEDZRR - sLaxF
fmmE  AEEZEREENA
BEZEEREUZEN  BRE
BELBRNEFNLBE KA
HBHENAERE A EEE
£t e

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

167



168

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

® significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

()  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forwardlooking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables, other receivables
and prepayments are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

e  Past-due status;

*  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A moaodification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received, and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that
has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal amount
indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including borrowings, lease liabilities, and
trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(i)

Provision (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

1)

(k)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Inventories

Inventories which consist of cargos are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories
are is determined using on a first-in-first out method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(k)

0

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the Company until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity owners.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(m) Borrowings

(n)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(o)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

@)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of the group of which the other entity is
a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(o) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

()  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(@ A person identified in (i) (a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(h)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(o)

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or he influence
by, that person in their dealing with the and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(o) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of the person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOt B mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

(Continued)

(p) Taxation

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(p) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOt B mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

(Continued)

(p) Taxation (Continued)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land,
which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(p)

(q)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
are dealt with as payment to defined contribution plan which
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to contribution.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

()

(s)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Such grants are presented under other gain and
loss - net.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(s)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. A contract asset
and a contract liability relating to a contract are accounted
for an presented on a net basis.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of raw materials is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being at
the point the products are delivered to the customer
and the customer has accepted the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of discounts,
returns and value added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered and the customers accept the products,
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(s)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of services

Revenue from rendering of logistics services for
finished vehicles, supply chain management for
automobile components and parts, warehousing
services and related logistics services for steel trading
are recognised upon the completion of services due to
the short duration of the service period.

For sales of services, revenue is recognised at point
in time in accounting period in which the services
rendered, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction and assessed on the basis of actual
services provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

(Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (Continued)

(iv) Government grants

(v)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are initially recognised
as deferred income and subsequently recognised
in profit or loss upon on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Dividends income from equity instruments

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed equity investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand- alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

EASEHBERIRSE ()

®)

HE

HEZEZ
HetRBRRAEmS TE—
B 5 ] I P2 1) R] 38 ) B E {3

R - AIZANBREES
HE -

MR BERER BB 2 &AL
ISR A X H A G M E LR
BHME  AEEREBEEREM
B &R E 16 5 E RN F
wh o BT R HS U EE B EI(AR
MEREME)FEZRALHE
TENXEEHE - RIFEH
HRR R IR R R HRES
BRIEBEEHK T TEX
il

LR[BS ATAA
BENREIBRESERBD

HREE-—BEEEKED IR
—HANZABINEENIFRE
MR Z2EOME - A&H
U EREKE D 2 R EEE
BNMGEHEEK D 2 EIBE
REMAER  BEHP 2R
EREE5HEMAKID B
RUEBEEEHETHWNIFEE
BFAKE D ERNY AR
BREENAH - BRIFEET

SHAE -

AEBEAATEREDETE
FEE E ARy B TH E A AR
Do Btz - HiEEE
MRCER Y AT AERAZETH & 4R
FRER D A —THE KD A
B o

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

193



194

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles and properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight- line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

® any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line them within which the
corresponding underlying asset would be presented if they
were owned.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

e fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

® variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-
of- use assets, and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
OCCUrs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

* the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

Lease liabilities are presented as separate line item. The
Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

* the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of- use
asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets.
A lease modification is required by interest rate benchmark
reform if, and only if, both of these conditions are met:

e the modification is necessary as a direct consequence

of interest rate benchmark reform; and

* the new basis for determining the lease payments is
economically equivalent to the previous basis
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date at
amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on
the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

(u)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a seller — lessee
Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale
by the Group.

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a sale, the
Group as a seller-lessee measures the right-of-use asset
arising from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous
carrying amount of the asset and recognises any gain or
loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor
only.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include
trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
borrowings and lease liabilities. The risks associated with
these financial assets and liabilities include market risk
(interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risks
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to RMB, Japanese Yen (“Yen”) and USD
Dollars (“USD”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The management do not
expect the net foreign currency risk from these
activities to be significant and hence, the Group
do not presently hedge the foreign exchange
risks. The Group periodically review liquid
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries to evaluate its foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)
(@) Market risks (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against the USD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
RMB205,000 (2021: approximately RMB186,000)
higher/lower.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes on
interest bearing financial assets and liabilities,
mainly bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)

(@) Market risks (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continueq)

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for
interest bearing bank balances and variable rate
bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period and on the assumption that the amount of
assets and liabilities outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole
year.

If interest rates on bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings had been 100 basis
points (2021: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, post-
tax profit for the year will increase/decrease
by approximately RMB1,826,000 (2021:
approximately RMB1,722,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)

©)

Credit risk

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to logistics and
supply chain service for finished automobiles and
materials procurement and related logistic services
and are transacted in cash or credit. The Group’s
trade receivables arise from logistics and supply
chain service for finished automobiles and materials
procurement and related logistic services. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as 20% (2021: 30%)
and 50% (2021: 52%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers, respectively. The management
of the Group makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk refer to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default in their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets is the carrying amounts
of trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group's different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4,

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)

©)

Crediit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bill receivables are limited because
the counter parties have no historical default
record and the ECL on these items are considered
insignificant.

Besides, the Group monitors financial position of
debtors of other receivables closely and follow-up
action will be taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Deposit and other receivables as well as amount due
from joint venture are measured as either 12-month
ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Group established ECL
model based on historical settlement records, past
experience and available forward- looking information
which include GDP and other macro-economic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. The Group’s other receivables are
deposits or receivables arose from normal operations,
which based on management’s assessment, the credit
risk is not significant. In this regard, the directors are
satisfied that the risks of impairment are monitored
and adequate provision, if any, has been made in the
consolidated financial statements. On that basis, the
expected loss rate as at 31 December 2022 was 4.34
% (2021: 3.24%). Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of trade, bills and other receivables are set out
in Note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)

©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing.

As at 31 December 2022, all of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank deposits were deposited
with financial institutions which are reputable banks
with high credit rating incorporated in Mainland China.
Management believes that these financial institutions
are of high credit quality and does not have significant
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Provision of trade receivables

The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). On that basis, the ECL loss allowance
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2022 are:

4.1

i mRERE 7

BiEBEEE)
(b) 1EEREE)

(i)

B2 BRI RE

TRERRFES
ABEREEERGE
EERIE) AR
wREIAEES N
BREENICE Y G
ENEERBRNE
Fteo U ER
M 2022%F 12 A 31
B E 5 KR
BHEEERENE
BREETENT

Trade receivables

B A RWHIE
More than ~ More than
1 day 1 year
but less but less
than 1 than2 More than
No past  yearpast years past 2 years
due due due  past due Total
by B
1XEL  B1ERE  AHBA
31 December 2022 2022F 12 A31H N ME  DR2F 2F A&t
Expected credit loss rate BHIEEEER 2.79% 1.98% - -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Gross carrying amount & 8EEE
- Trade receivables - BHREWIE 248,267

Provision A 6,919

49,441

979

ARBTT ARETT ARBTR

- 297,708

= 7,898
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIFERSEZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZZ)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEERE)
() Provision of trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEKZRERE
(%)
Trade receivables
B RWGR

More than 1 More than 1
day butless yearbutless  More than
Nopast than1year than2 years 2 years
due past due past due past due Total
1REY  BIFE  a4B8
31 December 2021 2021F12 4318 L ME  PR2F 2F ast

Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRE 1.34% 098% NATER NANER

RMB'OCO  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR

Gross carrying amount BEEE
- Trade receivables - S RWGR 231,419 30,683 - - 262,102
Provision il 3,100 300 - - 3,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Provision of trade receivables (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group provided approximately RMB7,898,000
(2021: approximately RMB3,400,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on the
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired).

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group conducted a comprehensive
assessment on the trade receivables and made
a comprehensive consideration on the debtor’s
past repayment status, ageing and financial
status of the debtor. The Group performed
individual ECL assessment on those receivables
with known financial difficulties with are significant
and overdue for a long period. During the
year, the Group mainly considered the rapid
deterioration of credit status of several debtors,
which is expected to render the Company
not being able to collect some of its trade
receivables as scheduled. Therefore, debtors
with credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts
of approximately RMB197,170,000 (2021:
approximately RMB197,170,000) were assessed
individually, and the impairment allowance
of approximately RMB197,170,000 (2021:
approximately RMB197,170,000) were provided
against those gross amounts of trade reveivables.
The Group processed recovery action against
these credited-impaired debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Provision of trade receivables (Continued)

4. WHRERERER#)
4.1 MBEBEREGE)
b) 1EEERE)
) BEZEWKERE

The following tables show reconciliation of ECL
loss allowances of trade receivables as at 31

(%)

TR KK 2022 4F
12A31EW E 5

December 2022: BARRRBRAER
BEMEEREGEY
B -
RMB’000
ARETT
As at 1 January 2021 R20214F1A1H 201,594
Impairment loss reversal for the year FAREIRERBE (1,024)
As at 31 December 2021 and M2021F12 A31 B X
1 January 2022 202241 A1H 200,570
Provision for the year F RS 4,498
As at 31 December 2022 R 2022412 A 31 H 205,068
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HEEBEREZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZEZ)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1EEREE)
(i) Provision of deposit and other receivables (i) RERHEMERRK
B
Deposit and other receivables & KA &
H

The following tables show reconciliation of ECL
loss allowances for deposit and other receivables

TRIITRKR 2022 F
12 A31 HAZS &

(including amount due from joint venture) as at 31 Hh e KIB(BE
December 2022: FEW & & ERIE)
EHREEERENE
BREHEK
RMB’000
AR® T
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 4124
Provision for the year FREHE 2,027
As at 31 December 2021 and R2021F12 A31 B K
1 January 2022 20221 H1H 6,151
Provision for the year FRRE 1,277
As at 31 December 2022 2022412 A31 H 7,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HISEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZZ)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
(iii) Provision of prepayment (iii) FEAFRIERE
Prepayment to suppliers [a] (1 JE 7 5% 1T By 7E
NFE

The reconciliation of ECL loss allowance of
prepayment as at 31 December 2022 are:

R 20224 12 A 31
SRORERN R R Rt

EEBEENEEE
BEERR -
RMB’000
AR¥T
As at 1 January 2021 R20214F1A1H 46,172
Provision for the year FRRE 45,534
As at 31 December 2021, K2021412H31H -
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 20221 H1B K
2022412 A31H 91,706
The individually impaired prepayments related EBRRENTENR
to suppliers that were in financial difficulties. T8 B 7 R B T I 35
The directors of the Company estimated the WtEm AR - K
amounts of impairment is after taking into NAElEEBREETR

consideration when events came to the attention
of management that there were media reports
about the liquidity problem of suppliers and their
performance on subsequent settlements of the
Group’s prepayments.

BEBEK ZEF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continuead)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

During the year, the following impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss:

i mRERE 7
BHEREEE)

4.1

©)

1B ()
FA - ERERARER A
TRUEETE ¢

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETRT

Provision for ECL on deposit and e ME M FE W RIER

other receivables TEEEEBERE (1,277) (2,027)
Provision for ECL on prepayment T RIEEBEE
EERE - (45,534)
(Provision)/reversal for ECL on B RWGIBEBEER
trade receivables B8 (BE) & (4,498) 1,024
(5,775) (46,537)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held
or other credit enhancements:

R A R E e E M
EERERINERSEER
A E

Maximum exposure

&= R
2022 2021
2022 & 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETET

Credit risk exposure relating to BEBERXRINBEEEHADN

off balance sheet items EERRAE

— financial guarantees — IR - 8,952
At 31 December ®12 A31H - 8,952
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4. HIEERER#)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZZ)
(c)  Liquidity risk © EEELERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEBRBERRRA
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash H AEBEERRERFH
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to RekReEENEER
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects BRRBEHBNAEEE
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management monitors EATREKTE - WRER
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures ERERPBNTE - B
compliance with loan covenants. ERIRITERNEAE
W BRETEREE -
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFAIFEEERBE
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities. The BRTERNEIEER - BE
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted HRTDIERAEERFEA
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest BEZAEMBERER
date on which the Group is required to pay. The tables REREEE - JIREHE
include both interest and principal cash flows. FMERKSHEERE °
Over Over
3months 6 months
Weighted but not but not Total
average  Lessthan  morethan  more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months 6 months 1year Overiyear  cashflows amount
BB=A EB~fEA FHR
il R B8 BRER RénE
TR =féR ~MER -F BE-E 4% HEA
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
% ARMTz ARMTn ARETr ARMTR  ARETz  ARETn
As at 31 December 2022 R02F12A31A
Non-derivative FEeRAE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables ECLE TR - 349,549 53,700 165,000 - 568,249 568,249
Borrowings &3 5.83 205,699 65,592 17,909 = 289,200 285,175
Lease liabilties HERE 5.08 6,081 6,032 11,724 34,557 58,394 54,997
561,329 125,324 194,633 34,557 915,843 908,421
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIERER2)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZEZ)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) © mEELEEE)
QOver QOver
3 months 6 months
Weighted but not but not Total
average lessthan  morethan  more than undiscounted Camyjing
interest rate 3 months 6 months Tyear  Overiyear  cashflows amount
HB=ER BB ER e
it T 1R B8 Réng
T =R AER —£ e s g BEE

%  RMBOOO  RWMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB000  RMB'00D
% ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12 8318

Non-Gerivative financial iabilties ~ EAT4 2 RATE
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNGE = 371,151 53,700 165,000 - 589,861 589,851
Borrowings 3 550 44,255 187,232 25,830 - 2571317 251,490
Lease liabilties HERE 510 6,422 5,969 11,810 55,767 79,968 78,538

421828 246,901 202,640 55,767 927,136 914,679
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4, HISEREE 2)

4.2 Capital risk management 4.2 EXREKRER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as bank
borrowings.

The Group monitors it capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. The Group’s gearing ratio (ratio of borrowings
(including borrowings and lease liabilities) to total equity) is
approximately 34% (2021: 33%). There were no changes
in the Group’s approach to capital management during the
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4,

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

@

Fair value of financial instrument

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i)  the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market prices; and

(i)  the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term
nature of these financial instruments.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
Level 3, the Group engages independent professional
valuer to perform the valuation.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(a)  Fair value of financial instrument (Continued)

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the assets or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOt B mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continueq)

@

Fair value of financial instrument (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are

meassured at fair value on a recurring basis:

4.

i mRERE 7
4.3 TRMIANQIAEBESEE)

@ ZHIANLEEE)
AREBZLEEMARE
EFfFENEREENAR

B1E :
Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE E=B &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®BTR

2022F12731H
BBEAMEEA
A BEDIRA

i

BRTAE

31 December 2022

Equity instruments at
fair value through
other comprehensive
income

31 December 2021 2021512H31H
Equity instruments FiREMEEIA
at fair value through EAREEYRY
other comprehensive &z T A
income

29,041 5,286 34,327

29,349 7,488 36,837
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

4. HIEERER#)
4.3 TRMIANQIAEBESEE)

(Continued)
(@)  Fair value of financial instrument (Continued) (@) ZETALLIEEGE)
Fair value Significant
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  Valuation technique(s) unobservable input(s)
RTHIERHE) DAEE B
TREE NhBE BR IERMN FBEGARE
2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TR
Private equity investments 29,041 29,349 Level 2 Net asset value N/A
at FvTOCl
BREMZERARRAER £_E HEE% ok
SR ALERERE
Private equity investments 5,286 7,488 Level 3 Market approach Discount for lack of marketability
at FVTOCI (Note 1) of 17.48% (2021: 23.55%)
5% HRZmERFNNTNA

BREMEEMARLR
(

B 5%
SIS RIER A (3

ft
131)

17.48% (2021 % : 23.55%)

There were no transfers amongst Level 2 and Level 3
in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 and no change in valuation
techniques used in prior years.

Included in other comprehensive income is an amount
of RMB2,510,000 loss (2021:RMB20,382,000 loss
relating to unlisted private equity investment at FVTOCI
held at the end of the current reporting period and is
reported as changes of FVTOCI reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(Continueq)

(@) Fair value of financial instrument (Continued)

Note 1: A slight increase in the discount for lack of

marketability used in isolation would result in a
decrease in the fair value measurement of the
private equity investments at FVTOCI, and vice
versa. A 5% increase in the discount for lack of
marketability holding all other variables constant
would decrease the carrying amount of private
equity investments at FVTOCI to the other
comprehensive income by RMB285,000.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

4.

BB ARAT

i mRERE 7
4.3 TRMIANQIAEBESEE)

@ ZHIARLEEGE)
iz : EBEANERZ
™35 M F AV 4T 0
MEME MG ESE
BEBEMEERK
AR AEEYK
m&%&%&%m
AABERY X
Zﬁ% EMAH
m*g%hT
BERT HRZ
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%
me% i & 8% H
fh2mEPEEDEB
Hib 2EPAE R
R BEF KL
EBRERENE
mERDARE
285,000 7T °

SR SEHHIERR G5t ANIHRAR
KESRIR

FEREINREHTBRERME22
REEGHBKRE  EEARARR
Hi KRB AT EERBER
EEEDAE - HethEBER- BH
HEREERZDRBRATLER K
Hi R AHEE s A=EL - BERIE
AT BEB RN ZE AT ©

lﬁt%fﬁﬂ&*ﬁ%@ﬁ HREFETUE

o AT EET @B EL &
nTE’JHﬂFﬁgiw 2. AFREEETR
SEZHABMABR: WesHE
ST IR MR RIS EA R
2 AlgfEEL BT BEMAR
HAfS A HERR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(@)  Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and other receivables with significant balances and
credit-impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
trade and bills receivables. The provision rates are based on
internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information
are considered. In addition, trade and bills receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(@) Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables
(Continued)

For other receivables, the management makes periodic
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records, past
experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates.

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade, bills
and other receivables are disclosed in Note 4.1(b).

(b)  Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves certain
assumptions of market conditions which are set out in Note
15.

In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to estimated rental
values with reference to the current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate
reversionary yield and expected profit margin.

As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties is approximately RMB408,500,000
(2021: approximately RMB412,900,000).

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported the Group’s senior management, being
the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the purpose
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or service delivered or provided.

The Group reports two operating segments; these are managed
independently by the responsible segment management bodies
in line with the products and services offered and the distribution
channels and customer profiles involved. Components of
entity are defined as segments on the basis of the existence of
segment managers with revenue and segment results (profit
earned by/loss from) each segment before income tax, certain
other gain and loss, litigation settlement, finance cost, share of
results of investments accounted for using the equity method,
gain on deemed disposal of joint venture and corporate expenses
responsibility who report directly to the CODM who make
strategic decisions.

Principal activities of the Group’s two reportable segments are as
follows:

Supply chain and logistics service for finished automobiles
and components — Provision of logistics services and supply
chain management, i.e. planning, storage and transportation
management for finished automobile and components; and

Materials procurement and related logistics services — Sales
of raw materials to customers comprising principally trading
companies and provision of related services of transportation
management, storage, warehouse supervising and management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. nEBER 2
The investments accounted for using the equity method mainly KAEREARNEEZZ RIRE
carry out provision of supply chain and logistics services for BEFTEHHERY MRS 0 k2
electronic components; and provision of cold chain logistics HRERIRTS ©
services.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE02F12ANALEE

Logistics
and supply
chain service Materials
for finished procurement
automobiles  andrelated  Reportable

and logistics ~ segments All other
components services subtotal  segments Total
RERER
SNHMEE  MERER CES: g
WRER RENRRE At R 2% #st

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AREBTR ARETR ARMTR  ARMTR

Revenue WA 1,337,661 1915236 3,252,807 63,060 3,315,957
ﬁj\

Inter-segment revenue HRmMUA - (7,378) (7,378) (7,436) (14,814)
Revenue from external customers REMIEFHBA 1,337,661 1,907,858 3,245,519 55624 3,301,143
Time of revenued recognition WARERER
At a point in time PNE-BEY 1,337,661 1,907,858 3,245,519 55,624 3,301,143
Segment results PEEE 83,325 (22,985) 60,340 14,082 74,422
Share of results of investments accounted REEZENENER

for using the equity method REXG 94,935
Gain on deemed dlisposal of joint venture RILESELENNE 1,605
Unallocated other gain and loss - net APRAMKEREE - 58 15,662
Unallocated corporate expenses RARLAARR (6,495)
Litigation settlement il (38,632)
Finance costs BERK (20,702)
Profit before income tax RETERATER 80,795
Income tax expense FigmmY (21,261)
Profit for the year EREH 99,534
Other information: HfER
Depreciation and amortisation RERBH (32,236) (6,401) (38,637) (114) (39,351)
Additions to non-current assets BERE AR 14,958 - 14,958 2,681 17,639
Income tax (expense)/crealt FH(Ex)/Ee (22,047) 933 (21,114) (147) (21,261)
Loss on change in fair values RENEN BELTER

of investment properties - - = (4,400) (4,400)
Impairment loss of trade, bills EHRNFE - RUEER

and other receivables, net Ef YRR RE

B 58 (2,540) (3,228) (5,768) (1) (5,775)

Net (loss)/gain on dlisposal of property, MENE - BREREN

plant and equipment F(ER)/ s (346) - (346) 28 (318)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

6. SEER @)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12A31 AILLERE
Logistics
and supply
chain service Materials
forfinished  procurement
automobiles  andrelated  Reportable
and logistics segments All other
components services subtotal segments Total
AEEER
THHMREE  WEARER FES: ]
Wnik® EEMRRS DR EthA @z
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARETT AR%TT ARETR AR
Revenue ON 1,381,906 1,646,429 3,028,334 63,941 3,092,275
Inter-segment revenue RN - 9,211) (9,211) (13,250) (22,461)
Revenue from external customers RENMBEFHKA 1,381,905 1,637,218 3,019,123 50,691 3,069,814
Time of revenued recognition WARER
At a point in time RE—EEH 1,381,905 1,637,218 3,019,123 50,691 3,069,814
Segment results NEEE 127,853 (62,477) 65,376 25,215 90,591
Share of results of investments RAEREARNERD
accounted for using the equity method &£ 33,755
Unallocated other gain and loss - net AOREMNERER - FE 16,637
Unallocated corporate expenses RARAART (4,778)
Finance costs BMERA (23,545)
Profit before income tax B PTG B ATE N 112,660
Income tax expense FiEfiR% (33,352)
Profit for the year ERRT 79,308
Other information: HipEH
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (36,685) (6,350) (43,035) (759) (43,794)
Additions to non-current assets EMERBHEE 1,182 221 11,359 101,139 112,498
Income tax expense FERRAY (32,439) (645) (33,084) (268) (33,352)
Gain on change in fair values of RENFAAEELZEKE
investment properties - - - 9,511 9,511
Impairment loss of trade, bills BHRWTE  BRUZER
and other receivables, net Hth R
MREEE F8 (10) (46,884) (46,894) 357 (46,537)
Net loss on disposal of property, HENE - BERRED
plant and equipment el (312) (24) (336) (60) (396)

2022 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #



230

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) from each segment
without allocation of certain corporate administrative costs
such as directors’ emoluments, share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity method and corporate finance
costs. To arrive at reportable segment result, the management
additionally provides segment information concerning major
non-cash items such as depreciation and amortisation, gain on
change in fair value of investment properties, impairment loss
of trade, bills and other receivables and income tax expenses
derived from reportable segments. Unallocated corporate
income mainly comprises interest income and dividend income
from equity instruments. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

All revenue contracts are for a period of one year or less, as
permitted by practical expedient under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contacts is not disclosed.

Sales between segments are carried out based on mutually
agreed price. The revenue from external parties reported to the
senior management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Total segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are
not regularly provided to and reviewed by the Group’s senior
management.

Geographical information

All the Group’s operations and non-current assets are located in
the PRC, and all the Group’s revenue of the external customers
is attributed to the PRC. Therefore, no analyses of geographical
segment is presented for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuec) 6. HNEIER &=
Information about major customer FERFER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing REEEFRERERHEEATE10%
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: A EMEFPAMALT
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR%®TR
Customer A' BEEA 1,187,678 1,252,635
Customer B2 EFB? 418,812 368,569
Customer C? B C? 343,115 529,148
Notes: BEE -
1 Revenue are generated from logistics and supply chain service for L REBERTIHHREEER
finished automobiles and components segment. D EEAERUA o
2 Revenue are generated from materials procurement and related 2 Y& iR g R AR YR AR 7% o AR E
logistics services segment. AR o
OTHER GAIN AND LOSS - NET 7. HfthimREsiE —jF$288
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TRT ARETET
Government grant (Note) BT #e8 Bl (B EE) 1,829 7,966
Interest income from bank and joint venture REWITRAEEEERN
FEHA 15,662 16,637
Net foreign exchange gain b H a5 R 656 279
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREED
plant and equipment FEE (318) (396)
Dividends income from equity instruments REBBEMBEBAR
at fair value through other comprehensive AABEYERNER TR
income B AR B M A 512 577
Gain on deemed disposal of joint venture BEHESZPENIREE
(Note 11) (H5E11) 1,605 -
Others Hi 131 211
20,077 25,274
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SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

7. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS - NET (Continued) 7.
Note:

Government grant represents subsidies and awards from local
government authorities for the Group’s contribution to the development
of the local economies.

During the current year, the Group recognised approximately
RMB1,162,000 (2021: approximately RMB6,174,000) in respect
of COVID-19-related value-added tax exemption provided by the
local government in accordance with Ministry of Finance, General
Administration of Taxation, General Administration of Customs Joint
Announcement No. 39 of 2019. According to the announcement, the
value-added tax exemption is effective until 31 December 2022.

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:

Hith i e IR #5168 — iF 840

B3 -

BURRE TR 7T BUT R A AN R B S B R
HolER AP RO B BRI 4% 1 R RG % HE R

RAFE » ANEE B 5 BT RIE S B
KA RSHAE RS 2019F F 395
1R AL AT I A AR R IE EB A R TR AU
AR #1,162,0007T(2021F : HARKE
6,174,0007C ) ° IRIFEZ NS - HEMR
BHEME20229F12 A31H °

Bk Pfy 15 58 B i )

BRPTIS T AT A 2 IR A R B IR -

2022 2021

2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETR AR%®TET

Auditors’ remuneration ZH AN & 1,747 1,772
Cost of materials purchased B8 B RR KA 1,316,531 743,286
Subcontracting charges DB 1,691,951 1,997,812
Employee benefits expenses (Note 9) EERAMAX (HE9) 133,383 134,643
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 473 -« ME &R EITE 16,812 15,606
Depreciation or right-of-use assets CRREENE 22,539 28,188
Transportation B 14,659 9,045
Fuel R 10,204 9,542
Business tax B 9,309 10,430
Others Eib 8,716 5,288
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses $5& AR & 17 B B 2 4858 3,225,851 2,955,612
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Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9. ESiEnIB=
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Wages and salaries TERHS 83,521 87,422
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIKEFIFT B 3K 43,790 42,658
Others Eib 6,072 4,563
Total employee benefit expenses EERA AL A% 133,383 134,643
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBSTBRAEMS
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Directors’ fee Rk 731 650
Other emoluments: Hip< -
— Salaries and allowances — e MR, 270 349
— Performance related incentives and bonus  —i#&RIFE M ES
K AE4T 363 248
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions ~ — R K@ FIET 2 ¢t 50 199 193
1,563 1,440
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SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9. (EEMEHIZ#)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERRETHAEMS(ZE)
(Continueq)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BEEEFERERTTHABREZE 2022
for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out below: F12A3TBIEFERNHFMAT :

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefit
Directors’ and incentives scheme
Fees allowances and bonus contributions Total

BERABHN BHREN
EZHE FEREE RERRA AR CEH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARMTR AREBTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR

The chief executive and director: SRTRABRES:
Yang Weihong i - 210 363 199 832
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Li Jian £ 50 - - - 50
Peng Bo (Note i 2 (Wit 35 - - - 35
Zheng Yuying (Note ii BB (WL 35 - - - 35
Jo Shibin (¥, 50 - - - 50
Zhou Zhiyuan (Note iv) LR (MEiv) 15 - - - 15
Zhang Yan (Note v) KR (HEv) 15 - - - 15
Independent non-executive directors: B FEH{TES
Cheng Xinsheng Bk 150 - - - 150
Japhet Sebastian Law #E 150 - - - 150
Peng Zuowen ZIEX 150 - - - 150
He Yongjun (Note vi) CEEAC D) 81 - - - 81
731 270 363 199 1,563
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OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9. (EEfEmlifsz#)

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a)

(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below

ESREETRAEBME(E)

REERRSTBRAEBREE

Salaries
Directors’ and
Fees  allowances

EEHE  FEREA
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

2021 F12 A1 AL FEMF
BT
Performance  Retirement
related benefit
incentives scheme
and bonus  contributions Total
BRERFERD RIEH
#e A HET:5 ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR

The chief executive and director: RRTHABRES:
Yang Weihong B - 349 248 193 790
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Li Jian £ 50 - - - 50
Peng Bo (Note i i (fsEi) 50 - - - 50
Zheng Yuying (Note ii B8 (ki) 50 - - - 50
Jo Shibin BEH 50 = = - 50
Independent non-executive directors: B FEHITES
Cheng Xinsheng BHE 150 - - - 150
Japhet Sebastian Law iy ¢ 150 - - - 150
Peng Zuowen ZIEX 150 - - - 150
Zhou Zisheng (Note vil R B g (R vi) S - - - -
650 349 248 193 1,440
Note: MizE -

(i) For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the current year.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of office.

B £2022 F 2021512 A
STALLFE  WEEEN&
BITRAB#RHERAEHE
BRI FE RN AET S
ZHE ©

B E 20224 k2021612 R
STHLEFE  AEEIER
FRESIRABRERTSA
THEM—BZARM - ER
MAREE 2 #BEIS R INA
REBRRAESNM A
BEEREE(E o
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SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9.
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continueq)
(i)  Peng Bo was resigned from the position of non-executive

director on 15 September 2022.

(i)  Zheng Yuying was resigned from the position of non-
executive director on 15 September 2022.

(iv)  Zhou Zhiyuan was appointed as an non-executive director
on 15 September 2022.

(v)  Zhang Yan was appointed as an non-executive director on
15 September 2022.

(v He Yongjun was appointed as an independent non-executive
director on 16 June 2022.

(vi)  Zhou Zisheng resigned from the position of independent
non-executive director on 15 September 2021.

(b) The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 include
one (2021: one) director whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four (2021: four) individuals, included four
(2021: four) senior management during the year ended 31
December 2022 are as follows:

ST )

(a)

(b)

ESRERTRAEME(H)

(iy EHR2022%F9 A 15 AFHTE
HEHITEE -

@iy EBFEER 202249 15 HE
EIEMITES -

vy REEMR2022F9H15H%
ZERFHITES -

(v)  RAR2022%49 A15A¥Z
ERIFBITES -

(vi) fRIBER2022F6 A 16 HE
ZRERBILIFPITES -

i) ABEER2021 915 HE
EBN I TESE o

B E2022F12A31B IEFE
rEBESHFHONARALZ
o HER—F(2021F : —F&)
AEE HWEEBR LAt
#FE o RE E20224 12 A 31
A I FEER T2 T U (2021
F:OE) AT (BiEEA (2021
F.NZ)EREEAS)EH
mr

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT ARETx

Employees ==
— salaries and allowances — e MoERL 2,925 2918
- performance related incentives and bonus  — & R I\ WA ES
RAEAL 270 104
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RRRE A ET B K 217 100
3,412 3,122
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Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9. [EStEHIRs#)
(¢) The emoluments of the individuals with the highest (c) EEZSMESEARNT T
emoluments are within the following bands: AT #&RIA -
Number of individuals AEL
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Emolument bands B < A% 7
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000 7T 4 4
(d) The emoluments of the Group’s senior management fell (d) AEESREEEHNSAR L
within the followings bands: N
Number of individuals AEL
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Emolument bands B <& A% 7
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 4 4
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. REERXN
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AR%TE
Interest on borrowings wholly BER—FRNBHEENER
repayable within one year HFE 17,508 17,087
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 3,194 6,458
20,702 23,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOt B mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(@) Subsidiaries

a. RMERCINIRE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

(@) MEAFE
AN RR2022F12 31 *

December 2022: ENBRAIMNRE
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Place of Registered held by
Incorporation capital/ Proportion of non-controlling
Name of and kind of paid up issued ordinary shares interests
Subsidiary legal entity Principal activities ~ ordinary shares held by the Group(%) (%)
L FERERE
BHREE ERRLA
DRER BERER TEER TRER FEBFELERILA (%) (%)
Directly Indirectly
B B
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022%F 20215 2022%F 20215
% % % %
Tianjin Fengtian China, limited Transportation of USD8,645,600  52%  52% - - 48%
Logistics Co., liability company finished vehicles
Ltd. (“TFL") and supply chain
management services
REEMYRERAR  hE AREARF EEERRHERE 8,645,600 %7
(TRzgHEMR)) EERG
TEDA General Bonded  China, limited Warehouse operations  RMB80,000,000  100%  100% - = =
Warehouse Co., Ltd. liability company and logistic services
FRERBERENS e BREART  GARERMIRRE AR
REAERAT 80,000,0007T
Tianjin Yuan Da Xian Dai- China, limited Logistic services RMB20,000,000  100%  100% - = =
Logistics Co., Ltd. liability company
RETRBRYR HE - BREERR YRS NEE
BRAF 20,000,0007T
Tianjin TEDA International China, limited International RMB5,000,000  51%  51% - - 49%
Freight Forwarding liability company transportation
Co., Ltd. agency services
REZERRGERE  PE AREELA  ERERRERS ARE
BRAR 5,000,0007C
Tianjin TEDA Supply China, limited Technical service RMB10,000,000  100%  100% - = =
Chain Technology liability company
Co., Ltd.
REFEHEERE HE - BREALRE KRB AR
ARAT 10,000,0007¢
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OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

(b)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December
2022 is approximately RMB125,384,000 (2021:
approximately RMB137,196,000) of which approximately
RMB129,085,000 (2021: approximately RMB140,878,000)
is for TFL. The non-controlling interests in respect of Tianjin
TEDA International Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. is not
material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group

Set out below are the summarised financial information for

11a. RMIBLSINIRE (&)
(b) EAFERER

R20224 12 A 31 B 3
BREZBSBBORAREK
125,384,000 713(2021 F:HA
R #137,196,0007T) * HF 4
AR# 129,085,000 7t (2021
& ) AR % 140,878,000 7T)
REREZRYR - ﬁ?ﬁ%%
REBBREEREARA

IR ER TBEKX o

HEHEXEFBEAHHER
EEERIHE L A BEERHE

TXHEFIRZERYRNM B

TFL. ERBE -
Summarised statement of financial position BRI R E
2022 2021
2022 2021 5
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREKTT
Current TRED
Assets BE 380,256 444,142
Liabilities =R (201,010) (239,171)
Net current assets REEEFE 179,246 204,971
Net non-current assets ERBEEFE 89,681 88,525
Net assets BEE 268,927 293,496
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

11a. RMIBLSTINIRE (&)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) EXRFERERZ)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries HFEHEEEHEEAWHEZER
with non-controlling interests that are material to the BRI E LA BEERBE
Group (Continued) (&)
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMEZEBARBME
comprehensive income
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREKTT
Revenue LN 1,337,661 1,381,905
Profit before income tax BR P45 2% Bl A 84,553 127,674
Income tax expense TSR (22,047) (32,439)
Profit and total comprehensive FERMRZEBALLE
income for the year 62,506 95,235
Total comprehensive income DT IR E R R
allocated to non-controlling interests ZHEIWAERE 30,003 45,713
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 1 FE4E A A 25 A% B, 41,796 42576
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLI

For the year ended 31 December

DATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B O R R R
2022 BEE2022F 12 431 HIFFZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 11a. RMIBLSINIRE (&)
Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) EXRFERERZ)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries HFEHAEFBEALHZR
with non-controlling interests that are material to the BRI E LA BEERBE
Group (Continued) (&)
Summarised statement of cash flows HEREBRUE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESRE
Cash generated from operations 2IBATRIRE 98,931 130,091
Interest received BRI & 4,622 4,251
Interest paid =ANEESS (3,194) (4,295)
Income tax paid EfFEH (26,142) (36,114)
Net cash generated from RETHMBREFH

operating activities 74,217 93,933
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMARSFE (11,694) (7,624)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEBMARSFE (108,471) (114,836)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R4 NIESZEY

R RE (45,948) (28,527)

Cash and cash equivalents at FURe KRS EEY

beginning of year 283,508 312,035
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEZEY

at end of year 237,560 283,508

The information above is the amount before inter-companies
eliminations.

ERER A RRIFEEENE
B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOt B mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are as follows:

11b. IRABRANARNIRE

REHVBRAXRERND BN
T

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000

The Group AEE AR¥BTR ARETT
Associates LN 22,829 20,751
Joint ventures & ERT] 245,171 206,474
At 31 December ®12 A31H 268,000 227,225

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

REFIREREMEmBARER
MEREAT ¢

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Associates il/NE] 2,393 1,718
Joint ventures WS 52,542 32,037
For the year ended 31 December HE12A31BIEFE 54,935 33,755
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11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investment in associates

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

11b. IRABRANRNIRE ()

(a) REEQATWRE

At 1 January

Share of results of associates

Dividends received

w1 A1A8
JE(RBEE N A E4E
B U h% 8

At 31 December

Mm12 A31H

2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
20,751 29,994
2,393 1,718
(315) (10,961)
22,829 20,751

Set out below are associates of the Group as at 31
December 2022, which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the Group. The associates as listed below have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are
held directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business.

T X H Y| A& B 2022412 A 31
BEERREAEEERNBER
A o NI FTYEEE R AR R AN E 4
HASEEEFANEBRAEK
AME YK EBEENBERTIAEEE
EES R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investment in associates (Continued)

Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December

11b. IRAIERAARNIRE (2)

(a) REBEQATHNRE(E)

HR2022F 12 531 HRBEE L

2022 ANREME
Proportion
of ordinary
Place of shares
business/ directly held
country of by the Group  Nature of Measurement
Name of company incorporation (%) the relationship method
r&EE
g EERE
W/ LER
ARER B LAY BI R Bhl(%) BEEE GEREE
Directly held:
BERE
Tianjin Port Gangwan RMB150,000,000  China 40%  Carrying out the Equity
International Automobile Group’s automobile
Logistics Co., Ltd. storage and related
(“Gangwan Automobile”) services
REBBEERTENR AR®150,0000000 40% REEELLRE  #x
BRRR(HERE]) FHRABRS
Tianjin Tianxin RMB5,000,000  China 30%  Carrying out the Equity
Automobile Inspection Group’s vehicle
Services Co., Ltd. inspection services
(“Tianxin Inspection”)
RERBRBBRBRS AR®5,0000007 30% REAEELLERE #x

BRRA(RERA])

The associates of the Group are private companies and
there are no quoted market prices available.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s

interest in the associates.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)
METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investment in associates (Continuead)

Summarised financial information for associates

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the associates of the Group which are accounted for using
the equity method and the share of the profits are material

to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

(a) REBEQATHNRE(E)

=52
=

BELAUBEEHHE

PO E R A EEEA
RABMGEEMNEAEEN B
ERMEE QAW EE RS

Gangwan Automobile

Tianxin Inspection

BERE REBA

2022 2021 2022 2021

2022 F 20214 2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRT ARETRT AR¥BTR ARET:X

Current RE

Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 44,292 46,002 7,086 1,494
Other current assets Hip e &= 5,590 1,002 1,419 1,287
Total current assets TEEERE 49,882 47,004 8,505 2,781
Current liabilities mEAaE (4,549) (4,048) (1,406) (819)
Total current net assets BRBEETFE 45,333 42,956 7,099 1,962
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,821 2,166 6,125 7,044
Net assets BEEFRE 47,154 45,122 13,224 9,006
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FRRIEBEZNARMNIIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) MEZEQATNKRE(E)
Summarised financial information for associates BENRMBERREE)
(Continued)

Summariesd statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMGEZEBASE

comprehensive income

Gangwan Automobile Tianxin Inspection
BERE REWA
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 % 20214 2022 F 2021 F

RMB’'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBETT AR¥TR AR®TE

Revenue WA 42,313 37,110 18,284 21,829
Depreciation and amortisation e R H (776) (628) (918) (1,882)
Interest income FEWA 761 1,291 20 63
Profit before income tax BRETBHATEF 2,933 120 5,624 7,948
Income tax expense FrEfimX (113) (327) (1,406) (1,946)
Profit/(loss) and total FEERAN/(BR)R

comprehensive ZEKRA(BER)

income/(loss) for the year A 2,820 (207) 4,218 6,002
Dividends received B 1 FUEL

from associates RS 315 4,461 - 6,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)
(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) MEZEQATNKRE(E)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information BB ERBER TR

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in
associates:

FiT 2 51 B 75 & R B 22 B B
R EmAREEZ R FEET -

Summarised financial information

Gangwan Automobile Tianxin Inspection

BERE REWA
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F 2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AREBTT AR%¥®TR ARETT
Opening net assets at 1 January M1 A1 8#
FHEEFE 45,122 56,482 9,006 24,671
Profit/(loss) and total FERA/ (BB R
comprehensive income FEHRALRE
for the year 2,820 (207) 4,218 6,002
Dividends [id5) (788) (11,153) - (21,667)
Closing net assets at R12A31HH
31 December FREEFE 47,154 45,122 13,224 9,006
Interest in associates /NG o) e 18,862 18,049 3,967 2,702
(b) Investment in joint ventures (b) REEQATNRE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AR®ET T
At 1 January ®m1A1H 206,474 196,187
Share of profits of joint ventures BihEERamN 52,542 32,037
Gain on deemed disposal of joint ventures ~ RFHEA B ERIE 1,605 -
Dividends received B Uz B (15,450) (21,750)
At 31 December ®12 A31H 245,171 206,474
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FRRIEBEZNARMNIIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b)

REERRANRE (&)

Nature of investment in joint ventures as at 31 R2022F 12531 HREE L

December 2022 AHREME
Place of
business/ % of
country of ownership  Nature of the Measurement
Name of company Registered capital incorporation interest  relationship method
B M GEEE 4 3
ARER afEx  HYMER ARl EEEE SRR
Tedahang Cold Chain RMB200,000,000  China 60%  Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. cold warehouse
(“Tedahang’) (note) operating and
logistic services
REM(RR)REMR AR¥200,000,0007T 60% RAFEEZ s
BRAR(FRET]) REBER
CiE3) W AR
Tianjin Alps Teda USD6,367,000  China 49%  Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. (2021: 50%) supplying chain
(‘Tianjin Alps”) (note) management services
REREMARIAMRER 6,367,000%L 49% RAKELE s
RAE(TR2MARE]) (20214 : 50%)  fEEERRHS
i)
Dalian Alps Teda USD2,400,000  China 50%  Garrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. material procurement
(“Dalian Alps”) logistics and supply
chain management
services
AEREMRLHNTER 2,400,000%7 50% RAFEELZ Ba
RE|([REMRRE]) MERBIR R
HRERE R R

The joint ventures of the Group are private companies and

there is no quoted market price available.

EANETE ©
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11b.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)

(b)

Investment in joint ventures (Continued)

note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the registered capital
of Tianjin Alps was enlarged and the Group’s effective equity
interest in Tianjin Alps was diluted to 49% as a result of new
capital contribution being injected in form of reinvestment of
profits by other joint venturer (the “Deemed Disposal”). Before the
Deemed Disposal, the Group owned 50.0% interest in Tianjin Alps
and the investment was previously accounted for as an investment
in a joint venture using the equity method of accounting. Upon the
completion of the Deemed Disposal, the Tianjin Alps continued to
be classified a joint venture. This transaction has resulted in the
Group recognising a gain of deemed disposal of approximately
RMB1,605,000 in profit or loss.

The Group holds 60% and 49% of the registered capital of
Tedahang and Tianjin Alps, respectively. However, under the
articles of association, the major financing and operational decision
of Tedahang and Tianjin Alps should be unanimously approved by
the Group and other ventures. Therefore, Tedahang and Tianjin
Alps are regarded as joint ventures of the Group.

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
joint ventures of the Group which is accounted for using the
equity method:

11b. IRABRANRNIRE ()

(b)

REEDAWRE (&)
Wi

REZE2022F12 A31 BILFEE -
REAMEEATANHEREN T
NETH " HBEIE(RTHES
B ) BIEAXKEME BT A
BER - AEBRKEMBEHTHE
B S M A 58 = 40% - RAB T

EREM - AREHRERZNE
R HI50.0% KMz - BRI IR
RESZEEFIRE ARINER A

BRRMEE - RRETHEERER
W& REMBEHDEEAGE

NEl e REARSEHAKERER
FHRIARTEENRZHDARE
1,605,000 7T ©

REEDRIEE FETRKEN
22 HT60% K 49% sk it B AN o 4%
i REBEARER  RETERKE
PRI E AR E RS RK AR
REEREMTEE R —BUlbE -

Sl 4Lﬁ&%%ﬂ@$%ﬁﬁ
REEENEERTR]
BENAHMBEREE

AT REAREENEGZE QR
REREARNMBERS
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FRRIEBEZNARMNIIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQATNKRE (&)
Summarised statement of financial position BRI R E
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET PN:a) L] REMAERE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 2021 2022 F 20215 2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR%TRT ARETT ARETR AR®TT
Current E
Cash and cash equivalents Re kB2 EEY 51,216 6,769 263,196 162,137 28,568 28,354
Other current assets HitRaEE 38,972 41,344 125,580 133,873 76,322 70,976
Total current assets REAERE 90,188 48,113 388,776 296,010 104,890 99,330
Borrowings ETA (5,000) (5,000) - - (4,179) (3,825)
Other current liabilties HibrEaE (85,688)  (55,618) (144,793) (100,700)  (47,290)  (46,971)
Total current liabilfies rEaEeE (00,688)  (60,618) (144,793) (100,700)  (51,469)  (50,796)
Net current (liabilities)/assets ~ HE(&1E) EEFE (500) (12,505) 243,983 195,301 53,421 48,534
Non-current FRB
Total non-current assets IFRBEELE 248111 261,396 102,158 100,853 5,218 5,579
Borrowings & = (8,962) - - - -
Other non-current liabilities HibERBak (134,025) (156,700)  (22,960)  (15,888) - -
Total non-current liabilities FnRBEELEE (134,025) (165,652)  (22,960)  (15,888) - =
Net non-current assets FRBEETFE 114,086 95,744 79,198 84,965 5,218 5,579
Net assets EEFE 113,586 83,239 323,181 280,266 58,639 54,113

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEAiEZENARNRE &)

METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWERE (#&)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures EELAHBEERBEE)
(Continued)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMEZEBARBME
comprehensive income
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET KBRS KEMAERE
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

2022 2021 2022% 2021 202%F  2021%
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARNMTE

Revenue WA 351,575 251,248 821,396 703,767 209,859 213,997
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (15,508)  (14,243) (4,653) (3,576) (1,141) (1,023)
Interest income FIEMA 107 63 1,367 1,234 - =
Interest expense FIEXH (8,583) (9,827) - - (122) 112)
Profit before income tax F?Fﬁ1=rﬁﬂu/ﬁ%l 30,347 15,693 85,502 53,726 8,026 7,013
Income tax expense NEHES - - (22,041) (13,638) (2,100) (1,858)
Profit and total comprehensive FE&FIRZEKA

income for the year k] 30,347 15,693 63,461 40,088 5,926 5,155
Dividends received from BAEARKERN

joint ventures KE - - 14,750 15,750 700 6,000
The information above reflects the amount presented in LT ENRM®EE QAN EREKA
the financial statements of the joint ventures adjusted for Z2IHeRE VEREAEEHESGE
differences in accounting policies between the Group and NRIZEGEBERMZERNEL I -

the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. fRFE&REARMNIRE 2)

METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWERE (&)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BERTYBEERBEE)
(Continueq)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information FI25| M BERMERERE
presented to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint ZRRINEREREEZER
ventures are as follows: FEWT
Summarised financial information HEERBE
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET PN=amE KEM R
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 2021 F 2022 20216 2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARE®ETT AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January M1A1H 83,239 67,546 280,266 271,678 54,113 60,958
Profit for the year FE&HF 30,347 15,693 63,461 40,088 5,926 5,155
Dividends e - - (295000 (31,500)  (1,400) (12,000
Capital contribution iR - - 8,954 - - -
At 31 December MW12A31H8 113,586 83,239 323,181 280,266 58,639 54,113
Interest in joint ventures REERRINER 68,152 49,943 158,358 140,133 29,320 27,057
Fair value adjustments on THEREARDE
land use rights and property, S )
plant and equipment ARBEEAZ (10,659)  (10,659) - - - -
Carrying value REE 57,493 39,284 158,358 140,133 29,320 27,057

iSE

ENL

At the end of reporting period, the jointly controlled entities
do not have any outstanding contingent liabilities.

= %

o If
Em

Aﬂﬁ

BRABE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

11c. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OB RRME

11c. BBHEHMPARARLREE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME JIBRNER T B
2022 2021
2022 & 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Non- current assets FRBEE

Unlisted equity investments (note (a)) JEEMHEREE (M) 34,327 36,837
34,327 36,837

Note: BT -

() Asat 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the fair value of (@ M2022%12 A31H k2021412

the unlisted equity investment is arrived on the basis of a valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuers.

(b)  These investments are not held for trading, instead, they are held
for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments in equity instruments
at FVTOCI as they believe the investments are held for long-term.

AB31RA ELEMERKRENRATR
BEDENBLEEGEMETH
HEMSH -

ZERETERXRZMHE » M2
AEMEBRBENMIEE - AARE
FORERRSRETANKRER
ERBBEMEmBARAREER
JIfR - AARERRRERERS
A °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12. PRGBSz

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as below:

ApBRREM2ERAENRIE
mF :

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETRT

Deferred tax RETIE (1,100) -
Current tax: BVEARR IR
PRC Enterprise Income Tax A1 PSR
Provision for the year F R 22,361 33,352
21,261 33,352

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise Income
Tax rate of the Company and the subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made for the

years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 as the Group has no
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

RBBRTPEBRE - ARA REM
BRRZEEMERMER25%

HZE2022F 2021 F 12 A31 H it
FE HRAEEVEREEEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continuea) 12.

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as

FriSBI2 (47)

7 5 [ R P15 A5 A gt A RO R TR B R
MRE T E RN EERNINEFH
RO EELEZERBRBENEZED

follows: K
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TR
Profit before income tax bR P15 B A& 80,795 112,660
Tax at the official income tax rate of REAERBE25%
25% (2021: 25%) (20214 : 25%)
FTEEBIR 20,199 28,165
Tax effect of: ATIEEMRBEZE
— Share of associates’ and joint ventures’ — R E AR REERT
results reported, net of tax SREENBRFE) (13,734) (8,439
— Expenses and income not deductible — AR SRR 2
or taxable for taxation purpose ST ON 1,538 8,985
— Utilisation of tax losses previously — B RS AR R
not Recognised IR E 18 — (121)
— Tax effect of tax losses not recognised — RERBIEEBEOB G
T 14,358 4,762
— Tax effect of deductible temporary — RUERR A R Ry = BE
differences not recognised B G E (1,100) -
Income tax expense FrSHiA = 21,261 33,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BOt B mR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

13. SRR

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit BREXRBFNTRFEFANRNRAIER
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average A FEAG 8 M B DA B 3217 sm A hn 4
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. FHEEE o
2022 2021
2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETRT

Earnings EF
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANQ R A AFEN
il 29,550 33,682

Number of shares (thousands) BREE (FR])
Weighted average number of ordinary M EGRERLEE

shares for calculating basic and RSz

diluted earnings per share L I RSk 354,312 354,312
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, diluted AR AR A RE Z 2022 F 2021
earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings per share F12A31BLEFEN EEMER
as the Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary Ba T mREITEIN - MEE 2022
shares outstanding during the years ended 31 December 2022 FR2021F12A3TBILEFEER

and 2021.

ESRNETREARRFRR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

14. 1% - MERRE

Furniture
and office Motor  Construction Land
Buildings Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress use rights Total
AR
EF HE  BLERE RE ERIR  iHERE &gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRL  ARETR  ARETRT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR ARETH
The Group g8
Cost A
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1R18 350,016 22,190 34,901 56,864 3,681 26,321 493,973
Additions HE 1,770 884 4571 2,394 7,190 - 16,809
Lease termination BELL (18,520) - - (5,229) - - (23,743
Transfer/reclassification B3/8N08 5,765 (826) (1333 5,374 (8,980) - -
Disposals RE (1) (3,430) 2,773 (4,673 - - (10,897)
At 31 December 2021 and R0 E12A31BR
1 January 2022 202%1A1R 339,010 18,818 35,366 54,736 1,891 26,321 476,142
Additions WE 1,944 211 644 4563 10,277 = 17,639
Lease termination BELL (9,606) - - (1518) - - (11,124)
Transfer &3 = 1,680 2,493 5,082 (9,259) - -
Disposals RE - 917) (3,657) (6,462) - - (10,036)
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 1231 H 331,348 19,792 34,846 57,401 2,913 26,321 472,621
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3fifE
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1818 135,478 18,415 23,622 38,239 - 8,466 224,120
Charge for the year FRZM 35,214 447 2,462 5,140 - 531 437%
Lease termination HEALE (18,520) - - (5,229) - - (23,743)
Reclassfication EXipE 1,231 (241) (1,209) 213 - - -
Disposals RE (19 (3,086) 218 (4,208 - - (9,525
At 31 December 2021 and P01 E12A31BR
1 January 2022 202%F1A1R 153,390 15,535 22,563 34,161 - 8,997 234,646
Charge for the year ERz i 29,096 580 2,69 6,252 - 531 39,351
Lease termination &R (9,606) - - (1518) - - (11,124)
Disposals BE - (825) (3,540) (4,911) - - (9,276)
At 31 December 2022 M202%127318 173,080 15,290 21,715 33,984 - 9,528 253,697
Net book values BEEE
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 1231 A 158,268 4,502 13,131 2,417 2913 16,793 219,024
At 31 December 2021 R2021 5124318 185,620 3,283 12,803 20,575 1,891 17,324 241,496
Note: BiEE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, depreciation expense of
approximately RMB35,288,000 (2021: approximately RMB33,452,000)
has been charged in ‘Cost of sales’ and approximately RMB4,063,000
(2021: approximately RMB10,342,000) in ‘Administrative expenses’.

REZE2022F12A31BIEFE T &
B X 4 A& A R 35,288,000 7t (2021

F o

7 A R #33,452,0007T ) 2 Bl

ERA N 9 AR 4,063,0007T
(20214 : H AR 10,342,00070)E &

[1TBFA 2 JHIRR -
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The Group as lessee

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continueq)

14.

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

equipment)

R ~ BRI w)
REBEREEA
EHREEGIAYE  BERRE)

Buildings

B’F

RMB’000
AREET T

Motor Land
vehicles use rights Total
JRE L ithfE A et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTT

As at 31 December 2022

Carrying amount

As at 31 December 2021

Carrying amount

For the year ended
31 December 2022
Depreciation charge

Addition to right-of-use assets

For the year ended
31 December 2021
Depreciation charge

Addition to right-of-use assets

R2022F12H31H
fRmE{E

R2021$12H31H
fRmE

BZE2022F12H831H
LLFE

TERX

NEERAEEE

BZ=2021512A31H
HFEE

HERX

ANEEREEE

49,019

69,063

20,044

25,985

During the current year, the Group leases properties for self- own
use and a motor vehicle for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of one to three years (2021: one to
three years), but may have termination option to terminate the
leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one year. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

3,030 16,793 68,842

2,111 17,324 88,498

1,964 531 22,539
2,883 S 2,883
1,672 531 28,188
1,001 - 1,001

RARFEER  AEEHEWMEER
AEEEAERNEE HEAYD
A—E=F(2021F : —2E=F)H
Bl EHRAIS - B A& IE#EATR
—FREDTERERR - HEK
FIEERIER LR BE%E
TRGER R AR - REEEEHR
MEE A E AR RER - &
SEERAANERELEERLNT
58 BT RV AR



15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

OB RRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES . REF
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%ET T AR®ET T
At the beginning of the year RENEEER 412,900 307,700
Addition VNS - 95,689

Net (loss)/gain arising from change in fair values B QA BEEEHES

2 (E18) W58 (4,400) 9,511
Balance at the end of the year GRS =S 408,500 412,900

The direct operating expense from investment properties is
approximately RMB656,000 (2021: approximately RMB271,000)
and the rental income generated from investment properties
is approximately RMB23,941,000 (2021: approximately
RMB25,388,000).

Fair value

All investment properties of the Group are warehouse, freight
yard and commercial premises located in the PRC.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected to the Group.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties was
determined based on the income capitalisation approach, which
involves estimating the rental incomes of the properties and
capitalising them all on appropriate rate to produce a capital
value.

REVENEREERINAAR
656,000 7C(2021 6« #) A R ¥
271,0007T ) BREVMEELED
Me WAL R AR 23,941,000
T0(20214F = #) A R % 25,388,000
JT) °

o
|

=1

AEBENMEREYER/LRF
MERE  BEMERSM -

A

REER 2022 F K% 20214 12 A 31
HOREMENAABAEDENE
VEBRBEGEM(ERNEBSE
B3 ) T TR S E MER -

REBREYMEN R EBETERA
WAEBRETTEEE - EF P hib
AAMENHES WA RKTEZFK
ARBEHLERERMABGHERE
18 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

In estimating the fair values of the properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use of the properties.

At each financial year end, the management of the Group will
(i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report; (ii)
assess property valuations movements when compared to the
prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds discussion with the
independent valuer.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy (2021: level 3). Changes in level 3 fair values
are analysed at each reporting date by the management of the
Group. There were no transfers into or out of level 3 during the
year.

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s investment properties
with fair values of approximately RMB183,000,000 (2021:
approximately RMB184,000,000) have been pledged to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

15. IREM%E &)

DRBEEGE)
BEZEMINAEBR - &
MENGRSREEREZAEEMN
%@o

H

REVBRFREFER  AREEE
BRONZEBLGERSHAELIE
BAER (i) FHE R EFREGER
THBOMERGEZS ¢ K (i) 215
MG ERMETTE R

AEBEZBRANEHER ZIFNRN
HRFRFE(CEABRBLAAEE
EHRzBEBARBEL -

HE2022F %2021 F 12 A31H
LtFE BREMERBAAEBE
BE B RF=E(2021F : £=
B) AKBEEENSHEASNT
EZEBANBEEH AFEALE
HBASEHEZENBNR -

R2022%F12A381H A& B A
REBEEH A ARE183,000,0007T
(20214 © 49 A K % 184,000,000
TR EMFEDWER - AUER
AEEESHERRE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2022 and 2021

15. IREM%E &)
DNREEE)

REB R 2022 F & 2021 F 12 A 31
HEBREWERAABEERE

are as follows: B FENT -

Fair value of Valuation technique(s) Relationship
investment Fair value  and significant of unobservable
properties hierarchy  unobservable inputs inputs to fair value

AREE HERWREEREE BLBREARER
RENEXDAEBE E& L E3 DN b MAEENEE
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETR
Investment 408,500 412,900 Level 3 Market unit rent, using the direct Assuming that the
properties market comparables and taking market yield stand, the
in PRC into account of location and other increase in the
individual factors, of range from market unit rent
RMB 0.14 sg. m. to would result in an
RMB 7.51 sq. m. per day increase in fair
(2021: RMB0.18 sg. m. to value.
RMB8.8 sq. m. per day).
A B & E-FE mSENHE  KAEETSAE RETHRRTERTE
REME HEBE W RMFE DR AmpEnHesES
HthERER - §RHENT AREEES -
BYRRARB014LE
BYHARARE751T
(20215 : GRHEENT
BYRRARKO.18LE
BYRRAR%BST) -

Market yield, taking into account Assuming that the
of yield generated from market unit rent
comparable properties and stand, the
adjustment to reflect the certainty increase in the
of term income secured reversionary yield

and to be received of 7.3% - 9%
(2021: 6.75%- 9%).

THNEE - 5 RABLBYEA
EEMBEEL L BN R

FERIS R A AR BRI A RO REE 1 -

HAEREZAT7.3% - 9%
(2021 : 6.75%-9%) °

would result in a
decrease in fair value.
REMSENESEFTE -
BlERNREES
ARBEMIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

15.

16.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorise within level ol |

3 of the fair value hierarchy:

15. REWMFR#7)

37
’&ﬁf‘ffﬁé TBE

Total
et
RMB’000
AR® TR
Carrying amount at 1 January 2021 202161 A1 BEREE 307,700
Addition ?ﬁﬁ 95,689
Fair value changes ARBEEH 9,511
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 and 12021512 H31H
1 January 2022 &2022 F1 A1 HEEEAE 412,900
Fair value changes NAEEEES (4,400)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 72022512 A 31 HWREE 408,500
The Group believes that any possible changes in the input values REEEE GABBRMGEER R
would not cause significant change in fair value of investment RzAEMNEHETE %ﬁl&éﬁ%%
properties. AABEILRERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 16. €A TH
By Category mEHR
2022 2021
2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR AREFT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:  IREE KA EN S RMEE
— Trade, bills and other receivables, — B 5 REWGRIE
excluding prepayment to suppliers A ES: YN
FEWGRIE (T BIE
[ L JE 72 TR A~ RO ) 296,675 275,031
— Amount due from joint venture — A EEKIE 156,747 167,770
— Pledged bank deposits —BEERBITER 113,987 123,289
— Cash and cash equivalents —-ReNFEEEY 414,629 357,757
Total Pt 982,038 923,847

Equity Instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive Income

FREMEEPARAR
BEIEOERTA 34,327 36,837

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continuea)

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

16. €T H (&)

By Category (Continueq) mERI (&)
2022 2021
2022 F 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AREFIT
Financial liabilities ERas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: (&SR A EN SR EE -
- Borrowings — & 285,175 251,490
— Lease liabilities —fHEaE 54,997 73,538
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R EH M ERFKIE 568,249 589,851
Total st 908,421 914,879
INVENTORIES 17. 78
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Others EHib 6 9
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value MR2022F K 202112 A31H » 17
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. B AN ERFEZBIEETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

18. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES S2MEIFRIE « EZIRRE
ﬂt[:ﬂﬁ;ﬂlﬁ
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARSTRT ARETR
Trade receivables B 5 FE W IR 494,878 459,272
Less: Allowance for impairment W RERE (205,068) (200,570)
289,810 258,702
Bills receivables (note b) FEWEE(MiEb) - 641
\ 289,810 259,343
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments EI{‘MEHSL*&IE S
SELNEN 6,941 15,936
Amount due from joint venture (note d) il A%ﬁ% XIE(MI5Ed) 164,099 179,878
Less: Allowance for impairment B ORERE (7,428) 6,151)
453,422 449,006
Prepayment to suppliers (note e) M e TR SR (M e) 415,211 319,370
Less: Allowance for impairment B RERE (91,706) (91,706)
323,505 227,664
776,927 676,670
Less: non-current portion B IEmENER Y
— Amount due from joint venture (note d) — WA EENRIE
(B35Ed) (121,000) (147,737)
655,927 528,933
Notes: g
(a) The balance of the Group’s trade, bills and other receivables are @ AEENEFEWFIE - BKRER

denominated in RMB.

(b)  As at 31 December 2021, the bills are non-interest bearing bank
acceptance bills with a maximum maturity period of 180 days.

(c)  The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30 to 180
days (2021: 30 to 180 days) to its trade customers.

(d) Included in the amount due from joint venture was approximately
RMBNil (2021: approximately RMB6,205,000) related to
prepayment for the supplies, and approximately RMB121,739,000
(2021: RMB138,449,000) was unsecured, charged with interest at
6.5% per annum and recoverable within five years. The remaining
balances were unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on
demand. During the year ended 31 December 2022, People’s
Court of Binhai New District, Tianjin issued a civil judgment
on preservation, and seized the real estate under the name of
Tedahang to provide property preservation for the Company. For
detail, please refer to Note 39(b).

(e) As at 31 December 2022, included in the prepayment to suppliers
was approximately RMB14,110,000 (2021: RMB14,110,000)
related to prepayment for property, plant and equipment.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

KoL FE MR IR A5 8219 A A R BB
B-

MR2021F12 8318 » ZE5ZEB)
TEHESRITAKES  HHARE
A180H o

AEBGTEESRPNFEHEER
9 7 F30ZF 180 H (20214 : 30
Z180R) -

Bl A EPEMNRIEFRSIFEME
FDD%E1—J- EF'%E’JZW\E’%TE
(20214 : #H) AR¥E6,205,0007T) -
#49 A R #121,739,000 7T £ 1K ## -
E6.5%HWEFEE  IRAFA
Ie1(2021 4 = A K1 138,449,000
T0) c EMMBTEEEERR 28K
ESRURE - & = 20224 12 A 31
BIEFE - REMEEFHERARE
RBELREREBHTE  THFE
TE T THEARNARRETER
2 o FRMIFE39(Db)

R2022F12 A31H » 5 A A
EEBEMNREANHDARE
14,110,000 7C(2021F : A R ¥
14,110,000 70) ¥ ¥ « BB K&

BHTRNFURER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

18. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

19.

The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills receivables
(before allowance of impairment) based on invoice date at the
end of reporting period:

18.

SRRNRRIA « [BICRIERE
fth FEUFRIA (47)

RREHKRE SRR RIE M EWE
BORERENENZEZBHMER
BT -

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TR

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 286,461 259,011
91 - 180 days 912180 H 10,088 2,602
181- 365 days 1812365 H 1,159 1,130
Over 365 days 365 B £ 197,170 197,170

494,878 459,913

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer.

Details of assessment on expected credit loss are set out in Note
4.1(b).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

19.

REBEAFEON - AEEEGT
EEERPHERE R EERS
HIEREE -

BHREEEENFGFEHNME
4.1(b) °

RERBEESEMRESETIR
TER

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Cash at bank and on hand IRTT M FEERE 414,629 357,757
Pledged bank deposits (note (c)) BB IR TF R (MIFE () 113,987 123,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

@)

19. HERAESSEMRESIPIR

BANK DEPOSITS (Continued) fIEFRE)
The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in @ AEEUNEBSEEBYEE
currencies other than the functional currencies of the AN ENRITASRK
relevant group entities were as follows: WEWT -
2022 2021
2022 £ 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AREKTT
Currency: g
—US Dollars —3£7T 2,737 2,476
— Japanese Yen —HIT 3 £

Bank balances carry interest at market rate, the effective
interest rates of the bank balances during the year are as
follows:

RITHEBRIBETIS N ERGTL
REZRITHEBKNERFZ N
T

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT ARETR

Effective interest rate (per annum) ERFE(FL)

0.3%-1.4%  0.3%-1.5%

Pledged bank deposits represents pledge to banks to
secure bills payables of approximately RMB 323,700,000
(2021: approximately RMB350,700,000) issued by the
Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the pledged bank deposits carry
fixed interest rate of ranged from 1.20% to 1.38% (2021:
fixed interest rate of 1.15% to 1.38%) per annum. The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement
of relevant bills payables.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange
restriction imposed by the PRC government. Cash at banks
earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits
rate.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

EEMRITEREMRITIE
HZ2EA LERAEER
BHCENEBOARE
323,700,000 75 (2021 4 : 49
AR ¥ 350,700,000 7T) °

M2022F 12 A31H ' EEif
RITERIR1.20% & 1.38%
(20215 : AEME115%E
1.38%) 2 B E F A X5 B -
EEHIRITHERERIEE RS
JET BB E AR IR IR o

ARBIABERLE  BFE
PE H & £ A8 T BB RS
EEHRR - RITRSRIEE
BRITIF A Rt B o) F BRI
EREA B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. AR7K
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Domestic Domestic
Shares  H-shares Total shares H-shares Total
RER HR @t W& R Hx Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTE ARBIT ARMTR ARMTR ARETR
At the beginning and RETNREFLK
the end of the year 256,069 98,243 354,312 256,069 98,243 354,312
21. OTHER RESERVES 21. HfthfsE s
Statutory Other
Share reserves reserves
premium (note a) (note b) Total
ZEAES Hih e
gy (fizEa) (Ff=EDb) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®TR AR®TR AR®T:R
At 1 January 2021 ©K2021¥1 /818 55,244 100,135 (41,999) 113,380
Transfer to statutory EREEENESD
reserves = 5,226 = 5,226
Other comprehensive loss ~ FEH L2 HEE B
for the year - - (20,382) (20,382)
At 31 December 2021 and 72021412 A 31 H
1 January 2022 20221 H1H 55,244 105,361 (62,381) 98,224
Transfer to statutory ERE AT AES
reserves - 5,042 - 5,042
Other comprehensive loss ~ FEH & HEER
for the year - - (2,510) (2,510)
At 31 December 2022 72022612831 H 55,244 110,403 (64,891) 100,756
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

21. OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 21.

notes:
(@) Statutory reserves
Reserve fund and Enterprise expansion find

According to the relevant PRC rules and their articles of
association, appropriations from net profit should be made
to the Reserve Fund and the Enterprise Expansion Fund. The
percentages to be appropriated to the Reserve Fund and
Enterprise Expansion Fund are determined by the respective board
of directors. Upon approval, the Reserve Fund can be used to
offset accumulated losses or be converted into capital.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are domestic
limited liability companies established under the PRC Company
Law. According to the relevant PRC rules and their articles of
association, statutory surplus reserve should be appropriated
from net profit of management account under China Accounting
Standard before distribution. The amount of appropriation should
be 10% of profit after taxation, calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, applicable to enterprises in
the PRC, of the Company and its subsidiaries. The appropriation
may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered capital. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up prior year losses, to
expand operation or to increase share capital. The Company or
its subsidiaries may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve by way
of bonus issues provided that the amount of the statutory surplus
reserve remaining after such appropriation shall not be less than
25% of the registered capital of the Company or its subsidiaries.

(b) Other reserves

(i) Merger reserves represent the difference between the
paid up capital of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of
Company’s shares issued in exchange for the equity interest
in the subsidiaries upon the reorganisation of the Group prior
to listing.

(i) The FVTOCI reserve represents cumulative gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI
that have been recognised in other comprehensive income,
net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when
those equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

Hithfsifl =)

it

(a)

(b)

EEXNEE
RELREFRREL

RIBFEBBERLEENERM
8 MAESREREE REER
RES - BREFHBERERER
EENBENLRTEESEERE -
RHLER - B REEERE
BRI IBBENR o

RAB REETHE A RRET
REVEKIL BAEBRAR © BRI
B AR RIE S EIZ4E) -
FETEABAESESIATEBRRE
PEEHERIRR A E LR B TN
GO T BB o B EIRE AN B EH
ENTFEETHRT LRI EN
RAF R EHE A BB RE 8
10% 2| - AT BB ATES %
HEEIEEIMEANS0% -
AA R ILEIB S AT BB ATES -
ETERBAES ARERHEEES
B EAREBIILMRA - KA F]
S H B A T AT A ITALR T =
ERTERBABEENL - HRI%
WETERBATESEEBETET
BEER AR B EWB AR GEME
ANH)25% °

Hibf &

) AMREEENBARESR
REARBRETAETE
%) 2 AR B R B B 1 B Bk
MEITRM FERZH ©

(i) FERHEMEEBARAALE
Bz REEREEREME
EW AR R EES R
s TARCEREMLE2EKE
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LER EREEBEME
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W IR EF D RERE
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22.

23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

RETAINED EARNINGS 22. {REBEI
RMB’000
AR® T
Balance at 1 January 2021 202161 A1 BR&E#H 365,852
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEHEEEERE 33,682
Transfer to other reserves EE S M (5,226)

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 7K2021412 A31 H

K 202241 A1H 394,308
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEEWAERE 29,550
Transfer to other reserves RS H A (5,042)
At 31 December 2022 R 2022F 12831 H 418,816

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BARHAMENFRIA
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 %
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STRT ARETx
Trade payables B 5 FEN IR 169,966 203,288
Bills payables (note a) FENEE(MTa) 323,700 350,700
493,666 553,988
Other tax payables HiERiIE 509 2,130
Other payables and accruals o e 3RI8 R FE AT RRIR 74,583 35,863
568,758 591,981

notes:

(@  The bills are non-interest bearing and have a maximum maturity
period of 12 months. The credit period granted by the suppliers to
the Group ranged from 30 to 90 days. Management of the Group
monitors the repayment of all payables and ensures compliance

with credit time frame.

@ ZEZBEREBERIMBMAREA12
@A - HERR FAEENEE
NFI0EWH - AEEERES
BERFT R FET RUBRE - LARER
FrE N RIBEREERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The aging analysis of the trade payables and bills payables based
on invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

23. BARHMENFRIA 2)
i ()

b BZENFEARENERERREH
RERHZBHNREONAT

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETTT

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 217,727 254,936
91 - 180 days 912180 H 275,539 298,963
181 - 365 days 1812365 H 341 a7
Over 365 days 365 HEA E 59 42
493,666 553,988
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24. BHIGE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2022 2021

2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR%®TET

Materials procurement and Y E R E R RER

related logistics business

264,964 106,937

Note: Contract liabilities include receipts in advance from customer for
the sales of goods and procurement services.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue recognised
from performance obligation during current year that was
included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
year was approximately RMB103,090,000 (2021 approximately
RMB120,014,000).

MiE: ANBEERNEMHERRE
RIS RZ P IRM A IR o

RE Z22022F12A31H IEF
& FEAGHBEFOEHHAR
FEMRBHEBPERNMES
49 A R 103,090,000 75 (2021
F H AR 120,014,0007T) °

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

25. BORROWINGS 25. f&FR
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARETT
Current TRE
Short term bank borrowings RHEIERITEK
— Secured — K 285,175 251,490
Carrying amounts repayable (note d) AEERmAE(NED)
— within 1 year ——FR 285,175 251,490
notes: Mk -
(@) The effective annual interest rates of the borrowings at the @ REBEAHEROERFENEN
reporting date were as follows: T
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARBFIT
Effective rate BERAE 3.20%-7.00% 3.50%-6.00%
(o) The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair (o) 20224 K&2021F12A31H -
values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 either due to their short- EFXNEEEHAE AR EBEME
term maturity or because they bear interest at prevailing market - DRAERNEERE Ek
rates throughout their maturity period. E AR EREAERIAIRITH
IR ERET R o
(¢)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated ) AEBEFRNFEEERTIIEET
in the following currencies: 1B :
2022 2021
2022 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBFIT
RMB AR 285,175 251,490
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

25.

26.

27.

BORROWINGS (Continued) 25. {BFR (&)

Notes: (Continued) Mozt : (B)

(d)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates. d EHIEREBENREEEEABE

= .

() As at 31 December 2022, the borrowings with carrying amount ) M2022F12A31H  (REALREA
of RMB285,175,000 (2021: RMB251,490,000) are secured by A R 1 285,175,00070(2021 4 :
the Group’s investment properties, pledge bank deposits and AEREE 251,490,000 7T ) BUE FUAZR
guaranteed by the Company and TEDA Holding (2021: Group'’s EBEMREYE  BRRITERE
investment properties and pledge bank deposits and guaranteed R - WHAR A RFREERER
by TEDA Holding). (2021 F : UAEERENER

BRI ERRER - WhREE
BRIELR) ©
DEFERRED INCOME 26. EIEMA
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TET

Government grants received BB E 4,191 4,402

The government grants from TEDA Administrative Commission RREFEREEZEGWINNK

were received in respect of its acquisition of land use rights and e ARUE Lt AR

the project of inspection and storage centre. The government MAGIEER - BN#B €K ERR

grants are recognised as deferred income and are released SBRFE WA - 3 7E B A R B S AR T G

to income over the periods necessary to match them with the ML EREERAWA - REELH

related costs. During the year, of approximately RMB211,000 B AR ®211,0007(2021F : A

(2021: RMB211,000) was recognised under other gain and loss - E#211,000 7T ) #% i 58 /% B b W 2=

net. N Es1E — FEE -

LEASE LIABILITIES 27. ilHE&f&

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group acquired motor
vehicle by means of lease agreement with a total capital value at
the inception date of the lease of approximately RMB2,883,000
and RMB1,001,000 respectively. The lease terms are ranged
from 2 to 3 years (2021: 2 to 3 years). Interest rates underlying
the lease liabilities are ranged from 4.12 % to 4.39 % (2021:
4.83% 10 5.04%).

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

2022 £ 20214912 A318 -
AEBEBBHEERRRELE -
REERBBENRERNEREDH
# A N R %2 883,000 K AR
1,001,0007L » H & B R2EIF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. HE&E#)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s lease liabilities 2022 % %2021 12 A31H + &
were repayable as follows: SEHEBEMNERBNT :

Present value of
Minimum lease payment minimum lease payment

REHENSR REHENRRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 2021 & 2022 & 2021 £

RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARETT ARBTRT AR®TR

Amounts payable under MEMEET
lease liabilities: PRI FRIR
Within one year —FR 23,837 24,201 21,649 21,047
Over one year but within two years ~ —&F LA FHERFRA 23,131 22,662 22,044 20,554
Over two years but within five years WA FERFR 11,426 33,105 11,304 31,937
58,394 79,968 54,997 73,538
Less: Future finance charges o BB (3,397) (6,430) - -
54,997 73,538 54,997 73,538
Less: Amount due within one year & : RENBEE
shown under current liabilities FIRE—FR
FHmeE (21,649) (21,047)
Amount due after one year FERBBEET
shown under non-current liabilities ~ FTREI—ELATR
HEm&E 33,348 52,491
28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. IREMRIASIE
The balances of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising from PINES HEMEN AR BEAE
fair value adjustments on investment properties from cost model AR EEAABERAME
to fair value model was as follows: ERREEFIEEEHRBOT -
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREEFIT
At 1 January ®»1A1H 56,997 56,997
Credited to profit or loss FFABRE (1,100) —
At 31 December ®12 A31H 55,897 56,997
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RR M
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #Z 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

28.

20.

30.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. IEERIASIE#)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RMERR NEBBHREADT
losses of approximately RMB124,334,000 (2021: approximately THEHE X A/ A K% 124,334,000 T
RMB83,411,000) which expired after 5 years available for offset (20214 : #) A R ®83,411,000
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised JT) c REFRIE - JAREHER
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. o ) o BB R R 3R s AT B9 B] TR
A WERBERREHIEEE -
DIVIDENDS 29. I8
On 23 March 2023, the Directors proposed the payment of final MR2023F3A23H EE=EH K
dividend of RMBO0.03 per share for the year ended 31 December FEHE2022F12A31HIEFEEY
2022 (2021: nil). These consolidated financial statements do RNEARR BB A KR 0.037T(2021
not reflect this dividend payable. The proposed final dividend is F /) ZEEHYBRRLER
subject to the approval at the Company’s annual general meeting MZIARMNRE - BFARBREA
of 2022. FRAAT2022 FRRBFERE L
AL -
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. EEEW
2022 2021
2022 2021 %F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR%®TET
Pledged bank deposits BEERIRITHER 113,987 123,289
Investment properties KEME 183,000 184,000
296,987 307,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt mRMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31. HEFMARSIRE
2022 2021
2022 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Lz ARBTR AR%®TET
Profit before income tax B P45 5 BT A 80,795 112,660
Adjustments for: MATIEBELRAZ
Interest income FLEUA 7 (15,662) (16,637)
Finance costs BB KA 10 20,702 23,545
Depreciation of property, M WE K&
plant and equipment REINE 14 16,812 15,606
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ FREEETE 14 22,539 28,188
Loss/(gain) on change in fair values ~ EME QA BEEEHH
of investment properties EE, (W) 15 4,400 9,511)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE
plant and equipment BB FEE 7 318 396
Impairment loss of trade, bills and B EWRIE - EREE
other receivables, net K EL th fE WO IRRUE
BB R 4. 1biii 5,775 46,537
Deferred income amortisation S FE YR A J2 3 (211) (211)
Dividends income from K E#ERETEMRSKA
equity instruments 7 (512) (677)
Gain on deemed disposal of RFLESEEEN K
joint ventures 7 (1,605) =
Share of profit of investments KAEREARNEN
accounted for using & = A
the equity method 11(b) (54,935) (33,755)
Operating cash flow before LBECEHAINEE
changes in working capital: REME 78,416 166,241
Decrease in inventories FER 3 18,105
Increase in trade, bills B EWRIE - EREE
and other receivables R E Ath R WA R IE A2 A0 (106,032) (41,831)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and = %&E@Jﬁ%ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁl@
other payables 1),/ (23,223) 16,562
Increase/(decrease) in Ai’]'ﬁ 53g 0, CRi >
contract liabilities 158,027 (20,836)
Cash generated from operations KEEBAERE 107,191 138,241
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32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

32. MEFAEEZBEHIR

TRHALXREERETHEENE
EEHFE ERRSLIHASE
Ho-mEIDELINRESERS
MEGRIEBRRASRELRNA
SEAHRERERDBRBRER
BrEReRENEE -

Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEaE EEN et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TR AR%Tx
(note 27) (note 25)
(MiEE27) (Mi5E25)
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 A1H 142,954 349,500 492,454
Accrued interest FEEHFIE 6,458 17,087 23,545
Less: Interest paid B BERFE (6,458) (17,087) (23,545)
New lease entered (Note 14) BRI HFTEE (M 14) 1,001 - 1,001
Proceeds from financing REBMEBRSRADN
cash inflows FriS I8 - 251,490 251,490
Financing cash outflows BMEBS R (70,417) (349,500) (419,917)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12 A31H R
1 January 2022 202241 A1H 73,538 251,490 325,028
Accrued interest FEETFI B 3,194 17,508 20,702
Less: Interest paid B BERHE (3,194) (17,508) (20,702)
New lease entered (Note 14) BRI HFHEE(MFE14) 2,883 - 2,883
Proceeds from financing REBMERSRAN
cash inflows FT{S k18 - 344,585 344,585
Financing cash outflows BEREME (21,424) (310,900) (332,324)
At 31 December 2022 A 2022%F12H31H 54,997 285,175 340,172
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33.

34.

35.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

COMMITMENTS

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of investment properties
are as follows:

33.

e
RIFEIREYER BT A BEHK
EHEMNRRREEEWAEELR
T

2022 2021
2022 2021 £
RMB’000 RB’000
ARET AREET T
Within one year —F R 15,090 14,985
In the second year F= 10,073 12,822
In the third year FE=4F 7,218 10,039
In the fourth year FNF 7,194 7,194
In the fifth year EREF 5,254 6,474
After five years AFERE 73,632 79,776
118,461 131,290

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES 34. HIFRIEREE

At 31 December 2022, the Group has outstanding guarantee of
approximately RMBNIl (2021: approximately RMB341,048,000)
provided to Tedahang, a joint venture with 60% interest owned
by the Group, for its bank borrowing facilities of RMBNIl (2021:
RMB350,000,000). The outstanding borrowings drawn down
by Tedahang as at 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB8,952,000. As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding
borrowings was fully repaid and the financial guarantee liabilities
are fully released accordingly.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Transactions/balances with other state owned
enterprises in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “state-controlled entities”). The directors of
the Company consider those state-controlled entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group’s business
transactions with them are concerned.

35.

R2022F 12 A31 8 A&EB AZHK
ET(AEEBRBCORERMA L
ANEREBITERREARE S T
(20214 : AR 350,000,0007T)
REHARETIL(2021F « HA
R 341,048,0007T ) &) K FE 1T #&
R o ZRFEITHR2021F12 A31HE
REERMKEENEROBARE
8,952,0007T ° F2022F 12 A 31
H AAEENEREBHEE "
HREMEERETE 2R -

FARERRA

(a) EEMPERBELENRS
EER
AEEKLENRBERERRKR
o B KT B 9 Sk R A S
HEOEEATHBRIEA G
XENEEE - KARABESFER
o AR EEFEEITH R
BRPME  ZFEELEE
BIE=F -
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35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continueq) 35. BARERXA(#Z)

(@) Transactions/balances with other state owned (a)
enterprises in the PRC (Continued)

During the year, the Group’s significant transactions with
these state controlled entities include purchases of raw
materials for trading purposes and fuel for transportation
vehicles used in the logistics business. As at year end,
majority of the Group’s cash and bank balances and
borrowings are with state controlled banks.

(b) Key management compensation (b)

The details of remuneration of key management personnel
are set out in Note 9.

(c) For the transactions constitute connected transactions under (c)
GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Report”.

The followings are the details of continuing connected
transaction of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021:

HEMTHAEECENRS,
BER(E)

FA AEEELEEERALEE
MEARRSBREARZENE
E'\J?Tﬁﬂ'l//{&%m%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ &)
BREWMONE - RFE - K
SEAREHHE & RBITAEHRIA
REFAREREFRITHA
BARITREE -

TEEEASTHH
FEEBRABFMOFBEER
BFEQ ©

BEHEBKGEM ETHARRIET
MERFINRS  F2HE
FEWmE AN BERS REF
BRAERS |

TN B H E 2022 F 2021 6
12A31BIEFEMNZERZ
RGHBHHNWMT -

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT ARETx

Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. RELEHEMRABRA R

will provide logistics services 1 1A 2 R 38 R AR =X

and supply chain solutions for HEEAERAE

automobiles and car components to YRR R e

the Toyota Tsusho Corporation (note 1) §#f#3R 77 2= AR ( W 1) 11,053 13,739
Sales of frozen meat and provision FET(RE)R i}iff%m

of the related storage, logistics BRABMARA

and logistics supporting services SHEREA M &kﬂ\

by Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics HERR - WREkD

Co., Ltd. to the Company (note 2) e BN AR (B3 2) - 80,612
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OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continuea)

(c)

(d)

(Continueq)

Notes:

Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd (KEZ R RBREA
Al), a sino-foreign equity joint venture incorporated in the
PRC on 19 July 1996, which is owned as to 52% by the
Company, 36.2% by Toyota Tsusho Corporation, 7.3% by
Kamigumi Company Limited (B Ak = &4t F48) and 4.5%
by Toyota Transportation Corporation (H A& M@ EkE
1), and Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd. (FREfT(RER)% i
¥IinB 2 al, a company established in Dongjiang Bonded
Free Port, Tianjin, PRC with limited liability and owned as to
60% by the Company and 40% by Chia Tai Logistics Limited
(EA®RAMR AT, and Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics
Co., Ltd. is a Connected Subsidiary of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules.

In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statement, the

35. EARERRA (@)

(c) (#&)
5T -

1. RELEHWEBRAT W —
RN 1996 F7 A 19 BEHE
MM INE BB
BAAR - EHBEKAE
e BARKA gt LARA
REHB AR D RI%
B52% -~ 36.2% * 7.3% &
45%HE m o BRIBEGEM £
RA - REEZHMRBRA
AIBARBINME AR

2. FTETRB)LEVDRER
RAE —HKRHPBERERE
REERRIMNBRETR
A ARRBRIEAYRE
R 2B D B A 60% K 40%
s o RIRGEM EmRA
RETRB)REYRER
RAR/ARANEENER
o

(d) BRAEHMBHREIZARENR
P REESHIN - NEBER] B E

Group entered in to related party transaction. KR e
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
Name of related party Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000
BESEB REME ARBTRT ARETT
Tedahang Interest income 8,739 10,071
TETT FEWA
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36.

INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

36. BRI RZNER

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2022 2021
2022 2021 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BEREE 5,706 5,872
Investment properties KEMZE 225,500 228,900
Amount due from joint venture U A & F IR 121,000 147,737
Investments in subsidiaries R B RRIMIRE 190,241 185,241
Investments in jointly controlled entities REREHIEEIRE 170,941 170,941
Investments in associates R & AR E 13,500 13,500
Equity instruments at fair value through FREMEEBAZRAR
other comprehensive income EEIENER T A 34,327 36,837
761,215 789,028
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH M EWRFRIE 492,384 332,353
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) FEUW T B~ B A (st a) 14,308 33,459
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITFER 113,987 123,289
Cash and cash equivalents HeMRSEEY 98,428 4,672
719,107 493,773
Total assets HWEE 1,480,322 1,282,801
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OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 36. BEAASIMBEIRRENSH

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
As at 31 December
Mm12H31H
2022 2021
2022 2021 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity R
Share capital & 7x 354,312 354,312
Other reserves (note c) H it (Fiskc) 73,914 76,424
Retained earnings (note c) REBAEF (M5Ec) 141,118 127,424
Total equity B 569,344 558,160
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR 383,091 371,232
Contract liabilities EH8E 259,621 106,769
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note b) FETHI B A IR (Fiskb) 10,154 19,650
Current income tax liabilities EHMENHAaE 256 256
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 27
Borrowings (=R 243,000 211,000
896,149 708,934
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 14,811 15,661
Lease liabilities HEBaE 18 46
14,829 15,707
Total liabilities HaE 910,978 724,641
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36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

36. BRI RZNER
(%)

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2022 2021
2022 F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET

Total equity and liabilities HESNEE 1,480,322 1,282,801
Net current liabilities REBEEFHE (177,042) (215,161)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBERE 584,173 573,867

These financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023 and were
signed on its behalf by:

ZEVBHRRELHEETZN 2023
FIA23EAAERBETE - WH
UTATREERE

Yang Weihong
BEA
Director
EBEFE

Zhou Zhiyuan
Director

EF
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continuea)

Notes:

(@  Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,

interest free and recoverable on demand.

(b)  Amounts due to subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

(c) Reserves of the Company:

36. BRI RZNER
(%)
(3!

ﬁﬂ/

(@) EUMBARIFEBIESILE -
REER . T B RRERAW
8] o

b ENHBARFEBIEZMNE -
AEEE - N B RARERE

&

© ARRHE

Share Other  Statutory Retained

premium reserves reserves earnings Total

R E HitfkE ZELES REEF &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'’000

AR®TT AR¥Tr ARETRT AR¥®TRT AR%Tx

At 1 January 2021 ®2021F1A18 55,244 (1,385) 42,947 94,475 191,281
Profit and total comprehensive FERMEEARANEE

income for the year - (20,382 - 32,949 12,567

At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12 831 B R

1 January 2022 2022%1 A1 H 55,244 (21,767) 42,947 127,424 203,848
Profit and total comprehensive FERMLEARANEE

income for the year - (2,510) - 13,694 11,184

At 31 December 2022 R2022%12A31H 55,244 (24,277) 42,947 141,118 215,032

For details of the statutory reserves and other reserves, please

refer to the Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

BEREELREE NEMFEFHENF
18 - F2HE Y BRRME21 -
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37.

38.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements
for motor vehicles for 2 to 3 years. On the lease commencement,
the Group recognised approximately RMB2,883,000 of right-of-
use assets and approximately RMB2,883,000 of lease liabilities.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 6 January 2023, TEDA General Bonded Warehouse Co.,
Ltd. (‘Bonded Warehouse”) (as the vendor, the lessee and the
mortgagor), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the finance lease agreement and the mortgage agreements
with CIMC Capital Ltd. (“CIMC Capital”) for the finance lease
arrangement, pursuant to which Bonded Warehouse agreed to
sell the two special railway lines with the length of 1.2 kilometers
located in the yard of Bonded Warehouse (‘Leased Assets”) to
CIMC Capital at a total consideration of RMB56,000,000, and
Bonded Warehouse agreed to lease back the Leased Assets from
CIMC Capital by way of finance lease for a period of five years. At
the same time, Bonded Warehouse agreed to pledge the Leased
Assets and the land located at Ninth Street North and Bohai
Road West, Tianjin Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Tianjin to CIMC Capital as guarantee in discharging the
debts of Bonded Warehouse under the finance lease agreement.
The Company and TEDA Holding, the controlling shareholder
of the Company, issued the guarantee letters to CIMC Capital
respectively to provide guarantee in favour of Bonded Warehouse
in relation to the finance lease arrangement. Upon expiry of
the lease period and subject to fulfillment of all obligations by
Bonded Warehouse under the finance lease agreement, Bonded
Warehouse shall have the right to acquire the ownership of the
Leased Assets by paying RMB100 to CIMC Capital.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 5 December 2022 and the Company’s circulars dated 18
January 2023.

37.

38.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME
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39. LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2022, the Group were involved in litigation
or arbitration of material importance and litigation or claim of
material importance was pending or threatened against the
Company and its subsidiaries. Details are as follows:

(@)

In the case of contractual disputes that Guofu (Shanghai)
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Guofu Shanghai”) suing
Guoben (Xiamen) Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
(“Guoben Xiamen”), the Company and Guoben Holdings
Co., Ltd., which was heard on 4 February 2021, the
Company received the judgment from the Shanghai
Financial Court on 26 September 2021 (the “Judgment”).
The Company has lodged an appeal against the Judgment
to the Shanghai Financial Court on 8 October 2021. On 13
January 2022, the Shanghai High People’s Court accepted
the appeal case. Due to the Pandemic situation, the case
was tried in the second instance on 27 July 2022. On 13
September 2022, the Shanghai High People’s Court made
a final judgment and upheld the original judgment that
Guoben Xiamen shall pay Guofu Shanghai the repurchase
fee of RMB56.55 million and the corresponding repurchase
premium within ten days from the effective date of the
judgment. The repurchase premium is calculated based on
RMB56.55 million at an annual interest rate of 10% (from
2 July 2019 to actual settlement date). The Company will
bear 50% of the above-mentioned part of debt that Guoben
Xiamen in unable to pay off, with a limit of RMB60 million.
The Company has the right to ask reimbursement from
Guoben Xiamen upon its settlement. On 29 November
2022, the case has entered the enforcement process. On
7 February 2023, the Company received an enforcement
notice from the Shanghai Financial Court, requesting
the Company to fulfill the obligation of compensation of
RMB38,632,171.20 for the part of Guoben Xiamen’s debt
that could not be paid off, and to bear the cost of execution
in amount of RMB123,950.00. The Company has fulfilled
its obligations under the judgment on 28 February 2023.
The Company has lodged an application to the Shanghai
Financial Court on 10 March 2023 to claim compensation

39.

i

R2022%F 128318 AEEH K
HIEE REFaASEl - MR T &k
BRI K WIEMERFAXIRE
BT

(a)

R2021F2848 5 E & &
WEE(LB)EEERERA
A(RLEE)RFER(E
PO EREEEESRAR(E
REFL) - RATREARER
ERAFMERUDEME - &
N AR 202159 A26 8 U B
EEemER A AENZ A
K1) o KRB B RZHARR
202110 A8H @ /&% &t
EBTIRE 5 o 1R 20224F 1 A
138 EBmaERARER
XEBLHFEH - -BRBREA -
ZERN2022F 7 A2T H#E 1T
TEREBEILIE 202259 A
13 EBmaRARER
E R AR - ERRA - B
BEAREPIERHARERZ B
+HEAMBEZL S B ER
AR ¥ 5,6558 T K ABEA R
BEEER HELBERUAAR
56558 L AEE  RFF
E10% st B(B2019F7H2
HEERBEEZRAL)  #HE
RNEF LM EBTEEFERE
D ARRNBEERE—DZ—
MBS B & (A A R ¥6,000
BLAR) A el fE&RER
TrEERABEAREFIEE-
R2022%F 11 A29H + #Z &
BEARITIER - R2023F
2R7TEBARRKE LS R
ERBMITEANE  BRAAQA
HERNEMBEEBTEERE
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39. LITIGATION (Continuea)

(b)

from Guoben Xiamen. Depending on the subsequent
situation, other measures to claim for its rights may be taken
by the Company against the principal.

The Company filed a case in the Tianjin Binhai New Area
Court on 18 February 2022, suing Tedahang, for repayment
of the Company’s guaranteed loan of approximately
RMB170 million. People’s Court of Binhai New District,
Tianjin issued a civil judgment on preservation on 22
February 2022, and seized the real estate under the name
of Tedahang to provide property preservation for the
Company. The case was heard on 18 March 2022 and
20 July 2022. On 26 August 2022, the People’s Court of
Binhai New District, Tianjin made a first instance judgment,
supporting the Company’s claim of full amount. The
judgment is currently in effect.

40. RETIRMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Company and its PRC subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the Company and its PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions at the rate of 14% to 16% of
the eligible employees’ salaries to the Schemes. The Group has
accrued for the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the contributions
become due. The local government authorities are responsible for
the pension obligations payable to the retired employees covered
under the Schemes.

39. GRER(#)

40.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 # 2 20224 12 A 31 HIFF/Z

40. RETIRMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES (Continuea)

41.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations. The total
contribution made by the Group to the Schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are RMB43,790,000 (2021:
RMB42,658,000).

AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023.

40.

41.

Rl st &l )

Br B3RS - AR B EHE AT
RN BANERER

R2022 F 2021 F 12 A31H » I
QW HRATAREIR AR R
o AEBHZE2022F12 A31H
IFFEHHEELE ZRERBAR
¥ 43,790,000 70 (2021 & : AR ¥
42,658,000 7T) °

RigTIE S HATRIRE

B2 N2023F 3 A23BHLER
BET RS BRE -
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

ETEYXRKE

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

ch il A fth Hin 5=
FEREME

Location

o B

Usage

Az

Category of
the lease
term

IR

Group’s
interest

S @ PTG R

1. No.35, 7th Avenue, TEDA
No.35, 7th Avenue,
Technological and Economic Development Area,
Tianjin City
B E®E Lt K#355%
REM
BRI &R
FERHET355%

2. No.345, Jiyun Fifth Road, Tanggu District
No.345, Jiyun Fifth Road, Tanggu District,
Tianjin City
BHERERE3455
RET™
YEh IR 7 48 T 3834555

Warehouse
BE

Freight yard
W5

3. Yaxin Mansion Commercial Premises

UG 1/F and G1-7/F, Yaxin Mansion,
35 Nanjing Road, Hexi District, Tianjin City
BiERE
RO A 78 % R R BE 355
EEANEM T 1B R 1-7/E
4. No.39, Bohai Road, TEDA

No.39, Bohai Road,
Technological and Economic Development Area,

Tianjin City
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